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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino-
Life Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company.

The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or in
this report misleading.
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Chairman’s

| am pleased to present the results of Sino-Life Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “"Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“the Year”) on behalf
of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”).

Under the adverse impact of Sino-US trade friction, the growth
of the mainland China’s economy continued to slow down.
The national government deepened its reform and in a more
comprehensive way, and accelerated the implementation of
innovation-driven strategies and promoted the transformation and
upgrading of the economic structure, and in turn achieved high-
quality development and met the people’s growing need for a
better-quality life. Despite the presence of downward pressure
on the PRC economy, the aforementioned factors have mitigated
the impact on the Group’s funeral services business. The Group
recorded an increase in its business in the PRC, as compared with
the corresponding period in 2018 (the “Prior Year”), benefiting
from ongoing population ageing in China and growth in its
population’s purchasing power, inducing growing need for funeral
services and heightened demand for quality service.

In Prior Year, the Board noticed that rapid development of the
biotechnology and healthcare businesses have in recent years,
and made its decision to step into relevant industry to grasp the
opportunities from this booming biological technology business,
which besides enabling rapid expansion of the Group’s business,
will be beneficial to both the Group’s future performance.
In December 2018, with the expectation of the continuous
expansion of market size for products from such business
segment and vast industrial prospects, which was benefited from
the gradual aging of population in the PRC and the sustained
growth of disposal income that stimulates continuous growth
of potential demand for healthcare, the Company decided
to dispose 40% of the interests of its subsidiary, Bau Shan
Life Science Technology Co., Ltd, which operates the Group's
funeral business in Taiwan but have been performed less than
satisfactory with operating losses over the years, to focus its
financial resources for the Group’s biological technology industry
development. Such disposal was completed in April 2019.

During the Year, the Group commenced a diverse development
strategy and actively positioned itself in the cells industry,
which is an important sub-division of the biotech industry.
With the efforts made by the management team, the business
has achieved substantial progress and has successfully carried
out the project under the agency agreement signed at the
beginning of this Year in relation to the sales of stem cell
and immunocytes in the PRC, and commenced its sales of
advanced biotechnical equipment business in Hong Kong. The
sales of stem cell and immunocytes in the PRC contributed
approximately RMB1,591,000 to this Year's revenue, whereas
the sales of advanced biotechnical equipment business in Hong
Kong contributed approximately RMB3,263,000 during the Year.
The new businesses have realised some profits for the Group.

Statement
FEMmE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

At the same time, in order to enhance the Group’s research
ability and core competitiveness, the Group made its step into
the business of research and development of cell cultivation. The
Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, entered into a
joint venture agreement with an independent third party and
Guangdong Aishidai Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (/& 3 X B 4
MR AR E(LAA]), a 30%-controlled company of Mr. Xu
Jianchun, an executive director of the Company, to establish a
joint venture company (the “JV"), which the Group owns 30%
of the equity interests in the JV, to carry out biotechnology
business in August 2019. The JV will focus on the research
and development of cell cultivation, and this move marks a
milestone of the Group to step into the upstream of the cells
industrial chain and thus forming a synergistic business system.

Since January 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus disease
("COVID-19") has impact on the global business environment.
The spread of the COVID-19 around the world has threatened
the life and health of billions of people, and led to temporary
suspension of businesses in the commercial and industrial
sectors of many countries, stirring up volatility in financial
markets. It is difficult to judge how far-reaching the impacts of
this pandemic of the century will have on the global economy.

As the result of the government mandated closures across the
nation and the travel restrictions imposed by different countries
due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group’s sales of the stem
cell and immunocytes, and advanced biotechnical machinery
business experienced temporarily shut-down but other business
segments only recorded approximately 25% year on year
decrease in revenue during the first quarter of 2020. This
reflected the successful diversification of the Group’s businesses
in mitigating the business risk.

Up to the date of this report, COVID-19 has not caused
material financial difficulties to the Group. Depending on the
development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the date
of this report, further changes in economic conditions for the
Group arising thereof may have impact on the financial results
of the Group, the extent of which could not be estimated as
at the date of this report. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the situation of COVID-19 and react actively to its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the
Group.

For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s

However, crisis always brings opportunities. Looking forward,
the Group will keep ploughing the funeral services business
while continuing to develop its cells business. It will continue
to consolidate its new technologies, research talents and
exquisite projects through different means such as collaborative
investment, mergers and restructuring to further deepen
its distribution of the cells industrial chain in the industry.
In addition, the Group will also explore the possibility of
developing other quality projects or businesses with promising
prospects to formulate a business configuration with cell
industry as its core and supplemented by the coordinated
development of other segmented directions. This would improve
the Group’s operating conditions, optimise business structure,
exploit new earnings growth points, and drive sustainable and
quality development of the Group’s business.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the Group’s
entire management and staff for their efforts and contributions.
| would also like to take this opportunity to express heartfelt
thanks to the Company’s shareholders and business partners
for their longtime support and trust.

Chairman
Xu Jianchun

22 June 2020

Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AR L oA
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”),
benefiting from rising consumption and ongoing population
ageing in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group
recorded an increase in its business in the PRC, as compared
with the corresponding period in 2018 (the “Prior Year”),
while performance in Socialist Republic of Vietnam (”Vietnam”)
market and Taiwan also recorded on increase of the funeral
services business. The elderly care business recently established
in Taiwan has been sluggish.

On the other hand, the Group has successfully carried out the
project under the agency agreement signed at the beginning of
this Year in relation to the sales of stem cell and immunocytes
in the PRC, and commenced its sales of advanced biotechnical
equipment business in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the PRC (“Hong Kong”).

During the Year and the Prior Year, the amount and percentage
of the revenue derived from respective geographical segments

were as follow:

Year ended 31 December

5 E

BE_Z-NF+A=+—BLEFEIXK
FED XERPEARLAMBE(HEHD
HEEARAOFEZRIE RERRS
BAEZEZBBR T \FEBA(BEF
BDHBER - A ERUEHLEEE
AMBE(BEDMmSREETREREERE
BEE - &IOIREERLNEERE XS
B e

A—HE AEBECKINKN G EHEEF
PREgal 2 B AN & o &k 4 R 3K & I 15 3
NEWIER  RRHPEEBFTHE(E
BHFFAERSHETHEESRBHER
% o

RAFELBEFE  KEHEWED A
ZWEEBERBEOLLIT:

HFE+-A=+—HILEE

2019 2018
—FE—-hE —ZT-N\F

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR BRlE ARE®T Bkt
The PRC & 59,868 89.9 58,760 93.8
Taiwan =0 2,258 3.4 2,630 4.2
Hong Kong BB 4,063 6.1 942 1.5
Vietnam 5 421 0.6 335 0.5
66,610 100.0 62,667 100.0

The PRC & 7

Funeral business in the mainland China continues to be the
major source of income of the operations of the Group
during the Year and the revenue derived from such market
increased slightly by approximately 1.9% to approximately
RMB59,868,000 as compared with the Prior Year.

In the PRC, the Group is principally engaged in provision of
funeral, cremation and cemetery services in funeral parlours
and funeral service centres under the Group’s management,
pursuant to respective management agreements entered into
with the owners of funeral parlours and funeral service centres.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE R A

The Group has successfully carried out the project under an
agency agreement signed at the beginning of this Year in
relation to the sales of stem cell and immunocytes in the PRC
and recorded a revenue of approximately RMB1,591,000 during
the Year.

Meanwhile, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary,
entered into a joint venture agreement with an independent
third party and Guangdong Aishidai Biotechnology Co.,
Ltd.* (“Aishidai”") (BERYKREMRRBEREERAF), a
30%-controlled company of Mr. Xu lJianchun, an executive
director of the Company, to establish a joint venture company
(the “JV"), which the Group owns 30% of the equity interests
in the JV, to carry out biotechnology business in August 2019.
The JV will focus on the research and development of cell
cultivation, and this move marks a milestone of the Group to
step into the upstream of the cells industrial chain.

Taiwan

Revenue derived from Taiwan market recorded a year on year
decrease by 14.1% during the Year. For the Group’s operation
in Taiwan, the Group is principally engaged in the sales of
funeral services deeds, which was accounted for by the Group
as contract liabilities, and provision of funeral arrangement
services to the deed holders and non-funeral services deed
holders, which are accounted for by the Group as revenue.

Hong Kong

During the Year, the Group, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, has partnered with some biotech companies in
foreign countries, and commenced the sales of advanced
biotechnical equipment business in Hong Kong. The Group
recorded a revenue of approximately RMB3,263,000 from
such business during the Year. Together with the Group's
business in funeral arrangement and consultancy services, the
Group derived revenue of approximately RMB4,063,000 from
Hong Kong market, representing around fourfold increase as
compared with the Prior Year.

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AR L oA

Vietnam

The Group’s operation in Vietnam remained relatively stable and
derived revenue of approximately RMB421,000 (The Prior Year:
RMB335,000) from its sales of burial plots business in Vietnam
for the Year.

FINANCIAL REIVEW

Revenue and gross profit

i

RAFE  AEBRBEZEBEEFEEE
T RARBEEMHEEER Z2KRIZHA
R #421,00070 CGBEFE : A R#335,000

7T) °

B4 %5 [0 BA

W & & & F

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2019
—%-nE
Cost of Gross
Revenue sales profit

Wi HERF £7
RMB'000  RMB‘000  RMB'000

ARETR ARBTRT ARETR

2018
—E-N\F
Gross Gross
profit Cost of Gross profit
margin Revenue sales profit  margin
EH=x W& HERAK X EME
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %

B ARBTT ARETRT ARBTRT B

Funeral services RERTE 61,756 30,842 30,914 50.1% 62,667 34,778 27,889 44.5%
Stem cells and immunocytes  E 4R K %% 41
business % 1,591 562 1,029 64.7% - - - N/AT i A
Sales of advanced HEBMENRR
biotechnical machinery mELE 3,263 3,164 99 3.0% - - - NAT & B
66610 34,568 32,082 481% 62667 34778 27889  445%

The Group generated its revenue from its (i) funeral services,
which  manly involve provision of funeral related service,
including arrangement services and related consultancy
services, provision of funeral and cremation services and sale
of burial plots and tombstones; and (i) elderly care services,
which involve provision of elderly care and related consultancy
services, as well as (i) sales of stem cells and immunocytes,
and advanced biotechnical machinery.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE R A

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
RMB66,610,000 (The Prior Year: RMB62,667,000), representing
an increase of approximately 6.3% as compared with the
Prior Year. The increase was contributed by the new business
segments of sales of stem cell and immunocytes business and
sales of advanced biotechnical machinery in PRC and Hong
Kong, respectively.

For the Group’s funeral services and elderly care services
segment, the cost of sales primarily consists of costs directly
attributable to the provision of its services, which mainly
include: (i) direct labour and staff cost for the funeral services
provided by individuals during the funeral ceremony held
in a funeral parlour or a funeral service centre managed by
the Group; (ii) subcontracting charges for services provided
by the subcontractors in Taiwan; (iii) commission expenses
from the recognition of commission paid to sales agents for
funeral services deeds at the point when the services of the
funeral services deeds are provided; (iv) the management
fee and operating lease charges for hire of funeral parlours
and funeral service centres; and (v) materials used for funeral
ceremonies and cremation services such as fresh flowers, fuel
for the cremation furnace and cost of the goods sold in the
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management in the PRC.

On the other hand, the Group’s business in sales of stem cells
and immunocytes and sales of advanced biotechnical machinery,
the cost of sales primarily consists of the costs of the stem cells
and immunocytes and advanced biotechnical machinery.

Cost of sales remained relatively stable as compared with the
Prior Year. During the Year, the Group recorded cost of sales of
approximately RMB34,568,000 for the Year and approximately
RMB34,778,000 for the Prior Year. The costs of sales decreased
by approximately RMB3,936,000 as the result of the decline
in business of the Group’s funeral services segment, while off-
set by the increase of approximately RMB3,726,000, which was
contributed by the commencement of the sales of stem cells and
immunocytes and advanced biotechnical machinery businesses.

RAFE AEBZHRFZDHDAEAR
#66,610,000 (8 £ F E: A R ¥
62,667,0007T) * BIBEFEILINLI6.3% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AR L oA

Gross profit for the Year was approximately RMB32,042,000
(2018: RMB27,889,000), and gross profit margin increased by
approximately 3.6% to approximately 48.1% (The Prior Year:
44.5%). The increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to
(i) the effective control on the funeral services business segment
that led to higher profit margin as compared with the Prior
Year; and (ii) commencement of the sales of stem cells and
immunocytes business which has higher gross profit margin as
compared with the funeral services segment.

Selling and administrative expenses

Selling expenses for the Year increased by approximately 28.8%
to approximately RMB7,169,000 (The Prior Year: RMB5,567,000)
and accounted for approximately 10.8% (The Prior Year: 8.9%)
of the revenue. The increase was mainly attributable to the
commencement of the sales of stem cell and immunocytes
business during the Year.

Administrative expenses was approximately RMB28,273,000
(The Prior Year: RMB26,163,000), accounting for approximately
42.4% (The Prior Year: 41.7%) of revenue. Administrative
expenses was relatively stable as compared with the Prior
Year, reflecting the results of the effective control measures
implemented by the Group during the Year.

Other operating expenses and finance costs

Other operating expenses was approximately RMB36,000 (The
Prior Year: RMB1,649,000), representing a year on year decrease
of approximately 97.8% due to loss of disposal of property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB1,366,000 recorded
in Prior Year.

Finance costs increased to approximately RMB2,791,000 (The
Prior Year: RMB279,000) as the result of the initial application
of the HKFRS 16 during the Year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was mainly incurred by operations in
the PRC, which was approximately RMB1,236,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB1,108,000) for the Year, representing an increase
of approximately RMB128,000 or approximately 11.6% as
compared with the Prior Year. The increase was mainly
attributable to increase in taxable profit for the Year.
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Impairment of goodwill

During the Prior Year, the Group has provided a goodwill
impairment allowance of RMB2,868,000 for its elderly care
and relevant consultant services in Taiwan as the business
operation did not achieve the expected goals and after the due
consideration of the business prospects by the management.
The carrying amount of goodwill of the relevant business was
then fully impaired.

Loss for the Year

As the result of the cumulative effect from the above-
mentioned factors, the loss attributable to the owners of the
Company for the Year was approximately RMB3,804,000, as
compared with the Prior Year of approximately RMB8,352,000.
Loss per share was approximately RMBO0.51 cents (The Prior
Year: RMB1.12 cents).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB119,216,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB103,467,000), while current and non-current
bank borrowings were approximately RMB1,154,000 and
approximately RMB7,235,000 respectively (The Prior Year:
RMB1,267,000 and RMB8,037,000 respectively). All bank loans
were denominated in New Taiwan Dollars (“NTD"), at prevailing
market interest rate. During the Year, the Group did not use
any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

It is the Group’s policy to adopt a prudent financial
management strategy and maintain a suitable level of liquidity
facilities to meet operation requirements and acquisition
opportunities. As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio
representing the ratio of total borrowing to the total assets of
the Group was approximately 2.9% (The Prior Year: 3.9%).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’'s operations are geographically based in the PRC,
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in RMB, except for certain incomes and expenses
which are denominated in United States Dollars (“USD"), NTD,
Hong Kong Dollars ("HKD") and Vietnamese Dong (“VTD").

EERE

RBAFE  BAREREEREZESES
B KEEEREBEEEEBISEE &
SERERGEZEERABEZRRSE
RT B RELEEARK?2,868,0007T © 8
BESZEEEERECEL2ERE -

FEEE
EREMRAEMERBFHE  KFER
NEEBARGEELN R AR3,804,000
T MBAFEARARBHE AEEEERY
AR #8,352,0007T - BREEHAEARE
051D (BEFE : ARK1129) -

%ﬁ%ﬁ\%ﬁéﬁ&§$%

REBHERBTBEOVPBEMRR - RZF—N1
FHZA=+T—H TEEEERE RIE
ITH AN R 119,216,000 CREEE ¢
AR¥103,467,0007T) © MmE R IETRENH
IRITEED LA ARY154,0007T & 4
ANR®7,235000t (BEFEE : R AAR
#1,267,0007T & A R #8,037,0007T) ° FT
BROTEFAFTAE(HaEDTELIZ
BITMHANEFTE - RAFE  AEEIW
KEATRPETIEEE RER -

AEBEZBRA/FMNE RV EIERRE
VHFBRBE SN AEKRFE - AENEE
EREELERE R_FT-AF+=
A=+—B BEABLXAAKELE
REBEENLLE)N/29% CBEFE
3.9%) °

BE 2= % &) ol Ba

AEEERENE LENEE AR F
R -

BETURARRIUET(ETD  #a
BoArTUATDRBEE(BEED
B REBZEGMBRERAUARE

ER

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER



14

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB AR L oA

It is possible that the value of RMB may fluctuate against that
of USD, NTD, HKD and VTD. The Group's operating results and
financial condition may be affected by changes in the exchange
rates of RMB against USD, NTD, HKD and VTD in which the
Group's revenue and expenses are denominated.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
borrowings, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency
swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purpose.
Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any material interest
and exchange risks.

Further details of the Group’s exposure to the foreign exchange
risk were disclosed in note 34(d) to these consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF INVESTMENTS

(1) Disposal of Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Bau Shan Life")

In 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which, it disposed 40% of equity
interests in Bau Shan Life, its wholly-owned subsidiary in
Taiwan to an independent third party at a consideration
of NTD62,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB13,996,000). The disposal has been completed in
April 2019.

(2)  Establishment of Guangdong Weixiang Biotechnology Co.,
Ltd.

In August 2019, Zhongke Zhengi Biotechnology
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd* (FRIFHAEDEF(ER) BRAQ
7]), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement with an independent third
party and Aishidai, a 30%-controlled company of Mr.
Xu Jianchun, an executive director of the Company, to
establish a joint venture company, named Guangdong
Weixiang Biotechnology Co., Ltd* (ER AR EMEHEE
fRZ2A]) in PRC with registered capital of RMB24,000,000.
The Group owns 30% equity interest in the JV.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other significant
acquisitions and disposal of investments during the Year.

For identification purpose only
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THE NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed approximately
188 employees (The Prior Year: 169 employees). The Group
determines staff remuneration in accordance with prevailing
market salary scales, individual qualifications and performance.
Remuneration packages including performance bonuses and
entitlements to share options are reviewed on regular basis.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December, 2019, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings was approximately RMB19,932,000 (The Prior Year:
RMB19,455,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for property,
plant and equipment amounted to approximately RMB754,000
(The Prior Year: RMB1,545,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any capital
commitments, while as at 31 December 2018, the Group had
capital expenditure contracted but not provided for property,
plant and equipment and investment in a joint venture of
approximately RMB23,000 and RMB6,500,000 respectively.

Saved as disclosed in note 37 to these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other material capital
commitments, material contracts, contingent liabilities or
significant investment plans.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks and operational risks.

The key business and operations risk exposure by the Group
are summarised as follows:

(i)  Slowing down of the economy and customer spending;
(i)  Deterioration of market competition;

(i) Increasing life expectancy and decline in the number of
deceased persons;

(iv)  Non-compliance with any relevant rules and regulations
in the PRC by the owners of funeral parlour and funeral
service centres in the PRC; and

(v)  Reliance on qualified and skilled employees as the
business operations of the Group are service-oriented.

The Group is also exposed to certain financial risk, including
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of financial risks are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those mentioned above which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND

PERFORMANCE

The Group emphasises on environmental conservation.
Although the Group does not establish a formal environmental
policy, various measures have been implemented to encourage
compliance with environmental legislation and promote
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees.
It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings
and electrical appliances. To conserve the environment, the
Company encourages staff to maintain electronic records in
order to reduce paper consumption. The Group will review
its environmental practices periodically and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the
operation of the Group’s businesses.
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In accordance with Rule 17.103 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”), the Company will publish an environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) report within three months after
the publication of this annual report in compliance with the
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

LAWS AND REGULATIONS OF OUR
BUSINESS

As far as the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
of the Company and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group establishes good working relationship with
employees. The quality of the employer-employee relationship
affects each employee’s morale, productivity and ultimately,
the Company's profitability. Each employee’s ideal work
environment varies and the expectations include a relationship
that is mutually respect, encourages open communication and
is free of hostile working conditions. Certain employees have
worked for the Group for over 15 years.

The Group has built a solid track record for providing reliable
and cost competitive funeral services and has a good reputation
with the customers. The Group has also conducted survey of
customers’ opinion on its services with regard to the types of
services which had been provided to the customers and their
comments on the quality of the services provided.

The Group puts strong emphasis on the reliability of suppliers
to meet the needs of our customers. The Group's practice to
make prompt payment to suppliers benefited the Group from
negotiating a better price and maintaining long-term relation
with the suppliers.

During the Year, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or
customers.
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Prospects

The Board believes that the Group’s funeral services business
is rather stable as our business is relatively focused on densely
populated cities in China. On the other hand, with increasing
global investment in biotechnology, and the increasing demand
for medical and health services from the ageing population, the
global biotech industry is rapidly growing. The United States of
America has clearly placed a priority to “support research to
establish the foundations for a 21st century bioeconomy” in its
budget on information technology; while Germany suggested to
make vigorous efforts in developing its bioeconomy, in order to
realise socio-economic restructuring. Relevant policies were also
launched in countries such as Russia, India, Korea and Japan.
Likewise, the Chinese government has gradually implemented
a set of policies to support the biotech industry in China,
thereby driving a long-term development of the industry. As
an important sub-division of the biotech industry, the Chinese
cells industry has been fast-growing in recent years. Taking stem
cells as an example, according to the statistics issued by the
Qianzhan Industry Research Institute, the size of the global stem
cells market was USD63.5 billion in 2015, and has surpassed
USD100 billion in 2018. In 2020, the aforesaid is expected
to reach USD174.5 billion. The Group commenced a diverse
development strategy and actively positioned itself in the cells
industry during the Period. Currently, the Group primarily
engages in the selling of cells products through agency. With
the efforts made by the management team, the business has
achieved substantial progress and has realised some profits.
At the same time, in order to enhance the Group’s research
ability and core competitiveness, the Group made its step into
the business of research and development of cell cultivation
through equity investment in a joint venture company to extend
its business into the upstream of the cells industrial chain, thus
forming a synergistic business system.

Moreover, by fully utilising the strengths of the Chinese market
and resources, the Group strengthened its cooperation with
biotech companies in foreign countries, and is responsible for
selling advanced biotechnical equipment in the Greater China
region as an agent. This will produce a positive effect on
the Group’s operation results, and will also contribute to the
development of the Group’s global business in the future.
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Since January 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus disease
("COVID-19") has impact on the global business environment.
The spread of the COVID-19 around the world has threatened
the life and health of billions of people, and led to temporary
suspension of businesses in the commercial and industrial
sectors of many countries, stirring up volatility in financial
markets. It is difficult to judge how far-reaching the impacts of
this pandemic of the century will have on the global economy.

As the result of the government mandated closures across the
nation and the travel restrictions imposed by different countries
due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group's sales of the stem
cell and immunocytes, and advanced biotechnical machinery
business experienced temporarily shut-down but other business
segments only recorded approximately 25% vyear on year
decrease in revenue during the first quarter of 2020. This
reflected the successful diversification of the Group’s businesses
in mitigating the business risk.

Up to the date of this report, COVID-19 has not caused
material financial difficulties to the Group. Depending on the
development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the date
of this report, further changes in economic conditions for the
Group arising thereof may have impact on the financial results
of the Group, the extent of which could not be estimated as
at the date of this report. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the situation of COVID-19 and react actively to its
impact on the financial position and operating results of the
Group.

However, crisis always brings opportunities. Looking forward,
the Group will keep ploughing the funeral services business
while continuing to develop its cells business. It will continue
to consolidate its new technologies, research talents and
exquisite projects through different means such as collaborative
investment, mergers and restructuring to further deepen
its distribution of the cells industrial chain in the industry.
In addition, the Group will also explore the possibility of
developing other quality projects or businesses with promising
prospects to formulate a business configuration with cell
industry as its core and supplemented by the coordinated
development of other segmented directions. This would improve
the Group’s operating conditions, optimise business structure,
exploit new earnings growth points, and drive sustainable and
quality development of the Group’s business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
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The corporate governance practices of Sino-Life Group Limited
(the “Company”) are based on the principles and the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code"”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”). The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company,
the Company has complied with the Code for the year ended
31 December 2019 (the “Year”), with the exception for the
following deviation:

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. In addition, under the code
provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting and he should also invite
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate) to attend. Certain independent
non-executive Directors, for the time when the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2019 (“2019
AGM"), had other business engagements and thus, were not
able to attend the 2019 AGM. In this regard, the compliance
officer (the “Compliance Officer”) and company secretary (the
“Company Secretary”) of the Company had reminded the
relevant independent non-executive Directors as well as other
current independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Director to attend general meetings of the Company in future
for compliance of code provision A.6.7 as set out in the Code.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to
time to ensure they comply with the statutory requirements and
the Code and align with the latest developments.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with such code of conduct throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A)

Board Composition
For the Year and until the date of this report, the Board
comprises members as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chief executive officer)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Xu Qiang
(Appointed on 1 March 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Sun Fei

Mr. Wang Jun

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group. Pursuant
to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”, and further elaborate
below). The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board’s
appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. There
was change in members of the Board during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report as below:

- Dr. XU Qiang has been appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 March 2019.

The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among the members of the Board, if any,
are set out in the “Biographical Details of the Directors
and Senior Management” on pages from 41 to 45 of this
annual report.
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Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring the
business performance of the Group, as well as preparing
and approving the consolidated financial statements of
the Company. The Directors, collectively and individually,
are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”), for the manner
in which the affairs of the Group are managed and
operated. As and when necessary, the Directors can
access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and in the appropriate circumstances, seeking
of independent professional advice at the Group's
expense to ensure that the Board’'s procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers
delegated to the management for the day-to-day
management and administration functions of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management should report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Group. The Board fully supports the senior management
to discharge its duties and responsibilities in all
circumstances. The Board will review those arrangements
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have brought
in a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and
serving on various Board committees, all independent
non-executive Directors will make various contributions to
the Company.
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The Board normally should schedule four meetings
a year at quarterly intervals and meets as and when
required to discuss the overall business, development
strategy, operations and financial reporting of the
Company. For the Year, the Board held 9 meetings. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles
of Association”). The Directors will receive agenda and
details of items for decision in advance of each board
meeting. The following table shows the attendance of
individual Directors at the Board meetings and general
meetings held during the Year:

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Xu lJianchun (Chairman) HREEEE(ERE)
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai BN A

(Chief executive officer) (7T B 48 %)
Non-executive Director FEBITES
Dr. Xu Qiang (Appointed on fr wEL

1 March 2019) (RZZT—h%F

=A—REZEE)

Independent non-executive BIAFPITES

Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BEREEE
Mr. Sun Fei B OREE
Mr. Wang Jun T #H\E&E

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive
officer (the "CEQ") of the Company should be segregated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing.
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The positions of Chairman and CEO of the Company for the
Year are held separately by Mr. Xu Jianchun and Mr. Liu Tien-
Tsai, respectively. The Chairman is responsible for the Group's
strategic planning and the management of the operations
of the Board, while the CEO takes the lead in the Group's
operations and business development. There is a clear division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO of the
Company which provides a balance of power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Board complies at all times with
the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive Directors
presenting at least one-third of the Board with at least one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications of accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent for the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging
and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, all Directors
have confirmed that they have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training course or
reading relevant materials on the topics related to roles,
functions and duties of a director of a listed company. All
newly appointed Directors before their appointment will be
given relevant guideline materials regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. All Directors have been
updated on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has also established the following committees with
defined terms of reference:

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms
of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.

A)

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the
"Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit
Committee

For the Year, 4 meetings were held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Sun Fei (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 4/4
Mr. Wang Jun 3/4

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, the followings:

making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor of the Company (the “External
Auditor”);
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ii. reviewing and monitoring the External Auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
accounting standard;

iii.  monitoring the integrity of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, annual reports and accounts,
half-yearly reports and quarterly reports;

iv.  liaising with the Board and the senior management
and to meet with the External Auditor;

V. overviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

vi.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
quarterly reports, half-yearly report and annual report
before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee
focused not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing
Rules and the legal requirements in the review of the
Group's quarterly reports, half-yearly report and annual
report. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, considered the re-election of External Auditor,
discussed with the External Auditor about the audit plan
and reviewed the continuing connected transactions of
the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) according to the
relevant provision of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference which consists of three independent
non-executive Directors. The terms of reference setting
out the Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and
the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the
final authority to approve the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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Composition and Meeting Record of the
Remuneration Committee
For the Year, 2 meetings were held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Sun Fei 2/2
Mr. Wang Jun 1/2

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management;

ii. determining the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and senior management;

iii. reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

iv.  reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of
their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed the remuneration package of the Board
members and the senior management of the Company
and determining the remuneration package of Dr. Xu
Qiang, a new Director. No Director was involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the Year are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Remuneration of Senior Management by Band
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 the Code, details of
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the Year were as follows:

REEBONSREEEFH
RIBESTRIEBISIRTRMRX - SAE
BEEKRERAFENFEHMFIBR
SEFHINOT

Number of
employee(s)

EE#HE

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£ 1,000,000 7T

3

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) with written terms of
reference in accordance with requirements of the Stock
Exchange which consists of three independent non-
executive Directors. The terms of reference setting
out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and
the Company’s website.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Nomination Committee

For the Year, 2 meetings were held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman) 1/2
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 2/2
Mr. Sun Fei 2/2

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i reviewing the structure, size, composition and
diversify for consistency (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a
regular basis and making recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes,

i identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

iii.  assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;
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making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
CEO;

making recommendations to the Board on the
policy concerning the diversity of Board members;
and

reviewing and giving full consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy adopted from time to time.

The summary of work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is as follows:

To review the existing Board’s structure, size,
composition and diversity;

To review the Board Diversity Policy;

To review the nomination policy of the Board
("Board Nomination Policy” and further elaborate
below);

To review and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors;

To make recommendations on the retiring Directors
at the 2019 AGM of the Company; and

To make recommendation to the Board for the
appointment of Dr. Xu Qiang as the non-executive
Director.
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Board Nomination Policy

The Company adopted the Board Nomination Policy,
which establishes written guidelines to the Nomination
Committee to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships with reference to the formulated criteria.
The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and
appointment of new Directors.

#&m

The Board, through the delegation of its authority to
the Nomination Committee, has used its best efforts to
ensure that Directors appointed to the Board possess
the relevant background, experience and knowledge in
business, finance and management skills critical to the
Group’s business to enable the Board to make sound
and well considered decisions. Collectively, they have
competencies in areas which are relevant and valuable to
the Group.

Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any
vacancy on the Board has been created or is expected
on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods
for identifying candidates, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and professional
search firms. All candidates, including incumbents and
candidates nominated by Shareholders are evaluated by
the Nomination Committee based upon the Director’s
qualifications. While candidates will be evaluated on
the same criteria through review of resume, personal
interview and performance of background checks. The
Nomination Committee retains the discretion to establish
the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary
based on the composition, skill sets, age, gender and
experiences of the collective Board rather than on
the individual candidate for the purpose of diversity
perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the
Company’s businesses.
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Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account a
variety of factors including without limitation to whether
a candidate has the qualifications, skills, experience and
gender diversity that add to and complement the range
of skills, experience and background of existing Directors
by considering the highest personal and professional
ethics and integrity of the candidates, proven achievement
and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability
to exercise sound business judgment, skills that are
complementary to those of the existing Board, the ability
to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success and such other
factors as it may deem are in the best interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.

During the Year, Dr. Xu Qiang was appointed as new
non-executive Director. Dr. Xu Qiang was appointed by
going through the nomination process and the selection
process stated as above.

The Company shall review and reassess the Board
Nomination Policy and its effectiveness on a regular basis
or as required.

Board Diversity Policy

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual
basis by the Nomination Committee to ensure that
the Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and
experience, and collectively possesses the necessary core
competence for informed decision-making and effective
functioning. The Company adopted the Board Diversity
Policy and recognises the benefits of having diversity in
the composition of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

The Company noted that people from different
background and with different professional and life
experience are likely to approach problems in different
ways and accordingly, members of the Board with
diverse background will bring different concerns and
guestions to the table, and allow the Board to consider a
wider range of options and solutions when deciding on
corporate issues and formulating policies for the Group.
In determining the Board’s composition and selection
of candidates to the Board, the Nomination Committee
will consider factors including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, industry knowledge and
length of service.
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All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the selection
criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board, the business model and specific needs of the
Group. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

#&m

Composition of the Diversified Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
six Directors. The following table further illustrate the
composition and diversity of the Board in terms of age,
length of service with the Group, educational background
and professional experience as of the date of this annual
report:

FMBEEEEZABERAAEST R
A WIRHRIZEERFREA - EF
CEBEEEKNEZ LB A&
ExBEARAEBER - &RKRRTE
BETETBREAZESYREAE
EEHRNERME

AEZntRECESES AN
RAFHAY  EFghA UESA
e TRE-THARAFHREH
EXESHEFR NAKEZREF
H - BFEEILREXLRITEZAE
REREBZITIERE:

Age Group Length of Service Educational Background Professional Experience
BB R EH FEER EE3d
less than  more than Accounting

Name of Directors

EEna

35 to 50 over 50 5 years
BEESRE S0EMLE SEFUT

5 years Science

SERL e

Mr. Xu Jianchun v v/

FRERE

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai 4 v

BN

Dr. Xu Qiang et v/ v/ v/
% B

Mr. Chai Chung Wai v v/

ERBLE

Mr. Sun Fei 4 4 v/
% RiH

Mr. Wang Jun 4 v v/
T H%&

Note: Dr. Xu Qiang was appointed on 1 March 2019.

Following the appointment of Dr. Xu Qiang as the non-
executive Director during the Year, the Nomination
Committee believes that the current composition of the
Board demonstrates a thorough consideration of the
measurable objectives for achieving board diversity.

The Board will take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates
for Board appointments. The Board would ensure that
appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international
and local recommended best practices, with the ultimate
goal of bringing the Board to gender parity.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, all the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. At present, each of Mr. Chai Chung Wai, Mr.
Sun Fei and Mr. Wang Jun, the independent non-executive
Directors, and Dr. Xu Qiang, the non-executive Director have
been appointed for a specific term of three years.

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles
of Association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office at each annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
in every three years. The Directors to retire every year shall
be those appointed by the Board during the year and those
who have been longest in office since their last re-election.
Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for re-
election, the Board shall consider and, if consider appropriate,
recommend such retiring Director to stand for re-election at a
general meeting. A circular containing the requisite information
on such retiring Director will be sent to Shareholders prior to
a general meeting in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

All members of the Board are responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions set out in code provision
D.3.1 of the Code, which include developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
(including those on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements), monitoring the Company’s compliance with
the Code and reviewing the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the External Auditor, Elite
Partners CPA Limited, in respect of audit services amounted to
approximately RMB767,000 (2018: RMB716,000). No non-audit
services were provided for the Year (2018: Nil).
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DIRECTORS" AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

#&r:

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for the period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and on a going concern
basis. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Having made appropriate enquiries, the Board is not aware any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. It is the External Auditor’s responsibility
to form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on
those consolidated financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and for no other
purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of the independent
auditor’s report. The statement of the External Auditor about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 66 to 72 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Wing Sum, Steven, the former Company Secretary, has
resigned as the Company Secretary on 11 June 2019 and Mr.
Chu Kin Ming (“Mr. Chu") was appointed as the Company
Secretary thereafter. Mr. Chu has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the Year.

Biographical detail of Mr. Chu is set out in the section headed

“Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.
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INTERNAL

CONTROL

(a)

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification — Identifies risks that may potentially
affect the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment — (i) Assesses the risks identified by using
the assessment criteria developed by the management;
and (i) Considers the impacts and consequences on the
business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response — (i) Prioritises the risks by comparing the
results of the risk assessment; and (ii) Determines the risk
management strategies and internal control processes to
prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting — (i) Performs ongoing
and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures that
appropriate internal control processes are in place; (ii)
Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and (iii) Reports the results of risk monitoring
to the management and the Board regularly.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to: (i) safequard
assets against misappropriation and disposition; (i) ensure
compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations; (iii)
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information used within the
business or for publication; and (iv) to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
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XERAWME

An acknowledgement by the Board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or losses

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board oversees the overall risk
management of the Group and endeavours to identify,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatements or losses.

The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company has engaged Elite Partners Risk Advisory
Services Limited as its risk management and internal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the
annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the Year. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis.
The scope of review was previously determined and
approved by the Board. The Adviser has reported findings
and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee and
management. The Board and the Audit Committee are
of the view that there are no material internal control
defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser are
properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they
are implemented within a reasonable period of time. The
Board therefore considered that the risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate.
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(e)  The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure
potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The policy regulates the
handling and dissemination of inside information, which
includes: (i) designated reporting channels from different
operations informing any potential inside information
to designated departments; (ii) designated persons
and departments to determine further escalation and
disclosure as required; and (iii) designated persons
authorised to act as spokespersons and respond to
external enquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the "EGM(s)")
shall also be convened on the requisition of two or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may do so
in the same manner, provided that such meeting shall be held
within three months after the deposit of such requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s), as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to nominate a person
for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Articles of Association, no person
shall, unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there has
been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing by a
Shareholder (not being the person to be proposed), entitled to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given,
of his intention to propose such person for election and also
notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected.

#&m

The details of the Company’s procedures for Shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director are set out in the
“Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director” which is available on the Company’s website at
www.sinolifegroup.com.

Procedures for Shareholders to put enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office.

Shareholders or investors can raise questions or provide
comments and suggestions to the Company through the
following means:

By post: Unit 601, 6/F., OVEST,
77 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinolifegroup.com

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019

RERREEATIZEBESNEF

RIBAGERARE16.40F - Eﬂﬂii‘“
%ﬁ?ﬁ%E’JAii’ﬂTTEAEHHxﬁﬁ

BES ﬁiEEﬁtHHFEJ(JEEJt% T?
RZEBEAGBEANBHENE — XL
WHRBRZAGEMAIERER) BEE
REERGLI NG LRENRRCGEZE
REALDUNEHBEMRAWE BHREL
REZBALTZMER  BEIZEHE

RAALZEBNEMBANEALEES

ARFIERBREIRBZEALTZ2EEENERF
15 0 BONA A B Uk (www.sinolifegroup.
omBRERZALTZ2EBEENIEF] -

BROESSREEANER

BRRABERRMARA ZAHER - KR
ERARAR 2 BBREELTELRMARA
NREAIMERBBRBARR Z2EERNBFLE
RoREHEMEREH -

BRESEEEATBEBATHARAARRD
AERREER:

IR - BH

IR

K EEEHTTH

OVEST 61£601ZE
EH ir@sinolifegroup.com



Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make
proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings
under the memorandum of the Company and the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands. However,
Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating
to the operations and management of the Group to be
discussed at Shareholders’ meetings. The proposals shall be
sent to the Company Secretary at the contact details as set
out in the paragraph headed “Procedures for Shareholders to
put enquiries to the Board” above by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should
convene an EGM by following the procedures set out in the
paragraphs headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting” above.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and officers
of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the business
of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Communication Policy”). Under
the Communication Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the Shareholders mainly through general
meetings, including annual general meetings, the Group’s
financial reports (quarterly reports, half-yearly report and
annual report), its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and meetings with investors and analysts.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

#&r:

The Company adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(the “Dividend Policy”) in March 2019, which establishes an
appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending the
dividend payment of the Company.

The Company will declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to the Shareholders after considering the Company’s
ability to pay dividends, which will depend on a number of
factors, including but not limited to:

(i)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(i)  the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iii)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(iv)  the Group's liquidity position;

(v)  the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(vi)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a
dividend, subject to Shareholders’ approval, where applicable.
Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the
form, frequency and amount will depend upon the operations
and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions and other factors of and
affecting the Group. The Board may also consider declaring
interim dividends from time to time.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and
its effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management
EENESREBEYER

(in

As the date of this annual report, the biographical information
of the Group’s Directors and senior management are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Jianchun (353 %), aged 41, was appointed on 22
December 2017 as the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Xu holds
a doctorate degree in economics from Renmin University of
China. Mr. Xu has many years of investment experience in
the biotechnology sector. He has extensive experience in the
biotechnology investment and operation field.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (2| Bt), aged 62, was appointed on 24
February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies, planning, overall operational management and
business development of the Group. Mr. Liu is a director
of all subsidiaries of the Group (including Bau Shan Life
Science Technology Co., Ltd (ZLATREBRMHERA
al) ("Bau Shan”). Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became
its controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also
the team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the
Group's establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in
training its team. Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit
Making Organisation Management and Mortuary Science and
Funeral Service Management from Nanhua University (EJ & X
E)in 2000 and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of
managerial, corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began
his career in funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a
member of Japan Environmental Zhai Yuan Association (B 78
IRIEI 581 ®), the National Funeral Director Association of
the United States and the FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a council
member of Society of Chinese Funeral Education (FFZE R 7 2¢
HEET) and Chinese Society of Life and Death Studies (Ff %=
ASLE=) . Mr. Liu had also been a lecturer holding seminars
on the skills of being a ceremonial master and cosmetology at
the Continuing Education Centre, Ling Tung College (8 £ i
EpEEEHEH S B0 in Taiwan. Mr. Liu is currently an
honorary member of the China Funeral Association (/3 & 7& 2&
#% &) in the PRC.
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Biographical Detalls of the Directors and Senior Management

EEMNENEBECERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Xu Qiang (#R38), aged 42, was appointed on 1 March
2019. Dr. Xu obtained his master’s degree in Materials
Physics and Chemistry from Tsinghua University in 2003. In
2008, he has obtained a doctorate’s degree in Quantitative
Electron Diffraction from Delft University of Technology in
the Netherlands. Since 2012, Dr. Xu has served successively
as Product Manager, Director of Application and is now the
Vice President of Business Development in a nanotechnology
company, focusing on the development of electron microscope
related products, in the Netherlands.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (B8 &), aged 53, was appointed on
16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master degree of
Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004 and of
business administration from the University of Manchester in
December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai has
extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting and
financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary of
Ping Shan Tea Group Limited. He is currently independent non-
executive director of Sino Energy International Holdings Group
Limited (a company listed in Hong Kong, stock code: 1096). Mr.
Chai was an independent non-executive director of Asia Coal
Limited (a company formerly listed in Hong Kong, stock code:
835, and cancelled listing on 18 June 2019) from September
2018 to June 2019.
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Biographical Detals of the Directors and Senior Management

EEREREREZRE

(in

Mr. Sun Fei (3&7), aged 40, was appointed on 23 January
2018. Mr. Sun obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
biophysics from the Department for Intensive Instruction of
Science and Arts of Nanjing University in 2001, and obtained
a doctorate degree in biophysics from the School of Medicine,
Tsinghua University in 2006. Since 2006, he has been a
researcher at the Institute of Biophysics of the Chinese Academy
of Sciences, conducting an independent research on biophysics
and structural biology. Since 2012, he has served as the
director of the Center for Biological Imaging of the Institute
of Biophysics of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, leading the
establishment and operation of the international-class Center
for Biological Imaging. Since 2015, he has been appointed as
professor at the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences,
teaching graduate and undergraduate students. He has
extensive research experience in biophysical technology, cryo-
electron microscopy, biological macromolecular structure and
biological imaging, and has extensive management experience
in the operation and maintenance of research platforms.
In 2009, Mr. Sun was awarded the Shizhang Bei Prize in
Biophysics. In 2013, he was chosen to participate as a teenage
talent in the National Special Support Program for High-Level
Talents, the “Ten Thousand Talent Program”. In 2017, Mr. Sun
was awarded the Outstanding Contribution Award for his
contributions to cryo-electron microscopy in China. In 2017, he
was elected as the managing director of the Biophysical Society
of China and the vice-chairman of the Cryo-electron Microscopy
Branch of the Biophysical Society of China.
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Mr. Wang Jun (E1J), aged 48, was appointed on 17 April
2018. He received his Bachelor of Science in Chemistry and Cell
Biology in 1993 and a Doctor in Polymer Chemistry and Physics
in 1999 from College of Chemistry and Molecular Sciences,
Wuhan University. From 1999 to 2004, he has worked as a
postdoctoral fellow at Johns Hopkins Singapore Pte Ltd (%%
ET S ML ABBR2QA*) and the School of Medicine
at Johns Hopkins University. From 2004 to 2016, he has been
a professor and a doctoral tutor at the University of Science
and Technology of China. Since 2016, he has been a professor
and a doctoral tutor of School of Medicine, Institutes for Life
Sciences, South China University of Technology. He has excellent
research experiences in biomedical polymers, nanobiomaterials
and nanomedicine. He was awarded the “Hundred Talents
Program” by the Chinese Academy of Sciences in 2005, and
was granted the National Science Fund for Distinguished Young
Scholars in 2011. He was selected as a member of “Young and
Middle — Aged Industrial Leaders of Science and Technology”
by Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s Republic
of China in 2014, and was selected as one of the scientific and
technological innovation leaders in “The Plan for Ten Thousand
Talents” (8 A&t2l), the National Plan for the Special Support
of High-level Talents in 2016. In 2016, he was selected as a
fellow of the Royal Society of Chemistry. Currently, he serves
as a fellow of the council of Chinese Society for Biomaterials.

* for identification purposes only
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Biographical Detals of the Directors and Senior Management

EENENEBEECERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chang Hui-Lan (3RE ), aged 53, graduated from
the National Sun Yat-sen University (B3 fF [ K E2) | Taiwan
with a master degree of Executive MBA program in 2012
and joined the Group in 2012 as Department Head of Head
Management Office. Ms. Chang also serves as a director of
Jing Run Limited. Ms. Chang has also obtained the certificate
of IPMA Level D, Certificated Project Management Associate
issued by Taiwan Project Management Association in 2009.
As head of the Department Head of Head Management
Office and also the general manager of Chongging Xibao
Funeral Technology Company Limited and Chongqging Xizhou
Funeral Service Company Limited, Ms. Chang is responsible
for the implementation of the Group’s objectives and business
development, in particular overseeing of personnel, business
analysis and internal audit function of all funeral parlours and
funeral service centres in the PRC and the Group. Ms. Chang is
also the team head of the internal compliance team. She also
has over 9 years of experience in management in respect of
the business and operation in funeral industry.

Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying (B35 &), aged 42, graduated from the
Ming Chuan University (58 X2) with a bachelor degree
of Management in 2001 and joined the Group in June 2001
as an administrative assistant. Ms. Pan has since served the
Group to the present in various capacities. Ms. Pan also serves
as a director of Jing Run Limited and Baoshan. Ms. Pan has
a thorough knowledge and understanding of the Group's
business and operations, and has developed a high level
of proficiency and management ability with respect to her
work with the Group. As head of the funeral services deed
department, Ms. Pan is responsible for marketing and attaining
the sale of funeral services deeds. Ms. Pan has over 15 years of
experience in management in respect of the Group’s business
and operation.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming, aged 39, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 1 June 2019. He is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
he has extensive experiences in the field of accounting and
financial management.
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Directors’ Report
EEe Rt

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as the “Group”) is here to present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group’s principal activities during the Year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments
in the group’s business, can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 8
to 19 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's loss for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 73 to 235.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year (2018: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of
funeral services, none of its customers accounted for more than
10% of its total turnover during the Year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 13% of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 4%.

At no time during the Year, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any material beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

Details of segment reporting for the Year are set out in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There are no movements in either the Company’s authorised
or issued share capital during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 77, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution to owners comprising share premium
account less accumulated losses, amounted to approximately
RMB28,166,000.

DONATIONS

No charitable donations was made by the Group during the
Year (2018: Nil).
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CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

There was change in members of the Board during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report as below:

- Dr. XU Qiang has been appointed as a non-executive Director
with effect from 1 March 2019.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Jianchun
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Non-executive Director
Dr. Xu Qiang
(Appointed on 1 March 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Sun Fei

Mr. Wang Jun

According to the requirements of article 16.2 of the articles of
association of the Company (the "Articles of Association”), the
Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting.

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. Mr. Xu Jianchun and Mr. Sun Fei
will retire by rotation in accordance with article 16.18 of the
Article of Association, and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM").
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, biographical details of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on
pages from 41 to 45 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Mr. Xu Jianchun (“Mr. Xu"), an executive Director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 22 December 2017, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
two months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 9 September 2009, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Dr. Xu Qiang, a non-executive Director, has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 1 March 2019, which continues thereafter
until terminated by either party giving not less than three
month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Chai Chung Wai, an independent non-executive Director,
has renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 9 September 2018,
which can be terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Sun Fei, an independent non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years from 23 January 2018, which can be terminated by
either party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing
to the other party.

Mr. Wang Jun, an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years from 17 April 2018, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month'’s
notice in writing to the other party.
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None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM, has a service agreement which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments for the Year are set out in note 8
and note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
under the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO")), which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests and short
positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Aggregate long positions in the Shares

Directors’ Report
£

KRR ziFE#E

Approximate percentage

Number of of the issued share

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held capital of the Company
HEATERTRE

e g BEME Fit #% % 3 8L B R EON=R 074
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological Beneficial Owner 220,475,000 29.69%

Technology Company Limited
EEBREDREABERIQF Eamla A
Note: The Company's Director Mr. Xu is also a director of Hong Kong
Gaogqi Biological Technology Company Limited in which he
holds 25% equity interest.

Save as disclosed above and the Directors’ interests as
disclosed in “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or its Associated Corporations”, no person
had interests in shares or short positions in the shares of
the Company or underlying shares which are required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or parent company was a party and in which a
Director or his connected entity had, directly or indirectly, a
material interest subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or its Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Agency Agreement

On 31 January 2019, Zhongke Guangju Cell Therapy
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* (FRIEBRMEEB(ER)GRAA)
("Zhongke Guangju”), a company indirectly held as to 30%
equity interest by Mr. XU Jianchun (“Mr. Xu”) and his Associates
through a controlled company, entered into an agency
agreement (the "Agency Agreement”) with Zhongke Zhenqi
Biotechnology (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* (FFRIZH AR (&
H)HRAT]) (“Zhongke Zhengi”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Pursuant to the Agency Agreement, Zhongke
Guangju has agreed to engage Zhongke Zhengi as a distribution
agent to market development and market promotion of stem
cells and immunocytes in the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau and
also providing market feedback to Zhongke Guangju for three
years commencing from 31 January 2019.

Mr. XU, the chairman of the Board and executive Director of
the Company, and his Associates indirectly hold through a
controlled company 30% of the shares in Zhongke Guangju.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Agency
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors estimate that for the period from the effective
date of the Agency Agreement to 31 December 2019, the
year ending 31 December 2020 and the year ending 31
December 2021, the aggregate value of the products and/
or services provided to Zhongke Zhengi under the Agency
Agreement by Zhongke Guangju will not exceed RMB8,000,000
(approximately HK$9,290,000), RMB8,500,000 (approximately
HK$9,871,000) and RMB8,500,000 (approximately
HK$9,871,000) respectively.
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The annual cap of the aggregate value of the products and/
or services provided to Zhongke Zhengi under the Agency
Agreement by Zhongke Guangju set by the Board for the period
from 31 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 is RMB8,000,000
(approximately HK$9,290,000). During the year ended 31
December 2019, the total amount incurred by Zhongke Guangju
to Zhongke Zhengi pursuant to the Agency Agreement was
approximately RMB1,591,000. Further details of this continuing
connected transaction are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 31 January 2019 and 1 February 2019.

The Company has adopted the following internal control
measures to ensure that the continuing connected transaction
is conducted in accordance with the pricing policy and terms
of the Agency Agreement as well as the GEM Listing Rules:

(i)  The Company’'s finance department will from time to
time obtain proof of market prices of products and/or
services provided by Zhongke Guangju. All quotations
and/ or prices will be filed as reference prices for the
continuing connected transaction to ensure that prices
for products and/or services provided to Zhongke Zhengi
by Zhongke Guangju do not exceed general market price
and prices for identical or similar for products and/or
services provided to other independent third party agents
by Zhongke Guangiju;

(i) The Company’s finance department will monitor and
ensure that the continuing connected transaction is
conducted in accordance with the terms of the Agency
Agreement and do not exceed the annual caps of the
continuing connected transaction;

(iii)  The Board will continue to review on a regular basis the
Group's internal control system and its effectiveness; and

(iv)  The Company will appoint an external auditor pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules to conduct annual reviews of the
continuing connected transactions and its annual caps.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforesaid continuing connected transaction and confirmed that
the transaction has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing the
auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules as follows, a copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the continuing connected transaction
has not been approved by the Board;

(2) nothing has come to the auditor's attention that
causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transaction was not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transaction; and

(3) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the continuing connected transaction
has exceeded the respective maximum aggregate annual
value as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’'s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Formation of a Joint Venture Agreement

On 2 August 2019, Zhongke Zhengi, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV
Agreement”) with Mr. Jiang Tao (“Mr. Jiang”) (an Independent
Third Party) and Guangdong Aishidai Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*
(BERVBEREME AR EE AR (“Aishidai”) (@ connected
person of the Company) to establish a joint venture company
(the “JV Company”) in the PRC to carry out biotechnology
business.

Mr. Jiang is an Independent Third Party. Aishidai is a
30%-controlled company of Mr. Xu, who is the chairman of
the Board and executive Director of the Company, Aishidai
is an associate of Mr. Xu and thus a connected person of
the Company. Since all the relevant percentage ratios (as
defined under Rule 19.07 under the GEM Listing Rules) are
less than 25% and some of them are more than 5% and the
consideration is less than HK$10,000,000, the formation of
the JV Company under the JV Agreement is a discloseable
and connected transaction of the Company and is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt
from the circular (including independent financial advice) and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Further details of the JV Agreement
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27
September 2019 and 4 October 2019.

The Directors confirm that the Company has, where applicable,

complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

* for reference only
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Discloseable Transaction and Connected Transaction
in relation to the Acquisition of the sale equity
in the Target Company and entering into the VIE
Agreements

On 26 November 2019, FIIEREFEVRI ARG % (F
fR& %) Shenzhen Fuying Daxin Biotechnology Partnership
(Limited Partnership)* (the “Vendor”), the Company (the
“Purchaser A”) and HFEIFELEMRZORID B R QA
Zhongke Xunda Biotechnology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser B”), entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Purchasers conditionally agreed to
acquire the sale equity, including 32% equity interest in &85
BRI AR AR ("GZRT"), at the aggregated consideration
of HK$28,880,000 (the “Acquisition”).

BERXBEREME KABREMF QA Guangdong Xtem
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*, a company established in the PRC with
limited liability (the “Target Company”), GZRT, and the PRC
equity owners (the “PRC Equity Owners”), which consisting of
the Vendor, &39I Th /@ 5% & E & 12 B R 2 5] Shenzhen Nanyue
Asset Management Co., Ltd.*(a company established in the
PRC with limited liability) (the “PRC Shareholder A”), J&3JII71EB
B AKSFAREIL AR AR Shenzhen Yebao Micro-Nano
Chip Research Institute Co., Ltd.* (a company established in
the PRC with limited liability) (the “PRC Shareholder B”), 2
ITHEAMKREEEEFR AT, Shenzhen Houpu Investment
Management Co., Ltd.* (a company established in the PRC
with limited liability) (the “PRC Shareholder C"), and B &5
(Mr. Lan Zhinan) (“Mr. Lan"”), will implement a reorganization
and enter into the variable interest entity agreements (the
“VIE Agreements”), pursuant to which GZRT will have effective
control over the finance and operation of the Target Company
and will be entitled to 95% economic interests and benefits
generated by the Target Company.

* for reference only
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Upon Completion, the Company would be interested in 32% of
the issued share capital of GZRT and would in turn be interested
in 30.4% of the issued share capital of the Target Company.
The Target Company will become an indirect subsidiary of the
Company and the financial results of the Target Company will
be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of
the Company, after taking into account the key terms stipulated
in the shareholders agreement of GZRT. In the shareholders
agreement of GZRT, for the purpose of having effective
enforcement of the VIE Agreements and the protection of the
interest of the Purchasers, all other shareholders of GZRT have
agreed to adhere to the management and investment decision
of Purchaser B and Purchaser B will appoint the sole director to
GZRT with a supervisor to be appointed by its 51% controlling
shareholder.

Mr. Xu, being a director of the Company, is also a substantial
shareholder who owns 33% interest in PRC Shareholder C,
which holds 51% interest in GZRT. In this connection, GZRT is
an associate of Mr. Xu and the acquisition of the interest of
GZRT from the Vendor will constitute a connected transaction
of the Company pursuant to GEM Listing Rules 20.26.

As Mr. Xu is also a controlling shareholder, a director, the
chairman of the board of directors and the legal representative
of PRC Shareholder A, which is the general partner controlling
the daily operation of the Vendor, the Vendor is therefore a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Acquisition and
an exclusive consultancy services agreement (the
Consultancy Services Agreement”, which is entered into
between GZRT and the Target Company) constitute connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting, announcement
and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules.

“Exclusive

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
Acquisition under the Sale and Purchase Agreement is more
than 5% but less than 25%, the Acquisition constitutes a
discloseable transaction pursuant to Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules and is subject to reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 19 and Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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The Company will apply to the Stock Exchange for a waiver
from (i) setting a maximum aggregate annual cap for the service
fee payable by the Target Company to GZRT under the relevant
VIE Agreements, and (ii) fixing a term of the VIE Agreements
not exceeding three years pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

A circular containing, among other things, information relating
to (a) Sale and Purchase Agreement; (b) VIE Agreements;
(c) a letter of recommendation from the independent Board
committee; (d) a letter of the independent financial adviser;
and (e) a notice of the extraordinary general meeting will be
despatched to the Shareholders on or before 31 May 2020.
Further details of this discloseable transaction and connected
transaction are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 26 November 2019, 16 December 2019, 9 January
2020, 2 March 2020, 9 April 2020 and 1 June 2020.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business of the Group during the Year are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, all other related party transactions
and balances did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN A COMPETING

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) is interested in a business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, and is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2019 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they had
complied with such code of conduct throughout the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of
the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme from 24 August 2009 (the “Date of Adoption”) (that
is from 24 August 2009 to 23 August 2019). The Share Option
Scheme has been expired on 23 August 2019 and so no further
options can be granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all aspect. The
major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

(@  The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group as
incentive or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

(b)  The participants include (i) any employees; (i) any
executive Directors; (iii) any non-executive Directors
(including, without limitation, independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries;
and (iv) any consultants, advisers, agents, partners or
joint-venture partners of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries who, in the absolute discretion of the
Board (the “Eligible Participants”), has contributed or may
contribute to the Group.

() The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of that particular option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share on the offer date of the
particular option.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not, in the absence of shareholders’
approval, in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the Date of Adoption of the
Share Option Scheme. The Board may seek approval by
the shareholders of the Company at general meeting
to refresh the 10% limit. However, the total number
of Shares available for issue under exercise of options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
in these circumstances must not exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the refreshment of the 10% limit.

On 27 May 2010, the shareholders of the Company had
approved the refreshment of 10% limit of the grant
of options under the Share Option Scheme. The total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 74,250,000 Shares, representing 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of
this annual report.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue
from time to time and the maximum number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted to each Eligible
Participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue for the time being in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of offer of the grant.
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An offer shall be made to Eligible Participants in writing
and shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible
Participants concerned for a period of 30 days from the
date upon which it is made provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of
the Date of Adoption of the Share Option Scheme or the
termination of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by an Eligible Participant concerned
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such
Eligible Participant when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the Eligible
Participant, together with a non-refundable remittance in
favour of the Company of HKD10 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by the Company, within
such time as may be specified in the offer (which shall
not be later than 30 days from the date of offer).

The exercisable period of any option granted under the
Share Option Scheme should be determined by the Board
upon grant of the share option but in any event should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the share
option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in
the circumstances by giving notice in writing to the
Company stating that the option is thereby exercised
and the number of shares in respect of which it is so
exercised. Each such notice must be accompanied by a
non-refundable remittance for the full amount of the
subscription price for shares in respect of which the notice
is given.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Details of the share options movements during the Year under
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Directors’ Report
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Number of share options

EREYE

Exercise Balance as at Granted Balance as at

Name/category Date of grant price per 1 January  during the 31 December

of participants of share option Share Exercise period 2019 Year 2019

RZB-hE RZB-hE

-A-H X4 +=-RA=t+-H

cEEEE /B BHUBRELY BRITHEE THEHEE &% R Z&H%

Continuous contract 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 6,332,000 - 6,332,000

employees

BEANER “Z-Z5ZA+-H 1188x —E-ZFENRAT-RE-Z-TF-A+-H

Consultants 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 41,900,000 - 41,900,000
B “Z-Z5ZA+-H 18T —ET-ZFA\A+-HEZZZZF-At+-H

48,232,000 - 48,232,000

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable starting E‘JE —EFEREZERENS  #E

half year from the grant date. The exercisable period is 10 years
from the date of grant of the share option.

During the Year, no share option was lapsed, cancelled,
exercised and granted.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 20
to 40 of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year, a permitted indemnity provision that meets
the requirements specified in section 469(2) of the Companies
Ordinance for the benefit of the Directors is in force.

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty; provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty by any of the Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its Directors and officers during
the Year and the indemnity provision and Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance remains in force as of the date of
this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 236 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year comply with
applicable reporting standards, GEM Listing Rules, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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AUDITOR

On 15 August 2018, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited resigned as the
auditor of the Company and Elite Partners CPA Limited was
then appointed as the auditor of the Company thereafter. The
consolidated financial statements for both the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019 have been audited by Elite Partners
CPA Limited. Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire at the end
of the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director

22 June 2020
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elite
< partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the members of
Sino-Life Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 73
to 235, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

FREEIR

Valuation of land and buildings

T REFMHE

The carrying amount of Group’s land and buildings as at
31 December 2019 was approximately RMB25,307,000.
The land and buildings are stated at re-valuated amount
which was determined based on valuation performed
by independent professional external valuer using the
direct comparison approach.

EXEEN L EREFR-_ZE-AFT_A=T—0K
AREE X A A R%25307,0007T ° + i RAEF SR
THIE BB LRI BLEEMEEMER
BEEREEBOEETOHMEHEREE -

The valuation of land and buildings require the
application of significant judgement and estimation in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology
to be used, use of subjective assumptions and various
unobservable inputs. The valuation is sensitive to
underlying assumptions applied by the valuers such as
market comparable used and the capitalisation rate may
have a significant impact to the valuation.
HEITHWREFCBEERTERERAZEZMEET
ECERIEBRRALRETEZIBEERARESS
EF R EBRAEG GG - HEHEEMEAZED
BR(MAATSERER B BERMMELERR g
HEEELEEATE -
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How the matter was addressed
in our audit

EfPEERAMEENSE

Our major audit procedures in relation to the
valuation of land and building included the
following:
AZEMARL U EEFHENTIERFEFE
ETAEAE:

o We assessed competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuers and read the terms of
engagements of the valuer to determine
whether there were any matters which might
affect their objectivity or impede their scope
of work.

Rz BB B IEEEEMER - 88
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M GBRTIEREZEE -

o We assessed the valuation methodology
(direct comparison approach), assumptions
and estimates used against general market
practice for similar property type.

KAz BRDH HE T E(EELBOR) RPAE
A& &G EREUERN Y EN—RT
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o We discussed with the valuer on the valuation
process, the valuation methodology and
the significant judgement and assumptions
applied.

RZBA R EBIE REHERAERE
RAE R RR BB ERMETH R -

Based on the above, we found the methodology
used in preparing the valuation was appropriate and
the key assumptions were supportable in light of
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charge with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charge with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charge with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F., 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Lock Kwong Hang, Simon
Practising Certificate Number: PO6735
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive |ncome

AR m N EMEE WS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#E-ZE—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-nE —N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5E ARETR ARBTT
Revenue W 25 4 66,610 62,667
Cost of sales EERA N (34,568) (34,778)
Gross profit ERH 32,042 27,889
Fair value gain on investment KEMEZ A FERE
properties 16 - 217
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial — 18E A AFETAEZR
assets designated at fair value (MR FEFTAEZ D)
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") LHBEEZATE
W, (EE) 19 3,831 (2,792)
Other income H b A 5 1,188 3,797
Selling expenses HE R X (7.169) (5,567)
Administrative expenses TR (28,273) (26,163)
Impairment losses under expected 81 # & & ~ 78 £
credit loss model on financial EEBERAVETZ
assets 1B B 18 23 (1,220) -
Other operating expenses Hih &M (36) (1,649)
Impairment of goodwill RSN RED 20 - (2,868)
Impairment loss on an associate ~ — & QA2
AE B 18 18 (395) -
Loss from operations wEEBE (32) (7,136)
Finance costs ELE= N 6(a) (2,791) (279)
Share of loss of associates LB E AR E 1R 18 (105) -
Loss before taxation Br#iai 518 6 (2,928) (7,415)
Income tax expense FriS Bl X 7 (1,236) (1,108)
Loss for the year EEEBE (4,164) (8,523)
Other comprehensive income/ HitZmEUlsE ~
(expense) (FAXx)
Item that will not be reclassified to 15T & E# 7 B E 18w
profit or loss: HIHEA -
Surplus on revaluation of land THREFZ
and buildings Hh AR 397 598
Item that may be reclassified HEAgegET 7 EE
subsequently to profit or loss: B i) EE :
Exchange differences arising MEBINEBFES 2
on translation of foreign e X =5
operations 4,385 (1,355)
Other comprehensive income/ EEHh2EIZE
(expense) for the year, net of (BX)
income tax (JOBRFRTBL) 10 4,782 (757)
Total comprehensive income/ FEZEKZE (FX)
(expense) for the year, net of 423 (HOKRFTEH)
income tax 618 (9,280)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Oher Comprehensive Income

reiEm MEMEEW S

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE - —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—®-n¥E  —TN\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

BT 3 ARBTT ARETTT
Loss for the year attributable to: LI FALFEEEEEIS:

Owners of the Company KABHAB A (3,.804) (8,352)
Non-controlling interests FJEVE R @ (360) (171)
(4,164) (8,523)
Total comprehensive income/ K TATREEZEZE -
(expense) attributable to: (X4
Owners of the Company ViIN/NEIEZ R =N 710 (9,338)
Non-controlling interests IR ER (92) 58
618 (9,280)
Loss per share BliEEE
Basic and diluted BEARK#E 11 RMB(0.51) cents RMB(1.12) cents

AR (0.51)% ARE(112)5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sra ISR LR

As at 31 December 2019 W -_ZE—hF+_-_A=+—H

2019 2018
- —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E AREBTR ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BER&E 14 32,417 32,828
Right-of-use assets FERREEE 27 36,528 -
Investment properties wEME 16 6,622 6,505
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERNRK 15 - 2,737
Intangible assets mEEE 17 2 2
Interest in associates & R A & 18 - -
Goodwill Bk 20 - -
Deposits for hire of funeral HAEEEREE
parlours and funeral services i e g
centres 23 1,000 1,000
76,569 43,072
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Financial assets designated at BEREKEAFETA
FVTPL BacWBEE 19 38,336 33,320
Development and formation costs 5% [ ik 37 Ak 4K 21 5,292 5,230
Inventories & 22 966 1,085
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E g U GRIE 23 52,778 50,312
Prepaid lease payments FEMNEENR 15 - 67
Cash and bank balances He NBITE 24 119,216 103,467
216,588 193,481
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBERE
Trade and other payables g5 N HAth e 508 25 17,660 15,623
Contract liabilities GHBE 26 97,901 96,320
Lease liabilities HE&aE 27 3,796 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 1,154 1,267
Taxation liabilities MIEEE 29 4,002 4,258
Amount due to a director B —REEZHE 35(e) 789 723
Amount due to an ultimate JE5F — R B AR R R
holding company NR)Z FRIA 35(f) 8,664 4,344
Provisions B A 30 3,044 2,975
(137,010) (125,510)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Contract liabilities BHEE 26 199 197
Lease liabilities HEaffE 27 31,064 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 7,235 8,037
(38,498) (8,234)
NET ASSETS EEFE 117,649 102,809
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Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ara MG R

As at 31 December 2019 R -ZE—hF+_-_A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E—-nE —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AREBTR AREFT
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners AAFHEHAEGELR
of the Company
Share capital fig A& 31 69,218 69,218
Reserves i 32 56,811 35,997
126,029 105,215
Non-controlling interests =R (8,380) (2,406)
TOTAL EQUITY HiREE 117,649 102,809

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 22 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Xu Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director
HEEF
FTEFRHNTESF

The notes on pages 81 to 235 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SN

—A= N/

V=N
i

% 8 %

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATARFAEE
Foreign
Statutory Properties currency Share-based
Share Merger Statutory surplus revaluation translation  compensation Non-
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated controlling
Note 31  Note 32 (b)(i)  Note 32 (b)(ii)  Note 32 (b)(iii)  Note 32 (b)(iv)  Note 32 (b)(v)  Note 32 (b)(vi)  Note 32 (b)(vii) losses Sub-total interests Total
EERE HEER SEER  URBBERZ
&3 RHER SHER EERE L1 L1 L1 HRERE
K31 B #32(b)(1) Winb)i)  WE206)  WEnRe  KEReW)  KERbv)  KE32b)i) RitBH Mt EERER a8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
At 1 January 2018 R=§-\§-B-B 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 1,550 2,350 (17.775) 7345 (153,297) 114,553 (2,464) 112,089
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - - - - (835 (8352 (i 8523
Surplus on revaluation of

land and buildings - - - - - 598 - - - 598 - 598
Exchange differences arising L E S EBFHES

on translation of foreign LEAER

operations - - - - - - (1,584) - - (1,584) 229 (1,355)
Other comprehensive A 2EkE/

income/(expense) (A%) - - - - - 598 (1,584) - - (986) 29 (757)
Total comprehensive income/ A 2 AL/

(expense) for the year (A%)8% - - - - - 598 (1,584) - (8352 (9,338) 58 (9,280)
Lapse of share options granted £ £ R E XM - - - - - - - (318) 318 - - -
Transfer of properties REEREERLIER

revaluation reserve fo EEVES

accumulated losses upon FERZEAER

disposal of land and

building held for own use - - - - - (347) - - 347 - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZ¥-\F

+ZA=t+-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 1550 2,601 (19,359) 7,007 (160,984) 105,215 (2,406) 102,809
At 1 January 2019 RZ§-1E

-B-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 1,550 2,601 (19,359) 7021 (160,984) 105,215 (2,406) 102,809
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (3,804) (3,804) (360) (4.164)
Surplus on revaluation of

land and buildings - - - - - 397 - - - 397 - 397
Exchange differences arising B G N EBHES

on transhation of foreign pdi 353

operations - - - - - - 4117 - - 4117 268 4,385
Other comprehensive income £ £ 2 E i & - - - - - 397 41 - - 4,51 268 4,782
Total comprehensive income/  FE2 AN/

(expense) for the year )E: - - - - - 397 4117 - (3,804) 0 92) 618
Recognition of non-controling 7 &

interests upon partial

disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 20,104 20,104 (5,882) 14,222
At 31 December 2019

+ZA=t-8 69,218 20,633 (16,261) 790 1,550 2,998 (15,242) 7021 (144,684) 126,029 (8,380) 117,649
TEEGEEERARN —BE-AFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\/T\/\Eﬁi /ﬁ%i‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE - —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E—NnE —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARETR AREEF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES WEXET
Loss before taxation B %4 A1 &5 1B (2,928) (7,415)
Adjustments for: o
Finance costs =N 6(a) 2,791 279
Depreciation of property, plant - BELREE
and equipment e 6(c) 2,011 2,298
Depreciation of right-of-use CRAEEAERE
assets 6(c) 4,750 -
Amortisation of prepaid T8 1 16 & 5} 18 # 85
lease payment 6(d) - 67
Impairment losses recognised on MEHERHIE
trade receivables R FHEEE 6(e) 383 -
Impairment losses recognised on Bt i JE W KB
other receivables MR REFE 6(e) 837 -
Reversal of impairment losses on 2 5 W IE
trade receivables 18 & 18 B 5 5 - (1,494)
Surplus on revaluation of land T RIEF B &R
and buildings 5 - (8)
Impairment loss recognised on M — A AR R
an associate ZREEE 6(e) 395 -
Impairment loss recognised on PR R 2R EEE
goodwill 6(e) - 2,868
Fair value gain on investment REMELZRNTFE
properties W 2= 16 - (217)
Gains on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment B pA & 5 (24) (1,366)
Interest income A B U A 5 (547) (314)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial EEAERAFE
assets designated as at FVTPL AR U
BEE2NVE
W)/ EE 19 (3.831) 2,792
Amortisation of intangible EmEEEHE
assets 6(d) - 497
Share of loss of associates JEMR B E AR E 18 105 -
Net exchange gain B 5 U & % 58 5 (1 (83)
6,869 5,319
3,941 (2,096)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Eti_ 2

/\\/ \

i &

mE 2}

—NFEFTZA=+—HLLHFEE

2019 2018
—E-h=E —\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETR ARMEFTT
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL 2 EZ &2
Decrease in inventories FE R 126 27
Increase in trade and other B 5 & H e Y5k I8
receivables H#0 (2,194) (5,615)
Decrease in financial assets BERERAFEEGARE
designated as at FVTPL w2 A ER D - 1,821
Increase in development and e 8% I RS AR AN 35 0
formation costs - 4)
Increase in trade and other 85 N H A E R FRIB
payables #n 1,917 5,525
Decrease in receipts in advance tﬁﬂﬂl R IE R - (92,545)
(Decrease)/increase in contract AHEaBECRD), i
liabilities (598) 94,021
Increase in amount due to an fﬁﬁ‘”@ /Nl
ultimate holding company SKIEIE N 4,174 4,176
Increase in amount due to FE— B E B RIBIL N
a director 49 704
3,474 8,110
CASH GENERATED FROM HEMBHE
OPERATIONS 7,415 6,014
Income taxes paid in EXfREARAMEA
the People’s Republic of China (IR D Z s
("PRC") 29(a) (1,492) (1,024)
(1,492) (1,024)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM HEXBHRERLFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5,923 4,990
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Purchases of property, plant and BEVE BEX
equipment Bigis] 14 (754) (1,545)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BELZBE
property, plant and equipment 2 P53 3R 208 3,717
Proceed from disposal of a portion — H & — 3F1§WE§?
equity interest in a non-wholly- NAEIM B D IR HE 2 BT
owned subsidiary B RIE 14,038 -
Interest received 2 UF B 547 314
Capital injection in associates " 5%%"73’]& & (500) -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING BRETBMBHREFHE
ACTIVITIES 13,539 2,486
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE 24(b) (1.112) (1,067)
Interest paid on bank borrowings B RITEER & 24(b) (264) (455)
Repayment of principal portion of EHEHRE&GEAE IS
lease liabilities 24(b) (6,139) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RIEEHFARLFE
ACTIVITIES (7,515) (1,522)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE - —NF+=-A=

+—BILFE
2019 2018

—g-n% —NE

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 AREFR ARBTT

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RE&ERBEEEEMEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS pEE 11,947 5,954
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W—A—BzHR&¢RF&

AT 1 JANUARY LEY 103,467 98,186
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE P EZREEH 2 2&

RATE CHANGES 3,802 (673)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MR+Z-—A=+—HBzZH&

AT 31 DECEMBER RIBEEEY 119,216 103,467
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HarRBE2EEME R

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  4#f

Cash and bank balances He RBITHEES 24 119,216 103,467
The notes on pages 81 to 235 form part of these financial %818 % ZBSEZW TAZERAVBW

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ R I

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Cayman Islands Companies Law. Its shares are listed on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009. Its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Xu Jianchun.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
provision of funeral and related services in the PRC,
Taiwan and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
the PRC (“Hong Kong”), sale of burial plots and
tombstones and provision of cemetery maintenance
services in Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”) and
provision of elderly care and related consultancy services
in Taiwan. The Company and its subsidiaries are herein
collectively referred to as the “Group”. The addresses
of the Company’s registered office and principal place
of business are The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre,
Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box 32052,
Grand Cayman KY1-1208, Cayman Islands and Unit 601,
6/F., Ovest, No. 77 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong respectively.

The Group has commenced a new business related to
stem cells and immunocytes business and sales of advance
biotechnical machinery business in Hong Kong and the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the "Director(s)”) of the Company on 22 June 2020.

1.

—BR&H
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ETNFAANBERT BB ARSM
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((HEDHEEEREMRIEHRHE
BEEERE  UERAERMHERE
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A EEREEEEME 2 MU
R AThe Grand Pavilion Commercial
Centre, Oleander Way, 802 West Bay
Road, P.O. Box 32052, Grand Cayman
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Notes to the Financial Statements

vA7 L+ 2
B 755 3 2= P =T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

vAr 1 =
B 7% 3 2= BT =T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in
associates.

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (“US$"). The functional currencies are Taiwan
dollars (“NTD"), US$, Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and Vietnamese dong (“VND") for subsidiaries
incorporated/established in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Vietnam respectively. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise
indicated, which is different from the functional
currency of the Company as majority of the Group's
transactions are denominated in RMB.

(b)

RS ER S

BE_T-NFT-_A=1t—H
LTEEZHEAMBRREBERN
RAKREMB AR RAEER

B A 23 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

FEETBR(E)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties;
- freehold land and buildings; and

- financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

(Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income or loss for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company. Total
comprehensive income or loss of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale).

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investments. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivables.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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(Continued)

(d)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwvill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

(Continued)

(e)

()

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate or joint venture that forms part of
the group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group's share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see note 18). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or building
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment property (Continued)

Investment property is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value, unless
they are still in the course of construction or
development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease, and the same accounting policies
are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.

Property, plant and equipment
The freehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed by qualified valuers
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount of these assets does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

The other property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in
other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same
asset immediately prior to the revaluation;
and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit
or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

- freehold land is not depreciated;

- buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and

(Continued)

- buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date

of completion;

equipment

- Leasehold
improvements

3 to 10 years or over
the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

- Furniture, fixtures 2 to 5 years
and office
equipment

- Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during

the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from
the properties revaluation reserve to accumulated
losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and
(Continued)

The Group transfers a property from property, plant
and equipment to investment property when there
is a change in use to hold the property to earn
rentals or land for capital appreciation rather than
for own use in the ordinary course of business,
which is evidenced by the commencement of
an operation lease to another party. The Group
accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment” up to the date of change in use.

equipment

(h)(A) Lease (Policy applicable prior to 1 January

2019)

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the
Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as an investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance
lease; and
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(Continued)

(h)(A) Lease (Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the

Group (Continued)

- land held for own wuse under an
operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges under HKAS
17

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(h)(A) Lease (Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019) (Continued)
(iii) Leasehold land for own use

When the Group makes payments for
a property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump
sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis except for
those that are classified and accounted for
as investment property under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and the building elements, the entire property
is generally classified as if the leasehold land
is under finance lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EE:THBE(E)
(Continued)

(h)(B) Lease (Policy applicable from 1 January (he)HE(B=2—HNF—A—H

2019)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception
or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

As a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of leasehold properties that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases, the Group recognises
right-of-use assets at the commencement date
of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(h)(B) Lease (Policy applicable from 1 January

2019) (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
in “property, plant and equipment”, the same
line item as that with which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned. Right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are presented within
“investment properties”.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 1% ¥ 3= B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EE:THBE(E)
(Continued)

(h)(B) Lease (Policy applicable from 1 January (he)HE(B=2—HNF—A—H

2019) (Continued) HEANEE)(E)
As a lessee (Continued) 1EE RN (E
Lease liabilities HEEE

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed lease payments
(including in-substance fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability (using the effective interest
method) and by reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment; and

o the lease payments change due to changes
in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(h)(B) Lease (Policy applicable from 1 January

2019) (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

As a lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor
with respect to its investment properties to other
parties.

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.

Rental income from leases is recognised in other
income on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging a lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

vAr 1 =
B 7% 3 2= BT =T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

FEETBR(E)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):
(Continued)

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ R I

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent

measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and
debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade and other receivables, and financial guarantee
contracts). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life
of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12 months
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % i 5% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 g 2% BT R T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the

effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group). Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that
a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019

2.

FEETBR(E)

(i)

B % ITAEGE)
MBEERE(E)

(i)

(i)

=2 B R B K18 18 50
(&)

AEBETHERARER
EERB IS A AR M
ZIZERTREY  WHHE
HITHEEBR  UERZ
12 22 B8 7A 5K I8 @ HR AT 4
FEERKEEHE AEY
e

EHZER
BRAREERREEM
FOAKRERR  MAE
BE AN RIRE B R
o BB ARG EER
BERABEASE) B
BN R R AN B A+
BEMERR) - B #HE
BAOEMN - Tt - &
SERR MYBEER
HEaATX - AEYE
grEL EAKERAS
BrBEREBEENBR A
FRENENZTEERA
@ B SERI -

HWIREEREZMBEE
=
M—IARZIHENEHE
£ BB EENGE
ARREREXINBEF
& AZMBEELBRE
ERE - BBEELRE
BEREZEBREEBRN
TEHZABREE:

@ BEITAHERAH
BEBREMGRE:

(b) EH - Bl Bk
HREMN:



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

vAr 1 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

(Continued)

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses
is the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or
on loan commitments for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks that are specific to the
cash flows but only if, and to the extent that,
the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on past due analysis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the

Group's trade and other receivables are
each assessed as a separate group);

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over
the guarantee period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

9y

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)
Except for investments in debt instruments/
receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For
investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve
without reducing the carrying amount of
these debt instruments/receivables.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

)

(k)

Intangible assets (Continued)

The following intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- trademark 5 to 10 years

- computer system 2 to 2.5 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognition on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal.

Gains and losses arising from derecognised of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Development and formation costs

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site
which will be completed for sale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
burial plots.
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2.

(Continued)

0

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale and marble stones is
calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost of burial plots developed for sale is determined
by an apportionment of the total development costs
(see note 2(i)) attributable to completed but unsold
units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of trade and other
receivables
Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

2.

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of trade and other
receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For trade receivables and other
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (that is the effective
interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(n) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables and other receivables
included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade receivables and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(n) Impairment of assets (Continued)

—hFE+TZA=+—RHLLHFEE

EETHEE)

(n) EEREGE)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other
than properties carried at revalued
amounts);

- prepaid lease payments;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill;

- deposits and prepayments;

- interest in associates; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset'’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & E—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(n) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (that is a cash-
generating unit ("CGU(s)")).

Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the CGU
to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of
an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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FEETBR(E)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets

(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, every three months. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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(Continued)

(0) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(p) Share-based payments

()

Share options granted to employees
The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(p)

Share-based payments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Share options granted to employees
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

Share options granted to consultants
Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair
values of the services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based compensation reserve),
when the counterparties render services,
unless the services qualify for recognition as
assets.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(q)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2(f), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodies in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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(Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(r)

Provisions liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

and contingent

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =
2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(t) Translation of foreign currencies

(Continued)

The results of non-PRC operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January
2015, are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation (that is a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a non-PRC
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a non-PRC operation,
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes non-PRC operation that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and is not recognised in profit
or loss.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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2. EEEFTBRGER)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Company’s
executive directors, which are the chief operating
decision maker of the Company for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’'s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by HKICPA for the first
time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior year and/or on
the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS16 Lease

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases, and
the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standards to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has
not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to
the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16
in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS16 Lease (Continued)

As a lessee (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

(i) relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an
alternative of impairment review;

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;
and

(iii)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average of
incremental borrowing rate used for determination of the
remaining lease payments was 5.13% and 4.9% for the
leases located in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS16 Lease (Continued)

FER#E] RAEIER] B AN
REEA(EFEEMBREE
Al D(&)

7N 5F 5 M A R R ET R RS
BBV ®REEL (&)

BB BHEERF165[HE

(&

As a lessee (continued) ERZAME AE)
RMB’'000
AREFT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at RZZE—N\F+_A=+—HBE
31 December 2018 W2 RRETHE AR 60,871
Less: Recognition exemption W HERHE - SHAE
— Short-term leases (1,362)
Total future interest expenses ARF BT B (21,037)
Lease liabilities recognised RZE—-NF—H—H
as at 1 January 2019 EHRRZHEEE 38,472

Right-of-use assets at the date of initial application
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019:

R-F-NE-A-BREMHEARN
KPR HR YR ERE B E A
REE:

RMB’'000
ARBTFT
Reclassified from prepaid lease payment BEENEERBEERSE
(Note a) (K 5Ea) 2,804
Right-of-use assets relating to operating HRERE AN B REER
leases recognised upon application of FIRRERNKLENE
HKFRS 16 ERCEREEE 38,472
Right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF-—HA—BzZERAEEE 41,276
By class g Rl
Leasehold properties MEMZHE 38,472
Leasehold land ME T i 2,804
41,276
Notes: B 7 -

(a) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC were
classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December
2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and
non-current portion of prepaid lease payments amounting
to RMB67,000 and RMB2,737,000 respectively were
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ R I

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. ERAHIREEITEBME
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BREXA(EENBEREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al D(4&)
("HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are 7N 6F B o ) 14 A RN AY ETET I R 4B
mandatorily effective for the current year HERCIEAE R UNC D)
(Continued)
HKFRS16 Lease (Continued) BB BHEEREI6H[HE
(#&
As a lessee (continued) YER =AM AE)
The following table summarises the impact of transition to TERBRY—_ZE-NF+_A=1+—
HKFRS 16 on consolidated statement of financial position AE-Z-NF-A—ABEINEE
sheet as of 31 December 2018 to that of 1 January 2019 B 7% 3R 5 Y B 51657 4R A BT 5 ik
as follows (increase/(decrease)): MR E M, O D))
RMB'000
ARETT
Prepaid lease payments EREERR
Balance under HKAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 BEEBHENSITRR_T—N\F
+tZRA=t+—HM&E%
- Non-current assets -FkRBEE 2,737
- Current assets -RBEE 67
Reclassification to right-of-use assets under HKFRS 16 BEEENBERELENEREN SR
EEABEE (2,804)
Balance under HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 REEBHBREEAF165 RN
—E-NE—A—BHEH -
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Balance under HKAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 REEBHENEITRR_T—N\F
+ZA=+—BmN&H -
Reclassification from prepaid lease payments under BRIEEBYBMEENE16FRIENE
HKFRS 16 ENREFHHR 2,804
Recognition of additional right-of-use assets under IRARE BB R 5 2 R 551657 e SR8 S
HKFRS 16 B REEE 38,472
Balance under HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 REFENBERELN SRR
—E-NF-F—HWEH 41,276
Lease liabilities HEEE
Balance under HKAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 RERBLHEANEBTRR_Z—N\F
+tZRA=+—H8&EH% -
Recognition of additional lease liabilities under HKFRS 16 RIRE B WS ERI 165 R I
MAEARE 38,472
Balance under HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 REBENBEREEN SRR
“E-NAFE-A-HNEH 38,472

Transition to HKFRS 16 does not have
accumulated losses as at 1 January 2019.

impact on mn

—E-NAF-A-BERIEFEBM
BHRELERE1FRURFERLEY

o

&

=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS16 Lease (Continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets under
existing lease contracts are accounted as if the existing
leases are modified as at 1 January 2019. The application
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 January 2019. However,
effective 1 January 2019, lease payments relating to the
revised lease term after modification are recognised as
income on straight-line basis over the extended lease
term.

Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group applies HKFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(@)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

vAr 1 =
B 7% 3 2= BT =T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

I 2 & 53 BB & 4

Revenue (@) W=
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration WA R & PR H RS R R
received and receivable for the services rendered EPHEEEmmE K kEK 2
to customers and goods sold to customers. The REZAFE FASEZERK
amount of each significant category of revenue HERZEBEAT
during the year is as follows:
2019 2018
—E—-Nn%E —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBTR ARBT T
Funeral services and cremation REBER I BEER
services provided in funeral TR L 1R
parlous and funeral service 2 BAERM R AE
centres under the Group's AR 7%
management 58,277 58,760
Funeral arrangement and related B&E LT M
consultancy services 1A A =4 R AR 75 3,058 3,572
Sale of burial plots and tombstones 8 & & b &z EZ 12 421 335
Sales of stem cells and immunocytes £ & & 40 J8 & % & 41 j2 1,591 -
Sales of biotechnical machinery HEAEYE &S 3,263 -
66,610 62,667
Segment information (by DEEHR

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the executive directors of the
Company (the “Executive Directors”), which are the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

During the year, the Company commenced a new
business segment — stem cells and immunocytes
business and the Executive Directors considered
that this business segment will become the key
driver of the value generation of the Company, and
hence assessed the performance of stem cells and
immunocytes business individually and separately
from the existing business of the Group.

AEBEIBEREER M
DENEEBERIOER -
AEBEAE B EIR D B M T E
REMAARBRITES(H
TEENEXTBEERKE) 2
BAFER 225

#1558 -

RAEE - ARBFIAT HH —
HEB DR HAAR KL R& A
BER MATEERRZE
Bo®BlRAARERIEER
MERE N - Bt fE R EARE
BREXRK IR T AR
ReRAREBHEE -

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER

135



136

Notes to the Financial Statements
B % i 5% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W RDEIEE (&)
(Continued)

4.

(b)

Segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
had below two reportable segments:

The reportable operating segments derive their
revenue primarily from funeral services, elderly care
services and stem cells and immunocytes business.

Funeral services: Provision of funeral related
service, including arrangement services and
related consultancy services, provision of
funeral and cremation services and sale of
burial plots and tombstones; and

Elderly care services: Provision of elderly care
and related consultancy services.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, apart from
the above two segments, the Group had below a
new reportable segment:

(A)

Stem cells and immunocytes business: Sales of
stem cells and immunocytes, and biotechnical
machinery.

The segment information provided
to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is
as follows:

Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Executive Directors
monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements

vAr 1 =
B 7% 3 2= BT =T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WHE RS IEE ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 7 EEFR(E)

(A) The segment information provided

to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the year

A) BEZZF-NFR=-F

—NE+ZHA=+—H
IFFERBRTFHITESE

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is HY ] # & 7 BB HY 7 BB &
as follows: (Continued) BT () -

Segment results, assets and liabilities DEEE  EEKABE
(Continued) (%)

Segment assets include all tangible and, NHEEBERARIEE
intangible asset and current assets with WNZFBBREREBRAE

the exception of corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade and other payables,
contract liabilities, lease liabilities, provisions
and current tax liabilities attributable to
the activities of the individual segments
and borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

ERBEE - DHAEE
EEER DB EBEEZ
BHREMENKIE &
mal HEAE  BE
FEVEA AR BEUA R D §
EREBZEE -

Revenue and expenses are allocated to WamhAEZH2EZEN
the reportable segments with reference to HES ZHENRZED B
sales generated by those segments and the EECASTHIERZED
expenses incurred by those segments or HpEm A ET e
which otherwise arise from the depreciation B4 BEMmAZm SRR

or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

Segment results represent the earnings and
loss of each segment without allocation of
valuation gain/(loss) on investment property
and financial assets designated at FVTPL,
impairment loss on an associate, impairment
losses under expected credit loss model on
financial assets, share of losses of associates,
other income, central administration costs,
finance costs and income tax expense. This
is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

THEHH -

DEEEIRE D BIEL
ZAFKEE BRHE
REMERETHRIER
FEFABDZ 2 WBEE
ZihEkzE(EE) - —
MEEE B 2 REEE -
B EE BHEEE
BEABETZREESE -
%m%%&a%%~ﬁ@
WA~ RRITEUK A
BRAREHAY - %
DHERSERFTEHD S
RRANITERERZ S
7 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE
4.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W RDEIEE (&)
(Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)
(A) The segment information provided

to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is
as follows: (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, the Executive
Directors are provided with segment
information concerning revenue, interest
income and expense from cash balances
and borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation and amortisation, fair
value gain/(loss) on financial assets designated
at FVTPL, income tax expenses, and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 g 2% BT R T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W HE RS EIEE ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 7o WMEFX(E)

(A) The segment information provided A) BE-ZFE-—NFR=-F
to the Executive Directors for the -NF+=ZA=+—H
reportable segments for the year IEFERBRTHITESE
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is WA & 57 Z809 77 B &
as follows: (Continued) BT (&) -

Segment results, assets and liabilities DEEE  BEMEBE
(Continued) (%&)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable BRAMEBE—_ZT-NEFR
segments as provided to the Executive —EF— )\¢+ ﬂ +—
Directors for the purposes of resources BIEFE 2 &R B &
allocation and assessment of segment HOBRIABDNITESER
performance for the years ended 31 HIREETREDEZ
December 2019 and 2018 is set out below: EREY T
Year ended 31 December
BETZA=t-HLER
s 08
2g-ik =L
Stem
cells and
Funeral  Elderly care immunocytes Funeral  Elderly care
services services business Total services services Total
HERGBR

BERE  HEIRB SE4RER g RERE  E2RE it
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMB'000  RMBOOD  RMBODD  RMBODD  RMBO0D
ARBTR  ARBTR ARNTR ARRIR ARETR ARMTI ARETR

Segment Revenue b1
- Funeral senvices and -REBERBERRBERE ML
cremation services provided in REZBEREMRE
funeral parlous and funeral service centres under the
Group's management 58,211 - - 58,211 58,760 - 58,760
- Funeral amangement and related -BERHRAEEARE
consultancy services 3,058 - - 3,058 35712 - 35712
- Sales of burial plots and -BERBRER
tombstones n - - n 335 - 335
= Sales of stem cells and
immunocytes and biotechnical machinery - - 1,591 1,591 - - -
- Sales of biotechnical machinery - - 3,263 3,263 - - -
61,756 - 4,854 66,610 62,667 - 62,667
Segment operating profit APEEEH 3,8 - 48 3126 1,509 (1,629 (120)
Other items: £HEE:
Interest income ELON 545 - 7 547 31 - 314
Finance costs BENE 2,78 - - 2,78 m - m
Fair value gain/{loss) on financial assets AR
designated as FVTPL 3831 - - 3831 @19) - (2.792)
Expected credit losses 1,151 - 67 1,20 - - -
Depreciation and amortisation 6,761 - - 6,761 245 816 3,268
Income tax expenses 1217 - 19 1,236 1,108 - 1108
Additions to non-current segment assets 754 - - 754 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =
4.

—hFE+TZA=+—RHLLHFEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W RDEIEE (&)
(Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)
(A) The segment information provided

to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the year

(b) 2HEH (,.;)

(A) a_‘t —_ 7

—“NER-F
-NEFE+ZA=+—-H
ILFERHRTHITESE

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is H) B[R & 7 5819 77 56 &
as follows: (Continued) BT (%) :
Segment results, assets and liabilities DEEE  BERAR
(Continued) (%;“3)
There are no inter-segment sales during the AEEHMESHHEIESE
year (2018: Nil). —E-NFE) o
The following table presents segment assets TREIN-_Z-NFR
and segment liabilities of the Group's —NF+A=+—
reportable segments as at 31 December 2019 AARSEEAREDFBHD
and 2018: MEEMRDHAE:
0 08
ze-15 314
Stem cells and
Funeral  Elderly care  immunocytes Funeral  Elderly care
services services business Total services services Total
HERMRR
RERE #ERE SRAMEE B BEERE  EEZRE 3t
RWBO0D  RMBOD  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RMBODD  RWEOOD  RWBOWD
AREFR  AREFIR  ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR

Seqent ases HBEE 2063 MO M3 M 44 s
Seqment e 4886 15,767 E I L B VER % I3
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Notes to the Financial Statements

vAr 1 =
B 7% 3 2= BT =T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

I 2 B 53 BB & 4 (4R)

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) o MEFX(E)

(B) Reconciliations of reportable segment B) HWHETH WKz B
revenue, profit or loss, assets, @m EE -BERAM
liabilities and other items HEZ# KR

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &% ARETR ARBF T
Revenue W 35
Total reportable segment revenue 7] 3R & 4 #f Ut 25 4258
and consolidated revenue AR 66,610 62,667
Profit or loss iR
Total reportable segment AEENBEPEEZ
profit/(loss) derived from ks EET
Group's external customers (BB 8% 3,726 (120)
Fair value gain on investment REMEAFERE 16
properties - 217
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial 1§ A& A F BT A 19
assets designated at FVTPL BaWBAEN
AT EKE(BE) 3,831 (2,792)
Other income H g A 5 1,188 347
Expected credit losses on UTEBE2EHEE
i
- Trade receivables - B REWKIE 23(c) (383) -
- Other receivables - E A EU IR 23(f) (837) -
Impairment loss of associate BERNR 2 HEBE 18 (395) -
Finance costs BMEMAK 6(a) (2,791) (279)
Share of losses of associates iR E AREE 18 (105) -
Unallocated head office and ROMBHBRARRAZ
corporate expenses (7,162) (4,788)
Consolidated loss before taxation 424 B %t Al &5 18 (2,928) (7,415)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % i 5% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W RDEIEE (&)
(Continued)

4.

(b)

Segment information (Continued)
(B) Reconciliations of reportable segment
profit or loss,

revenue,

assets,

(b)

7 HER (&)
(B) HWH#HEDE WKz B

liabilities and other items (Continued) HEz ¥R (&
2019 2018
“E-nE —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETTT
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets REDHEERLE 274,345 227,661
Unallocated head office and AOMBHBL NG EE
corporate assets
- Cash and bank balances -Be METES 14,881 2,662
- Other deposit and -HEpike KER
prepayments A 184 302
- Others - Hft 3,747 5,928
Consolidated total assets BEEERE 293,157 236,553
Liabilities Bff
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] ¥k & 9 28 & (& 4258 163,052 123,818
Unallocated head office and Ao@BHBE FEE
corporate liabilities 12,456 9,926
Consolidated total liabilities EBERRE 175,508 133,744

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

4., REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

I 2 B 53 BB & 4 (4R)

(b) 7 EHEHR(E)

BE-FT-LFE+=-HA=F

—HILFEE

Stem cells and

Funeral  Elderly care  immunocytes
services services business Total
B R
EERS EEZRE SEARER @zt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARETRn ARETRT ARETR
Primary geographical market TERETS
The PRC H 58,277 - 1,591 59,868
Taiwan aiE 2,258 - - 2,258
Hong Kong BE 800 - 3,263 4,063
Vietnam i 421 - - 421
61,756 - 4,854 66,610
Major products and services TEERRRE
Funeral services and cremation services AEEERE 7 BEHER
provided in funeral parlous and BERBRLREZ
funeral service centres under the BERSE R MRS
Group's management 58,277 - - 58,277
Funeral arrangement and related BEZHK
consultancy services 1 B A R 3,058 - - 3,058
Sales of burial plots and tombstones  $§& E i [: £ a1 - - a1
Sales of stem cells and immunocytes  SHE# MK EZ AR - - 1,591 1,591
Sales of biotechnical machinery HEEMBRER - - 3,263 3,263
61,756 - 4,854 66,610
Timing of revenue recognition W 25 R SR B
At a point in time RE-KHEE a1 - 3,263 3,684
Over time s S 1 61,335 - 1,591 62,926
61,756 - 4,854 66,610

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER

143



Notes to the Financial Statements

7A 22

B 7% R 3R MY 5 E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WH RS EIEE (&)

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) pEMBEX(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHE-—F-NEFEF+ZA=F
—HIEFE
Funeral  Elderly care
services services Total
BERS EERG wmEt
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTIT ARBETT ARBTT
Primary geographical market FTEMETIS
The PRC 2l 58,760 - 58,760
Taiwan =N 2,630 - 2,630
Hong Kong BB 942 - 942
Vietnam i 7 335 - 335
62,667 - 62,667
Major products and services FTEERRRF
Funeral services and cremation AEEEER 2 BESE
services provided in funeral parlous & 7 R % & 0
and funeral service centres under REECBEERBE R
the Group’s management NAE BR 15 58,760 - 58,760
Funeral arrangement and related BETHR
consultancy services 1HEE AR 3,572 - 3,572
Sales of burial plots and tombstones 4 & & ih & & & 335 - 335
62,667 - 62,667
Timing of revenue recognition Wir 25 7% 27 B B
At a point in time NE— 335 - 335
Over time BE By 6 1 62,332 - 62,332
62,667 - 62,667
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & E—

4., REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)

(@)

Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical location
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, right-of-use assets, prepaid
lease payments, intangible assets and deposits for
hire of funeral parlours and funeral services centres
("Specified non-current assets”).

The geographical location of customers refers to
the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered. The geographical locations
of Specified non-current assets are based on the
physical location of the assets under consideration.
In the case of intangible assets and goodwill, it is
based on the location of the operation to these
intangible assets are allocated.

Revenue from

T-NFt-A=t+—BILEE

WKz Ry EEE ()

(0 HHEEFR
AT ERBE) AEBKREINAR
BEZWZH NAERZY
¥ BMELSLE KHEWE-
FREEE BNHEENE
?ﬁﬁéﬁ?&fﬂﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁ*&ﬁﬁf

R LzEE(BHEFERD
BEDZHWEER DI -

EPZE bR TS 1R 4 AR 75
FERERZE o FFEIFER
BEECERABBEE
FAEBERNESERE - [{AE
MEENEE  RIAEDEZ
SEBVEEZRBREH AR
% o

Specified

external customers
(by customer location)

non-current assets
(by physical location)

RENRERZKE REXRRDEE
(BRERBEELS) (RERUEES)
For the year ended As at

31 December

31 December

BE+-A=t+-HLEE R+=RA=+-H

2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AE ZZ-N\F ZB-AE Z—T-)\HF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARE®TR ARBT:x
The PRC H 59,868 58,760 45,387 11,866
Taiwan = 2,258 2,630 30,923 31,142
Hong Kong £ 4,063 942 196 2
Vietnam i) 421 335 63 62
66,610 62,667 76,569 43,072

Information about major customers EFEFEH
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, HE-ZE-NFRZZE-NF+
revenue from any single external customer does not ZA=T—RHLFE  #HEXE
amount to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue. EAE—INHLEP Z W am1E R

LB W EE10%S A ko

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hslr A
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARB T T
Interest income on bank deposits WAITFR 2B A 547 314
Total interest income on financial assets I 3FiZ A FEFFAEZR
not at FVTPL ZMBEEZNE
WA 4858 547 314
Sundry income MIEWA 350 161
Rental income from investment KEMEZHESIWA
properties 266 371
Surplus on revaluation of land and BIEERIHRIEF
buildings held for own use B AR - 8
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEYWE  BE N EE
equipment 2 W s 24 1,366
Net exchange gain & 5 W 2= 0% 58 1 83
Reversal of impairment loss on trade B EWEIERERSE
receivables [o] #8% - 1,494
1,188 3,797
6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. BBigiEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) MR BTERB &R (5T A) T 5|1’
the followings: BigE T
2019 2018
—FE—-hE —ZE-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR T T
(a) Finance costs (a) BB K
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBEZHNE 2,527 -
Interest on bank borrowings HITBEZHE 264 279
Total interest expenses on financial W IR FEEA
liabilities not at FVTPL EasWKaE
RSN 2,791 279
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIH A (BIEEE

emoluments) M)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He IENEM
12 H 18,071 15,678
Contributions to defined TE R R K EHE]
contribution retirement plans 3R 2,274 2,514
20,345 18,192
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6. BRBIEIESIE (&)
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARKEF T
(c) Depreciation (c) IFE6
Right-of-use assets EREEE 4,750 -
Own assets BEEE 2,011 2,298
6,761 2,298
(d) Amortisation (d) #gH
Intangible assets EBEAE - 497
Prepaid lease payment TE M & B IE - 67
- 564
(e) Other items (e) H#IEH
Auditors’ remuneration % ELRD BN &

- audit services - BT AR 767 716
Cost of inventories UER= DN 7,456 5,253
Rental income from investment wEMERSWA

properties less direct outgoing of WEERZ

RMB nil (2018: RMB nil) ARBZT

—ZE-)N\F:
ARBZET) (266) (371)
Operating lease charges for N
property, plant and equipment: e
minimum lease payments SEBEENRE
— rented premises -HEAYE 157 177
— hire of equipment -HA%E 5 -
— hire of funeral parlours and - HABEER
funeral service centres 5B &R
R0 1,200 8,203
Operating lease charges: KEHES
contingent rents BEAYitkq
— hire of funeral parlours and - THREEE
funeral service centres K 7B 1% IR
0 - 621
Impairment losses recognised MEHEKKRIE

on trade receivables R IBEREE 383 -
Impairment losses recognised B H fh FE U 5 IE

on other receivables R IBEREE 837 -
Impairment loss on goodwill EmEREEE - 2,868
Impairment loss of associates B & A el 2 jE

&5 18 395 -
FEEGEBERAR —ZT-AFEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

7.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. HZ&8ERRZFEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
—B-AE T )\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR F T
Current tax BN ER %7 18 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EMEH 1,236 1,108
Total BET 1,236 1,108
Notes: i

(a

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for
both years.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Samoa and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI") for both years.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25% (2018: 25%) in
accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Enterprises Income Tax (FFEEA R EME %
FT1S7%4%) except that Chongging Xizhou Funeral Service
Company Limited (“Chongging Xizhou”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to
a preferential tax rate of 15% (2018: 15%) in accordance
with A& R G 3 ¥ A8 B E =, which is applied to
Chongging Xizhou since January 2011 and, provided that
the conditions precedent to entitlement of preferential
tax rate are fulfilled by Chongging Xizhou in each of
subsequent years, the preferential tax rate can be applied
to Chongging Xizhou up to December 2020. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, Chongging Xizhou is subject
to enterprise income tax rate at 15% (2018: 15%).
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INCOME TAX
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &\

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan”),
a direct subsidiary of the Company, Bao De Life Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (“Bau De") and Bu Lao Lin Limited (“BLL"), both
of which are indirect subsidiaries of the Company, are
subject to Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax at 17% (2018:
17%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the Income Tax Act and other relevant laws in Taiwan.
No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been
made as Bau Shan has accumulated tax losses brought
forward which exceed the estimated assessable profits for
the year, and Bau De and BLL have no assessable profits
for both years.

Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan
Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are
subject to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2018:
20%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Vietnam. No provision
for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has been made as Bao
Son Life and HLV Duc Hoa have no assessable profits for
both years.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss

E_ET-NF+RA=+—RHIEFE

7. ZEEBRZAFHE)

B 5

(d

(#%)

AARHEBEWBRGE LA DR
BROBRARTEWDRARRM
MEENEAREEETEERD
BERAR(EZDRTAERBRR
AI([REW])ARESEMER X
K H M FRBRER - R ERT T A
17% (ZZE—N\F :17%) B & &
EMBE o BB LM EFEE
AR RIBEBES B ER
EH  BEERTEMRMRAFE
HEERBEN  RITEAGED
ERBRELRE -

AREzHEIEZEBRBHRBR
ABELAESETERAATEL
# &) M Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa
Corporation ([HLV Duc Hoal) 7B &t
IR B ARERRERE T ZE
FBE FIE20% (ZF—\F : 20%)
ZHEHBMBECERSH - AR
| & @ K HLV Duc Hoa A i f 4

EMSHIEHERE -

RERMRRFAE 2R GRS LGAT

at applicable tax rates: & B 2 AR
2019 2018
—T-AE —T)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR¥EF T
Loss before taxation B A& 18 (2,928) (7,415)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, LRBER B AR E R
calculated at the rates applicable to loss i R ptMFi AT G BT &
in the tax jurisdictions concerned 2 12 5 I8 (766) (1,556)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  NAI 4158 B 2 2 Fi 15 5 & 2,582 3,138
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBINA 2 T 5 & (1,120) (1,122)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KR HAER T IA KB 2 15
T8 540 648
Actual tax expense ERBMERX 1,236 1,108

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE - —NF+-_A=+—HIFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEFH
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 1B & & B(R T HE BI) $£383(1) 1§ &
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (RAI(BREBEEEFNZERROIDE
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about 2R EATHBECESHMUO T -
Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:
2019
—E-hE
Salaries and Retirement
allowances Discretionary benefit scheme
Name of directors EEkE Fees (note i) bonuses  contributions Total
FeREE BB
e (B 351) BB BTN @t
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Mt AREFR ARETR AREFR AREFT AREFR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai ARTEE 2,003 876 76 - 2,955
Mr. Xu Jianchun HERELE 1,323 - - - 1,323
Non-executive director HHTEE
Dr. Xu Qiang et (vi) 53 - - - 53

Independent non-executive B HHTEE

directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai ERELE 62 - - - 62
Mr. Sun Fei BRrE (iii) 53 - - - 53
Mr. Wang Jun FHEE (iv) 53 - - - 53
3,547 876 76 - 4,499
2018
—E-N\F
Salaries and Retirement
allowances  Discretionary  benefit scheme
Name of directors ESh4 Fees (note i) bonuses contributions Total
He k2R BINER
we (P 2%1) M4 BE Ly Foh
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
s ARBFT AREFTT AR%TxR ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai NPt 1,901 772 55 - 2,728
Mr. Xu Jianchun HEERE 1,266 - - - 1,266

Independent non-executive B HHTEE

directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai ERELE 59 - - - 59
Mr. Ching Clement Yat- B-FEE
biu (ii) 4 - - - 4
Mr. Lee Koon Hung FRMELE ) 18 - - - 18
Mr. Sun Fei BREsE (i) 48 - - - 48
Mr. Wang Jun IHEE (iv) 36 - - - 36
3,332 772 55 - 4,159
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & E—
8.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or the
executive director are generally emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of those persons’ other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

(ii) Resigned on 23 January 2018.
(iii)  Appointed on 23 January 2018.
(iv)  Appointed on 17 April 2018.
(v) Resigned on 17 April 2018.

(vi)  Appointed on 1 March 2019.

No director of the Company waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
for both years.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the director held
share options under the Company's share option scheme.
The details of the share options are disclosed in note 41.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2018: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of
the emoluments of the remaining three (2018: three)
individuals are as follows:

9.

B 1% S 2= B 5%
T NF+-AZ+—BILFEE
EEHME)

BT

i) XNBRTEENHFS 2URED
M@ —RIOIBINZFALRAR
AIREMBARNEREBMREMH]
WEMREOME s L ALE

W e
(i) RZZ-NF-A-FT=HEE-
(i) RZE-NF-A-+=AEZE-
vy R-ZZ-—N\FNATLtHEZEET-
v RIE-NFEHA+LBHEHE -

vi)y RZE-NF=B—HEZE-

RMEFE AABMEEENES
MM AEBTHERERNESS
A Fr B E R I A KR AR
SER R IESBEREE -

RZE-—hER=F
+— E! BEERFEAR
BETHERE -BREZCFE
T4 BE o

mEHAL

—NF+=ZA=
AIfE B At 8
A it

AEmEeHFALBERA(ZZE—N
FWMB)ARRESE - HEFHNM T
SWE - Efp =R (2T \F =%)
BB ATz HFMEENT

2019 2018

—E—-NnE — N\

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETTR ARBT T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits & & -~ 3285 & H th 18 7 894 1,143

Discretionary bonuses (SRR 13 13
Contributions to retirement benefit R KRR AT K

scheme 35 25

942 1,181

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % i 5% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ T - NF+_A=+T—HILtFE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9.
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

9.

10.

1.

The emoluments of the three (2018: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following

manALT(&)

=R(CE-N\F =ZR)ERSFAL
ZEHEMNFTIEE:

band:
2019 2018
—B-AE —E)\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ANE N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to £ %1,000,000/% 7T
approximately RMB881,955 (2018: (FHERHAR¥881,955
RMB844,210)) T(ZE—NF:ARE
844,2107T)) 3 3

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the three (2018: three) highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(EXPENSE)
There was no tax effect on each component of the other

comprehensive income for both years.

LOSS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB3,804,000 (2018: RMB8,352,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2018: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amounts presented for the year ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 as the impact of the
share options had anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amounts presented. Therefore, the
diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss
per share.
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10.

1.

RMEFEAR  REBEHERTHN=
F(ZE-N\F: ZR)EaFALX
BEZINE S ENE T N YIVN
RIMAR SR B2 52E) - RF QBB

BE -

HEip2EW AN (FX)

RAEFEAR  FOBL\|AEME
mBEZERBEE

BIREHE

(@) BREXRERE
FREARABEDIREARD
REAAEGLEERBRBARE
3,804,000 (ZE—N\FE AR
#8,352,00070) N FRNEEHITE
8 A% hn#E 15 £4742,500,000 8%

—Z —)\4F : 742,500,000 % &
BR)ETE -

(b) EREEEIE
BE_T-NEFR_FT-N\F+
“A=T—HILFE " FENZ
BREABESRIL EFLH
E AREREZZEHM=Z
Iz BRENBECBARE
B - Bt BREEER
TERERERNEBERER -



12.

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ R I

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries
are required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme administrated and operated
by the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC and
Vietnam subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to scheme based on certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of all qualifying employees in
accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC and
Vietnam respectively. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered
and operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan
for employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme,
the employers are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 6% of the employees’ relevant income.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan managed by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earning as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
contributions from each of the employer and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month and
thereafter contributions are voluntary. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with the
retirement benefit schemes beyond the contribution
described above.

12.

13.

iz B

BEETREREBAEZE_T-NAF+A
=T HEFERNETARE(ZF
—NFARBZT)

1B K 48 A 51 51

AEBETELBEMNEARZEER
SEAMTTRAFEEREEZE
BUSCRARBEAETE - NEEZHE
K B P B8 R ] B 0 BIAR 1B R B %
MARGY ZE2HEEREES
MRSz E T B L EEEIEL
K ZFHRFAUGEETREMD

EEKERTPME

AEENEARReEREACEESZ A
HEEETREREEREEZ TR
HFCRINR A E S - RIEFTE - B
TALERERBRA Z6%METEF
K - AU RE -

i W

AEEBEBRBEBRBEKN 2 5%
EREBBEB BRI EAE S ENK
PIZHEFEAZEEREEMAR
FlIERTEETE((RESTED - &
Berrdl AT EETRKRE - B8
VEEAEE - RIEARTESFTE - &
H 1 RE S EE AR E A EE (fE
FIREEEBESAESEREBRA
Z5% M BIER R - B E RIE
EFAHEZKLN,5008 LA LR - B
TEE R - FTEIERBEES -

B Lt RSN - AN S 30 A AT ] Eo A
B bt R KR AR IR E 2 BRIKAR
MR ZERNEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERRE

(a) (a)
Freehold land
and buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
=L
TRAFE
SR 2
YL 52 B RER
RigF HERE BOERE RE EEIR @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT  AREBTn AREFTT ARETT ARETR
Cost or valuation RAHEE
As at 1 January 2018 RZE-N§-A-H 26,189 15,752 14,617 5,375 300 62,233
Exchange adjustments ERBE 585 102 119 85 2 893
Additions NE 21 232 826 161 305 1,545
Disposals HE (2,107) - (716) (237) - (3,060)
Surplus on revaluation EfFRH 598 - - - - 598
Less: Elimination of accumulated B REIEHE
depreciation (455) - - - - (455)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\§+ZA=1+-H 24,831 16,086 14,846 5,384 607 61,754
Representing: i
Cost A - 16,086 14,846 5,384 607 36,923
Valuation - 2018 EE-Z2-N\F 24,831 - - - - 24,831
24,831 16,086 14,846 5,384 607 61,754
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE-A-A 24,831 16,086 14,846 5,384 607 61,754
Exchange adjustments ERHE 545 88 80 37 - 750
Additions nE - - 180 - 574 754
Disposals HE - - (17) (975) - (992)
Surplus on revaluation Eff A& 397 - - - - 397
Less: Elimination of accumulated B RSMEN
depreciation (466) - - - - (466)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-hNE+ZA=1-8 25,307 16,174 15,089 4,446 1,181 62,197
Representing: B
Cost B - 16,174 15,089 4,446 1181 36,890
Valuation - 2019 fE-ZE-N%E 25307 - - - - 25,307
25,307 16,174 15,089 4,446 1181 62,197
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

14. Y% - BE R E (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
(@) (Continued) (@ (&)
Freehold land
and buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
fair value improvements equipment vehicles  in progress Total
RBEER
THRAFE
] ¥4
KAEHE B RER
THRET HERE BOERE RE ERIR @z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETRT AREFT ARETR ARETR
Accumulated depreciation and B ERAEGR
impairment loss
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-N§-A—-AH - 11,858 10,904 4,801 - 27,563
Exchange adjustments EXAE 3 68 85 82 - 238
Charge for the year REER M 459 806 755 278 - 2,298
Elimination on disposals HERHH - - (474) (237) - (m
Elimination on revaluation BiERHH (462) - - - - (462)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-NE+ZA=+-H - 12,732 11,270 4,924 - 28,926
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-A - 12,732 11,270 4,924 - 28,926
Exchange adjustments ERAE 3 65 44 29 - 141
Charge for the year REE M 463 772 665 111 - 2,011
Elimination on disposals HERHH - - (11) (821) - 832)
Elimination on revaluation EHBHHE (466) - - - - (466)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-AE+=A=+-8 - 13,569 11,968 4,243 - 29,780
Carrying amounts fRE(E
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-NETZA=+-8 25,307 2,605 3,121 203 1,181 32,417
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-H 24,831 3,354 3,576 460 607 32,828
(b) Had the revalued land and buildings held for (b) fWEEMFEEBA L RE
own use been carried at cost less accumulated FIAKAR 2T ES R -
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have FREE&ET:
been:
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBTT
Freehold land and buildings BIEERZ KA ERE
held for own use T MIEF 20,084 19,812

TEEDEBEERDA

TE-NEFR



156

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019

14. YM% - BERHREE)

(0 MEZLFEFE

(i)

RFEER

TR EVRFERHRIZL
BHEEESGENREETY
¥WATE BEAEE
BRIk S ERIEB135 A F
B EETEN=FRAFE
B - A EFEHREN
BRELEHBERMFE
B ABENERER
BEEUBEEOT:

e  EREMHE:RUE
— B AEFER
FEBEREE
HEBERFERE
E BB T 5 B K B
HE

. FoEHE: UAEZ
B A AE(MIFEE
2R ERGAE)
AEAFE AHE
BWABEZA BRI
I K 40 5 —[E d A
B TAIERH A
(ER= R ATR R E S
AE2EZH AE



Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ R I

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

() Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured

14. Y% - BE R E (&)

ME 2D FETEGE

(i) RFEERE
s FEEME:MUEER

using significant unobservable inputs BN AR g A E
HEATE
Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2019 hierarchy hierarchy hierarchy
R-ZF-NI%
+ZA=t+-H
ZAEE E-ER EER FZER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement EEMAFEEFE
Freehold land and buildings KAEREL R
- Taiwan BF-A4 5,138 - - 5,138
Buildings - The PRC BF - FH 1,484 - - 1,484
6,622 - - 6,622
Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2018 hierarchy hierarchy hierarchy
RZZ-N\¥
+tZA=t-A
2ATE  5-BR E-E& EZEG
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETRT ARBTT AREFR
Recurring fair value measurement BRUEAPEEE
Freehold land and buildings KAERLTHR
- Taiwan BT -8E 5,021 - - 5,021
Buildings - The PRC BF - hE 1,484 - - 1,484
6,505 - - 6,505

During the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, there were no transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers into/out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer

REBEE-ZT-NEE-F
—N\FE+-A=t+—H1Lt
FE O UESEBARELE
=B - ARBZBEAR
=R EREREL

ZEREBEBE - BR
ATEEROBA W
H oo
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. YM% - BERHREE)

(Continued)
() Fair value measurement of properties (0 MEZAFEITEZ(E)
(Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () RFEERE
All of the Group’s freehold land and buildings RZZE—NFRZZE—N
held for own use were revalued as at 31 F+ZA=+—H A
December 2019 and 2018. The valuations REBFIEBRZKAE
were carried out by APAC Appraisal and T REFHE B -
Consulting Limited (“APAC”), an independent REBEEZE_Z-NFE_ZF
firm of chartered surveyors, for the years —NFE+_A=+—HB1
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, with FE - HEHYE EREE
recent experience in the location and category Y 2 P 0 J2 KA R B 3T HR
of properties being valued. The Group’s HMELR 2B IFTIZE
directors have discussed with the surveyors B KEERBERERA
on the valuation assumptions and valuation A ([APAC) #1T + TE&1E
results when the valuation are performed at REA R FERE QBT
each interim and annual reporting date. HER  AEBEESCH
B = B0 A SR A E R R
BHER-
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
fH B A TUHRRBAE #E
2019 2018
“E-hE ZZ-\F
Freehold land and buildings - Taiwan Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (5%) to 10%  (7%) to 28%
KAERLMREF - 58 ERLBA NEETHEX (5%)E10%  (7%)%28%
Buildings - The PRC Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate  (25%) to 26%  (15%) to 5%
BT -HE HEEBE NEEEHEE (25%)%26%  (15%)E5%
The fair value of properties held for own use RegkhEFIEERZ
located in Taiwan and the PRC is determined WMEZRNFETERER
using direct comparison approach by LLBOEETE - B2 EA#
reference to the market price of comparable LbRMELTE - W2
properties and adjusted for building quality, ERHZBTEE WX
location of the properties and timing of the R HEELARE o ©¥
reference transactions. There has been no NEE - HERMIE &S
change on the valuation technique during the B -
year.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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vAr 1 =
B 7% 3 2= BT =T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

14. Y% - BE R E (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

() Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, there were no transfers between
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The Group’s investment properties were
was revalued as at 31 December 2019 and
2018. The valuations for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 were carried
out by APAC, an independent firm of
chartered surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of property
being valued. The Group’s directors have
discussed with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

(0 ¥MEZLFEFEGE)

(i)

RFEER(E

REBEE=ZZT-NEFER=ZF
—N\F+-A=+—A8L
FE B E-ZER
FoEzHETEER -

AEBZIREMERE
—NE+—A=+—Hi#
TEMH REBEEZZE—N
FR-E-NF+ZA=
+—BILFE  HEHB
SRR 2 EMAPACHTT
B FathEY ¥
K5 R B i Bk E L
5 o £ EFHRFER
HSHHETHER  AE
EEECEAEM A
ERILHEELER -

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEREBH(E)

(Continued)
() Fair value measurement of properties (0 MEZAFEITEZ(E)
(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value (i) BEE=ELFEE
measurements ZEH
The movements during the period in BN LlE=EQTE
the balances of these Level 3 fair value FrEAEREHNT

measurements are as follows:

Freehold
land and
buildings - Buildings -
Taiwan The PRC Total
KR ERE
T REF g
-gE - E st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTE

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—A—H 24,780 1,409 26,189
Additions NE 21 - 21
Disposals & (2,107) - (2,107)
Depreciation charge for the year KEEHERST (158) (297) (455)
Exchange adjustments BE i 3 2 585 - 585
Surplus on revaluation A
- recognised in other comprehensive - REMZ2EKEHER

income, included in “properties A EE L EE]

revaluation reserve” 227 371 598
At 31 December 2018 R-F-\#t=A=+-H 23,348 1483 24,831
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—A—H 23,348 1,483 24,831
Depreciation charge for the year FEEHERZ (169) (297) (466)
Exchange adjustments BE 358 & 545 - 545
Surplus on revaluation EARpags

- recognised in other comprehensive - REMZEKEHER

income, included in “properties A ESHERE]

revaluation reserve” 100 297 397
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+-A=+—H 23,824 1,483 25,307
Effect of foreign currency exchange BIEBRANYME 2 INE
differences of properties held for own use are EHEENTERER
recognised in other comprehensive income in 2 B 2 ek R
“foreign currency translation reserve”. o
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(d)

(e)

(f)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The carrying amount of freehold land and
buildings pledged as security for the Group's
bank borrowings were RMB19,932,000 (2018:
RMB19,455,000) (note 28) as at 31 December
2019.

There was no impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment has been provided for both the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

During the vyear, the Group’s freehold land
amounting to RMB1,682,000 (2018: RMB1,644,000)
was under trust arrangements.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

14. Y% - BE R E (&)

(d) W—Z—hhF+=-—A=+—8"
BEHEEALNEBRITEEIR
WRZKAEELIHRETH
BREE A A R #19,932,0007T
—Z— 1\ : AR¥19,455,000
JL)(MF 5E28) -

(e) BEZZ—NFRZZF—N\F+
A=+ BILMEFE %
ERME  BEREBEFIER
EEE -

f) RAFE AEEREBEELL
FREZKAEEIHAAR

11,682,000 (Z & —\F : A
R #1,644,0007T) °

15. ERHEEMR

2019 2018

—E-nE —T\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR ARKET T

At 1 January R—H—H 2,804 2,871

Amortisation charge for the year REEHIEER - (67)
Reclassified to right-of-use assets upon MRBXERAE BV EHRE
initial application of HKFRS16 ZHIB16REEHDEE

£ P #E A B (2,804) -

At 31 December W+—A=+—8H - 2,804

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHFEN NG

Current assets mENE E - 67

Non-current assets FEREBEE - 2,737

- 2,804

The amortisation charge for the year ended 31 December
2018 was included in “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

HE_T-\F+-_RA=1+—HILF
EHHHEEANGERERTANIT
BFAZ] e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. &YX
2019 2018
—E—-hE AN S
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ET T
At fair value - &/NE L I
At 1 January ®n—H—H 6,505 6,162
Effect of foreign currency exchange INEEREZENTE
differences, included in “foreign (T ATHE 5D
currency translation reserve” 117 126
Fair value adjustment to profit or loss FtAE I 2 AFEFHE - 217
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 6,622 6,505
Fair value measurement of investment REMEZAFEFTE
properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (i) RFEEL

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Ffair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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vir & RN

B 75 i 3% MY 7E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ_Z—h&+_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. IEYE(E)

Fair value measurement of investment REYHE 2N FETE(E)
properties (continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) RFEERGE)
. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using . FEERE-LNEENHT
significant unobservable inputs AR AETEATE
Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2019 hierarchy hierarchy hierarchy
RZE-h%
+ZA=t+-H

ZATE  E-ER EZER FZER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement E¥MAFEE

Investment properties RENE

- Taiwan -RE 5,138 - - 5,138
- The PRC - HE 1,484 - - 1,484
6,622 - - 6,622

Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2018 hierarchy hierarchy hierarchy

RZZE-N\F

+-A=1+-8
2AY¥E  E-RBR BZER EZER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTE ARBTR ARETRT ARKTR

. . R AN =}
Recurring fair value measurement A& & M A FEHEF &

Investment properties RENE
- Taiwan -RE 5,021 N — 5,021
- The PRC - 1,484 - - 1,484

6,505 - - 6,505

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

16. HEME ()
RENEZATETEE)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties (continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) () RFEERGE)
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and REBEE_ZE-AER_Z—N
2018, there were no transfers between Level 1, FH+ZA=+—HIEFE  F—
Level 2 and Level 3. B F_ERE-EzEILE
B o
The Group's investment properties were was AEBZREMER-ZZ—N
revalued as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. F+-A=Z+—RHETEH - R
The valuations for the years ended 31 December HEZZ-—hFRZZ—/\F+
2019 and 2018 were carried out by APAC, an ZA=Zt+—HIEFE HEH
independent firm of chartered surveyors with recent B R R ERMAPACKETT - H
experience in the location and category of property HERhEYEMERDE
being valued. The Group’s directors have discussed BRAAELHGHEELER T5@
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions REREEREEBRETHE
and valuation results when the valuation is B ANEBESCHENSAE
performed at each interim and annual reporting wmhERELEELER -
date.
Fair value measurement of investment property REMEZATEFTE
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value (i) BEEF=ELAFHEHITEZE
measurements #
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
{5 B TUHEBAE i
2019 2018
Zg-1f  -3E
Freehold land - Taiwan Direct comparison approach  Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (5%) to 10%  (15%) to 15%
KAEELN - AE BEREBE NEEEHEX (5%)E10%  (15%)F15%
Land and buildings - The PRC Direct comparison approach  Property-specific adjusting rate  (25%) to 26%  (15%) to (5%)
THREF-HE BELRE NEEEHEX (25%)Z26%  (15%)Z(5%)
The fair value of investment properties is BEMEZATFEDEREE
determined using direct comparison approach LhREET  E2EAHER
by reference to the market price of comparable MEITE UHRWE AR
properties and adjusted for location and size of the R EEELFE -
properties.
(iii) During the year, the Group's investment properties (i) RFAN AEERERETL

amounting to RMB5,138,000 (2018: RMB4,895,000)
were held under trust arrangements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#E-ZE—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS BREE
Computer
Trademark system Total
mE BER% st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREFT AREF T
Cost &
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—H—H 19 1,771 1,790
Effect of foreign currency INEER EZEBE 2R
exchange differences 1 12 13
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ—)\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—HEK
—E-NEF-A— E 20 1,783 1,803
Effect of foreign currency INBER EZRE 2R
exchange differences - 49 49
At 31 December 2019 —E-NF
+=-ZA=+—8H 20 1,832 1,852
Accumulated amortisation Het#es
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-NF—HA—H 17 1,274 1,291
Amortisation charge for the year REZHHEER - 497 497
Effect of foreign currency INEER EZBE2RE
exchange differences 1 12 13
At 31 December 2018 and RZT—N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—HK
—E-hF—-A—H 18 1,783 1,801
Effect of foreign currency INEER EZRE 2 RE
exchange differences - 49 49
At 31 December 2019 —E-NF
+=-A=+-—8H 18 1,832 1,850
Carrying value FREE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZF—-h£E
+=-A=+—H 2 - 2
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=-A=+-—H 2 - 2
The amortisation charge for the year ended 31 December BHEZZE-\F+A=1+—H8V#H
2018 is included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated BRfralBEm Rk ANFTATHERA] -

statement of profit or loss.

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

18. M E AT ER

2019 2018

—E—-hE —N\&F

RMB’000 RMB'OOO

ARETR ARETTT

Cost of investment in associates: 1% & R B4 & A &) B K AN 500 -
Share of loss from associates FEAE B & AR E A (105) -
395 -

Less: Impairment loss of associates Jg : B & A &) 2 & B & 18 (395) -

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2019

are as follows:

18. REtBATINER (8)

R-E-NF+_A=+—HF%E

M B R

AR

Place of Group's effective
Name incorporation  Issued and paid up capital  interest Principal activities
2% AEMmBIBE EBRTRARER KEERER TEEH
“Guangdong Weixiang PRC Registered capital of 30% Research and development
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.” RMB24,000,000 of cell cultivation
("Guangdong Weixiang")
BRAREMBEERAR  HE A ER 30% HEAREEE
TERRR]) AR #24,000,0007T
“Guangdong Yashan PRC Registered capital of 20% Research and development
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.” RMB10,000,000 of cell cultivation
("Guangdong Yashan")
BEREWEDHBERRR +E A ER 20% MERREEE
(TEREW] A R #10,000,0007T
& The English translation of the companies’ names is for & NRAIEEHREZBEHRS2E - HEA
reference only. The official name of these companies are BRRHR
in Chinese.
Summarised financial information of material BEARBENTRIZCHBERBE
associates )
Summarised financial information in respect of each FHEAEEZERBMERTNTBE
of the Group’s material associates is set out below. B EFHNT o "X g E
The summarised financial information below represents BHEBE ARIMP B MEMBERD
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements. B
Guangdong Guangdong
Weixiang Yashan
BERAER BREWL
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETT
Non-current assets FEREBEE - 3
Current assets mENE E - 1,591
Current liabilities mE AR (17) (2,093)
Revenue g - 417
Loss for the year FEEIE 17) (500)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the interest in

the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

7

w0 B 10 B i R )

statements:
Guangdong Guangdong
Weixiang Yashan
BEERERABR BEEREIL
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREBTFT
Net liabilities FEE (17) (499)
Proportion of the Group's NEE VR RO
ownership interest 30% 20%
Carrying amount of the Group's ~ A% @ fE(5# 5 R @A
interest - -
The Group's share of loss AEBEMGEE (5) (100)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
19. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT

19. EEARAFEFANERZ

FVTPL MBAE
2019 2018
—E—-nE —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBTR AREFIT
Mutual funds/unit trusts, ExEs® Bt
at fair value ZRFE
Established in Taiwan (note (i) A & & B L (3 () 38,336 33,320

According to the Mortuary Service Administration
Act (FBZEEIE(EH]) in Taiwan, which was first
promulgated on 17 July 2002 and further amended
on 1 July 2003 and 4 July 2007, the Group has to
deposit 75% of the gross receipt of each funeral
services deed entered into after 31 July 2003 in
financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies.

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual
funds and unit trusts in Taiwan, which were
managed by fund managers of these financial
institutions in Taiwan. The mutual funds and unit
trusts comprise a basket of financial assets including
local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds
and equity securities listed in Taiwan and other
foreign stock markets.

Financial assets at FVTPL are presented within
“operating activities” as part of changes in working
capital in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. The Group has obtained fair value gain of
RMB3,831,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: loss of RMB2,792,000).

The financial assets above offer the Group the
opportunity for return through fair value gain. They
have no fixed maturity and coupon rate.

The fair value of the above financial assets is based
on their current bid prices in an active market.

RER-_ZTT_FLA+LH
BREBUER_TZ=F+H
—BR-ZFEZELFLANBE
—FERIZRBEEERGD -
AEBEARIR_ZTT=FtA
=t -HRAILZEHEBEER
BROANBE S BEET K
ABRBEZISHIERIETER -

SHEERERAENE B
&R AR R
ZEMMBALEEAEE -
EEEGRERELL- BT
BT E B AR - A RS
BEEBITER AR
o 0 BB 2 0 T B
B4

;

BEAFEAAEBGZYBEE
E/\\%—:/\ﬁ%//miﬁw«(M%i&J
W;JIJ EREEESEH—

cHEZZE-NFT+=A
z+ BILEFE AEEES
AE@BS%OOO%Z”F%@
W (ZE—NF FEARE
2,792,0007&)

iﬁ;ﬁﬁfkﬁé?%$’§ = 12
‘iﬁ DA Y R B
g REFMBEELEEE D
HERREAME -

LB EENRFEIER
HREBMSNIREEAEBM

=

7E °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

—hWFE+TZA=+—RHLLHFEE

of BLL through the acquisition of 100% equity voting
interests in BLL which is engaged in provision of elderly
care and related consultancy services. The primary reason
for the business combination is to enable the Group to
develop the business for the golden-ager and further HES
penetrate the elderly care market through (a) provision
of nursery services to the elderly; and (b) consultancy
services to other service providers in the elderly care

market by means of:

(i) establishment and/or hire of day-care centres; h ®WUR /B HAAMERF
/L\ B
(i) establishment and/or hire of elderly homes; and (i) BLERSHEBALER: R
(i) provision of on-site nursery service at elderly’s (i REEEERESREEESR
premises. 7% o

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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%%ET/\%%E’L\E
BHIRERER

20. GOODWILL 20. HE
2019 2018
—E—-hE s —\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBETR ARBFT
Cost: [N
At 1 January ®n—H—H 18,729 18,258
Effect of foreign currency exchange WNEEREZRE 2 ZE
difference 438 471
At 31 December WR+=ZR=+—H 19,167 18,729
Accumulated impairment losses: ZET Rk (A B
At 1 January R—H—H 18,729 15,389
Impairment losses B E & E - 2,868
Effect of foreign currency exchange INEEHER 2R
difference 438 472
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—H 19,167 18,729
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—B2ZKHEA - -
Goodwill was arising from the Group obtained control BMEDREAEEZBRBREHRSE

T E MRS A RS A T E A
SEEEMRAEZD - B
"R EMR ARG - 3; TEREE
EHHNETEERER
EMRT% : R(b)REE TS E MR
AR 7% E A B B
LA K i3 58 T 51 75 =
E—HEAEZEB MG

i@ m R E R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

20. GOODWILL (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group carried out a review
of the recoverable amount of Bu Lao Liu Limited (“BLL"),
being the CGU of the provision of elderly care and related
consultancy services segment, and no carrying amount of
goodwill was allocated to the CGU.

The recoverable amount of the BLL was based on its value
in use (the “VIU") with reference to the valuation report
prepared by APAC, an independent professional qualified
valuer not connected with the Group. The VIU value-in-
use calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates of 3%.
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the business in which the CGU operate.

The key assumptions of the VIU calculations include long-
term growth rate of 3% and discount rate of 15.5%.
However, as no consulting service income was generated
by the Group during the years ended 31 December
2018 which was far beyond the Group's expectation.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
has negotiation with various owners of elderly home
and day-care centres. However, the negotiation was not
positive and the management of the Group decided not
to allocate further resource to the provision of elderly
services. Accordingly, full impairment of approximately
RMB2,868,000 was provided.

20. EE (&)

RZE—-NF+_A=1+—H &%
EHTEMBRAR(TZH)EA]
Uk o] 4 58 (BN 42 (L & = XA B #4550 BR
BoHMBeELESEMETEY
T EmENEAESEZREE
A BT o

TEMHAIWESEDEREES
ZAPAC (—HEAREE I EREN
VEEAERGEM BEMNEER
ENEREETERAEED - £AE
BEMEFEDNFERAERAEEENE
MRERFHNTBREENTAIRS
mETER o ikﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁmz
TifFE AT IR REI%EE - B R=X
iﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬁi@ﬁ@?%%ﬂﬁﬁ LIERE
BHRAFHERE -

ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ:mzxﬁmaﬁﬁﬂﬁ
FR3% & BHIRRI55% » AW A&
%Eﬁ?%ﬂ%%*ﬁ%:ifﬂﬁ
+ZA=Z+—BHLFE ALEETE
EEFBRARBEA - BEZZ—N\F
T A=+ —HLEFE AEHHES
Tk RBERERRLHESAE
TTHER - AR - RN EB R ASE
EEEEATTHMEHEZRYS
PEEZER - Al - BEEBEGHRER
E# A R#2,868,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

20.

21.

22.

GOODWILL (Continued) 20. & (&)
The recoverable amount of the elderly care and related EENIEEBARBEBRRSESE
consultancy services business CGU was based on its BAZAIWERIBEDRBEACREE
value in use and was determined with the assistance of HE - UHERASEREEC B E
APAC, an independent professional qualified valuer not ELERGEMAPACIHEI TE T -
connected with the Group.
The VIU calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections ZEFRHEENEFCRERERE
based on financial budgets approved by management HERENF RNV BIEERNTA
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five- Renedi BRAIFHMENIER
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth EmENEAMGET R IR - E
rates. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term RETHBReELEEUMELEE
average growth rate for the business in which the CGU BRI RIBRE -
operates.
DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION 21. B R R IIK &
COSTS
2019 2018
—T-hE AN S
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBF T
Development and formation costs 8 & K 37 K AR
— burial plots under development -HAEFEEM
for sale 5,292 5,230
The development and formation costs represent MELKIKEERRN —EEZES
development costs incurred for burial plots construction TR EZ &M 2 REBEKRAR - Wik
in a cemetery site which will be completed for sale by AR A EHFEME R ZBREET
burial plot and are stated at the lower of cost and net iR o
realisable value.
INVENTORIES 22. #8&
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE TR ARBTFT
Merchandises for resale HEE M 359 348
Completed burial plots BT EH 607 667
Marble stones RER - 70
966 1,085

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. ESRHMBEWKRIE

2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBTR ARBT T
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 2,716 1,275
Less: Allowance for ECL on trade BB REWEIE 2 BHE
receivables (note (d)) BB RE (HiEd) (383) -
Trade receivables, net B EWRIE - FHE
(note (c) and (e)) (Bt 5% () Kz (e)) 2,333 1,275
Other receivables H b i W R I8 14,422 10,272
Less: Allowance for ECL on other R B th FE U ERIR 2
receivables (note (g)) TEEE B R E R
(Bt FE(9)) (3,993) (3,156)
Other receivables, net (note (f)) Hh MR IE - R
(Bt 5E(f)) 10,429 7,116
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E e SR IE 12,762 8,391
Deposits and prepayments (note (h)) & R IBA A (K 3 () 41,016 42,921
53,778 51,312
Representing: =
Current B E7 52,778 50,312
Non-current 3 B &1 1,000 1,000
53,778 51,312
Note: Bt 3
(@) All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be @ FBESRHEMBEYGRIEEERN —
recovered within one year and prepayments are expected FRUE - mIEMRIETERR —F
to be recognised as expense within one year or in its NN EFEEBHBERAME -
normal operating cycle.
(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables (b) BEHRHAMEWFIE L BREE A
approximate to their fair values. NTEEE -
() Trade receivables with the following aging analysis by age © MHUTAERBRERAKREZEYGRIEIR

presented based on the invoice date as at the end of the BERAMZN 2 Rk D

reporting period:

2019 2018

—FE—-NE —ZT-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

0 to 180 days 0£180H 2,137 1,007
181 to 365 days 1812 365H 65 116
1 year to 2 years 15225 131 152
2,333 1,275

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BES RHMEWRIE(4E)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) M aE: (88)
() (Continued) (© (#)

The average credit period for funeral arrangement services
granted to non-funeral services deed customers is 45 days
(2018: 45 days).

There is no credit period granted to customers for the
other service rendered by the Group.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in
note 34(a).

As at 31 December 2019, expected credit loss of
approximately RMB383,000 (2018: RMB nil) were made
against the gross amount of trade receivables.

Movement in the ECL in respect of trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

RBEBELTHERE @ MEBRERER
HrBPREZFHEEHR45H
(ZZ—/)\F : 45R)

A& B mpt AR 2 R M
EPRLEESY-

RE B WMok 2 SR IFBEAE
o

EEASEEEZEBRMNE—PFD
R FE34() ©

WZZE—-AF+-_A=+—8 " 5
BHREBIE Z TR HEE
BB E LA R383,000T (=%
—NEFE AREZTIT) -

FNEBESERFEZBHEE
EBEOEBIT

2019 2018
—®-n& T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR  ARNT

R—A—BHN&#%
FRNEHREHEEEHIE 383 -
R+-_A=+—HBo#&s 383 -

Balance at 1 January
ECL recognised during the year

Balance at 31 December

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BES R HMEWKERIE ()

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(e) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are

B 5

(e)

(#%)

IR E 2 K E SRR

I8 Bl 3k R RAR BB RIE Z FE U
BHBERZBHRITWT

as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBEF T
Neither past due nor impaired I 4% 80 HA 5OR (B 79 63

Past due but not impaired & BB ROR (B
Less than 1 month past due BE AR —EA 1,440 762
1 to 3 months past due BH—EAE=EA 183 17
Over 3 months past due AR m = E A 631 433
2,254 1,212
2,333 1,275

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to various customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

(f) Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
as it relates to a wide range of debtors for whom there
was no recent history of default. Management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of the non-impaired balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

A 45 180 H SO0 (B 2 JRE UK RO BRI
MPEREHBEZZEEFLERH -

8 HI B 30 AROR (B 2 FE YR IE BB
UEFPEH 2EEPHEALER
RIFOFELE - BREBELR
EREERRBARZSHERIELA
BEEE REASKFEELERITEER
BE MZSERKDEERUTER
W o REE I ER RS ERTE
EERm -

13 42 8 HR SR 1B 2 b FE M SR B
TR BT R DR 2 R BET
ANER - EEERBBERZER
REESRELRERE  REARE
BEOEVWEEREY  MxEEH
MR BARHKE -

MEETHERE  RERERLER
Wz BRFEEHZTFHEESRA4SH
(ZZE—\F :458) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BES RHMEWRIE(4E)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(9)

Impairment loss of other receivables

Impairment loss of other receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment losses are written off against other receivables
directly.

B aE: (&)

(9)

H 8 WK IE 2 RUE B 1R

Hith fEURIB Z BEBETIER
BB - N ARBEERZR
T8 Z AT B AR G B R S - e 1
AT BHEBRESEZEEMER
HIAMA

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss BEBBEEZD
2019 2018
—F-NE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREFT
At 1 January w—H—H 3,156 4,650
ECL recognised during the year FANEHEREHEEEIE 837 -

Reversal of allowance for doubtful R AR B O B

debt - (1,494)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 3,993 3,156

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no other receivables of the Group were individually
determined to be impaired.

Included in deposits and prepayments are deposits
paid for funeral parlours and funeral services centres,
prepaid hire charge of funeral parlours and funeral
services centres and prepaid agency commission for
funeral services of approximately RMB1,000,000 (2018:
RMB1,000,000), RMB10,628,000 (2018: RMB8,131,000)
and RMB22,287,000 (2018: RMB22,687,000), respectively.

A commission is paid to the agents when the service
deeds amounts were received by the Group. The
commission is fully refundable according to the agency
agreements if the Group are not required to perform the
funeral.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019

REBEZZTE-NEFRZZE-NFT+
A=+ —BLFE AEETE
H b fE UK FRIB BEE BB T R R
ﬁo

AR RENRERS B MA
BEELBERBPLIGFZ2ES -
BEELBEERBEFRLZENSH
A REBBEEREZEBMR
BHE 2 ERHARE000000
TL(ZZ —)\F : A R %1,000,000
JT) + A K #10,028,0007T (= & —
N AR¥8,131,0007T) & A R#E
22,287,000 (ZZE—NF: AR
22,687,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24. IR RRITHEES

(a) RERBITHEHBEE:

(@) Cash and bank balances comprise:

2019 2018

—E-NEFE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET ARBT T

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 119,216 103,467

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates.

At 31 December 2019, cash at bank and on
hand of the Group of RMB17,238,000 (2018:
RMB11,362,000) were denominated in RMB and
placed with banks in the PRC. Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash at bank
and on hand are denominated in the following
currencies:

FIRSWRBTERTHHR
MR EZ 2 DAL S -

R-ZFB-NF+-_A=+t—8"
AEBZRORFEERESAA
R#17,238,000 L (ZZE—N\F -
A R #11,362,0007T) * A AR
B ELTFRAPEZRIT o
A R AR 5N B AR & A B A
B E il & ) & 45 [E - &0 R
FEE IR 1R E T o

AEBZROTRFERE 2K

EEATIE®EE:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\FE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARBT T

us$ ETT 636 1,102
HK$ B IT 14,999 1,982
RMB AR 17,238 11,362
NTD etk 85,954 88,816
VND W E 389 205
119,216 103,467

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24. IR RIBITHBR(E)
(Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

(b)

Lease liabilities

HETHREEEYR

Bank borrowings

HEAE MITER
2019 2019 2018
—E-hE ZB-hE —Z)N\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTRT ARETR ARBT®
At 1 January n—H—H 38,472 9,304 10,130
Changes from financing RIBIR&FEE
cash flows
Repayment of principal BEMEEAE
of lease liabilities PG =) (3,612) - -
Repayment of bank loans {EERITE K - (1,112) (1,067)
Interest expenses M ERX 2,527 264 279
Payment of interest BT R (2,527) (264) (455)
Total changes from financing & & 8 4 i & &)
cash flows e (3,612) (1.112) (1,243)
Decrease in interest payable F&{ %) 5 & 2 - - 184
Exchange adjustments P 2= g & - 197 233
At 31 December KR+=—A=+—H 34,860 8,389 9,304

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. B R H M FEMFRIA

2019 2018

—E—-nE —ZE—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETR AREEF T

Trade payables (note (c)) Z 5 RE (K ) 3,025 2,994

Other payables and accruals E b JE T 50IE K B ST RIE 14,635 12,629
Financial liabilities measured at REHEK A EZ

amortised cost MBaE 17,660 15,623

Notes:

(a) All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables

approximate to their fair values.

(©) The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables,
based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting

GEE

@ FAESREMENFERBHR
—FREE IR -

() HBHRIMMEAHA BEAERL
AFEEE -

© HATRRIEHRESENRIAR
BERAMZRE M

period:
2019 2018
—E-h%E —B-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTR AREFT T
0 to 30 days 0&30H 524 144
31 days to 90 days 31HE90H 1,678 23
Over 90 days 90H M £ 823 2,827
3,025 2,994
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-_ZT—h&F+_A=+—HIFE
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26. BHREE

2019 2018
—E-h=E —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETTT
Funeral service deeds (note (a)) 78 & AR 7% R 49 (B £ () 93,811 94,160
Burial plots under development F9 B Fh A i K 2 A8 (BT 3 (b))
and tombstones (note (b)) 2,423 2,357
Stem cells and immunocytes AR K e % AR M 2 TS
business and biotechnical I EEs /R NES T =
machinery 1,866 -
98,100 96,517
Analysed as: 2RI E
Current B HA 97,901 96,320
Non-current JE BN HA 199 197
98,100 96,517

Notes:

Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sino-Life
(HK)"), subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services
deeds to customers (“Deed Holders”). The funeral services
deeds are prepaid funeral services packages which mainly
comprise particular types of funeral services at the choice
of the customers to be arranged in future. The Deed
Holders can elect to make payment on a lump sum
basis or settle the outstanding amount of the funeral
services deeds by mutual agreed instalments. The Group
determines the pricing of the funeral services deeds by
adding a margin to the estimated costs of delivering
these services, after having taking into account of major
factors including the timing of the instruction of the Deed
Holders. Amounts received from funeral services deeds
sold are recorded as receipts in advance. When the Deed
Holders have defaulted payment for two months and do
not pay back the defaulted amounts after the Group's
not less than 30-day’s demand notice, the funeral services
deeds would be regarded as lapsed and a minimum of
20% of the total sum of the funeral services deeds or
the instalments paid, whichever is lower, will be forfeited
as income. The Deed Holders can request for funeral
services or terminate the funeral services deeds at any
time after the funeral services deeds are sold. Accordingly,
receipts in advance is classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act
(FEZEE IR 1) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated
on 17 July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003
and 4 July 2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the
gross receipt of each funeral services deed entered into
after 31 July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan as
trust monies. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has
deposited RMB28,777,000 (2018: RMB29,963,000) in
three financial institutions in Taiwan.

(b) It is principally arising from the sales of burial plots and
tombstones under instalment plans and such amount
will be recognised as revenue when the relevant revenue
recognition criteria are met.

(©) Contract liabilities of stem cells and immunocytes business
and biotechnical machinery represents to the receipt in
advances of the machinery.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

HKFRS 16 was adopted 1 January 2019 without
restatement of comparative figures. For an explanation of
the transitional requirements that were applied as at 1
January 2019, see note 3. The accounting policies applied
subsequent to the date of initial application, 1 January
2019, as disclosed in note 2(f)(B).

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as
lessee)

The Group leases certain properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. Under the property leases, the
periodic rent is fixed over the lease term.

26.

27.

SHAERGE)
GETNE)
@ (@

BER-_ZT-_FLtA++tHEEE
B YR-ZTET=FtA—AK
T L F L AMAE—FETZ
AEBERERIEN  AEBEEER
R-ZE=F+A=+—A%T
2 &N R & AR IS R 4 BT LR A
BEZT5%FRREEZ @ REE
EBEEe - R-TE—HE+-A
=t+—H AKEBEERZE=MA
& & B R 1T A R #28,777,000
TL(ZZ—)\F : AR#29,963,000
JT) e

(b)) BFEXIZELENHMNRETET
MEMLEREE  MZBASHEG
75 & 1 B W 25 0 SR M 1 B B R
AW -

© BHHEREKRPE@ABREZREDE
RESHEGHNABREESNERR
1 o

ERESERBEERR

ARBANR-F-NF-A—BRRE
BB HREEZ16RMAL BB
REE - BN _T—-NEFE—HA—H
ERZBEREHE F2HME
3-REREARRHEIZZE-NF—
A—R)REBZEHRRBENRH
FT2(f)(B) °

HEFBOIABASH ZHE
AEEREQEMENRAEREE

ETYE - REVWEELD  RNHEEH
N EHRESREESH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

27. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 27. {f FHiEEERHEER

LIABILITIES (Continued) (48&)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as HEFHUUEARBASH ZHEE
lessee) (Continued) (&)
31 December 2019 Lease contracts Fixed payments
—E-hAE+=-HA=+-—H HEeY B E =%
Number RMB’000
& H ARETR
Property leases with fixed HeBENMEHRE
payments 4 6,139
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets BREEEENEMNE S ZERESR
by class of underlying asset is as follows: ENEREFEI>NTBT:
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—F-hE —T-hF
+=-A=+-—H8 —A—8
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETTT

Ownership interests in leasehold — FI#pEEHMTEIZINE
land carried at depreciated cost A ANFIBR 2 E L it

with remaining lease term of: B R
— Between 10 and 50 years - 102504 2,737 2,804

Office premises leased for own use, A E{FE I ILHTE KA
carried at depreciated cost TR Z MR EYE 33,791 38,472

36,528 41,276
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
27. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 27. FR#EEERBEAR

LIABILITIES (Continued) (#8)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as HEZBH(UEABASDZHEE
lessee) (Continued) (%)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases BERERERCEHECHETEES
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: MranT
2019
=
RMB’000
ARETR
Interest on lease liabilities MEBEZNE
(note 6(a)) (Fft 7F6(a)) 2,527
Expense relating to short-term leases and HEFSRERAR_E-NF+A
other leases with remaining lease term —+t—H AR ZEHEE
ending on or before 31 December 2019 REMMEER@ENRZ
(note 6(e)) (Fff 52 6(e)) 1,362
Lease Liabilities HEEE
Future lease payments are due as follows: REBEENRZHBEBROT
As at 31 December 2019 Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
R-E—-h&E+=-A=+—H -3
HEGR Fl =& HR{E
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETR ARETR
Not later than one year —F R 6,071 2,275 3,796
Later than one year and not —FBREMRFAN
later than two years 6,000 2,010 3,990
Later than two years and not MEREBRFER
later than five years 18,000 4,251 13,749
Later than five years hE& 14,500 1,175 13,325
44,571 9,711 34,860
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE
27. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 27 SH#ESERHEEAGR

LIABILITIES (Continued) (48)
Lease Liabilities (Continued) HEAEE)
As at 1 January 2019 Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
R-ZE—N&F—AF—AH = 1K
HERZ A E HE
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARBFTIT AREBTT
Not later than one year —FR 6,139 2,527 3,612
Later than one year and not —FIEEMFEN
later than two years 6,000 2,204 3,796
Later than two years and not later MF 18 AFE R
than five years 18,000 5,161 12,839
Later than five years FF & 20,500 2,275 18,225
50,639 12,167 38,472
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the MisE: ASECRAZRFEEEIERE

cumulative effect approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative
information as at 31 December 2018 has not been

restated. See Note 3 for further details about transition.

The present value of future lease payments are analysed
as:

RBEEY B REERE165R L
BR-ZE-NF-A—BOHDN
EEBRUASREARERE G E
A7 BAREHEENTHE
HABEEE XABIR=-F
—NEFE+ZA=+—BHzZERE
£ BEBREZE-FFHFEFS
B EE3 -

ARBENKZRELIHTWMT

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

—F-nEF —ZET-NEF

+=-RA=+—H —H—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFT

Current liabilities mEBE 3,796 3,612
Non-current liabilities EmEEE 31,064 34,860
34,860 38,472
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. IRITEE
2019 2018
—E—-nE —ZE—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREEF T
Bank borrowings, secured RITEE EEHE
Current liabilities mEBE
- Portion of term loan from bank due - R—FRE|HEEN
for repayment within 1 year RITEHEREBD 1,154 1,267
Non-current liabilities EREELE
- Portion of term loan from bank due - R—FZEHEEN
for repayment after 1 year HRITEHE RS 7,235 8,037
Total et 8,389 9,304
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, bank borrowings were RZE-NFR_ZFE-N\F+_A=
due for repayment, which are based on the scheduled +—B - RITEEAENTI AR (H
repayment dates as stipulated in the respective loan DIESEAERBENMTHENEE
agreements, as follows: EEBRBRTE)EE:
2019 2018
—E-nE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREEF T
Within 1 year —FR 1,154 1,267
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FEERWER 1,175 1,268
After 2 years but within 5 years RREBERAEFNRN 3,658 3,802
After 5 years REF%& 2,402 2,967
7,235 8,037
8,389 9,304
All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of FIERITEEBIBITHAEMBRR -
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, WMASBEERZH EHANEE
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on BAREREEE -

demand.
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and is up to date with the scheduled
repayments of the term loans. Further details of the
Group's liquidity risk are set out in note 34(b). As at 31
December 2019, none of the covenants relating to drawn
down facilities had been breached (2018: nil).

All of the bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after one
year contain a repayment on demand clause and hence
these balances are not expected to be settled within one
year and are classified as a non-current liability.

At 31 December 2019, the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by a personal guarantee to the
extent of approximately RMB34,841,000 (equivalent
to US$5,000,000) (2018: RMB34,394,000 (equivalent
to US$5,000,000) from Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu”), a
director of the Company (note 35(c)(v)). Such banking
facilities were not utilised for both years.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the effective interest
rates of the bank borrowings were as follows:

28. RITHEE (&)

AEBTHEREGETZERH
MEZEBETHRBEETHEN -
EEAHECRRNE —FPHBHR
NHEFE34() c RZZE—AE+-_A=
+—H - AEEVEEREEABDAE
BHENRE(ZE—N\E |m)o

PRBERITEREREHKASIE -

R—FRIBPEENRTEEMNE
HBERZREEGS Bt %54
HRIEHRR -—FABKRES AR
RIERBAE -

N-Z—AE+-_A=+—H0 &%
ErRTBEZERRAARRFES
(Fff £ 35()(v) BIARBT e £ (T2 4 1)
2 EBR %A AR34,841,000
7T (#8 & 75,000,0003 7T) 2 f@E A ¥
R(ZE—N\F : AR¥34,394,0007C
(¥8& $5,000,000F L)) - ZHR1T
BEAMEFEHL R TFUAEA -

RZE—NFR_ZTE—N\F+_A=
+—H BOTEEZERAEOT:

2019 2018
—E-h=E —E-NF
Variable-rate R I 1.62-2.29% 1.62-2.29%

Bank borrowings of RMB5,805,000 (2018:
RMB6,413,000) denominated in NTD were secured by the
freehold land and buildings in Taiwan with total carrying
amount of RMB19,932,000 (2018: RMB19,455,000) (note
14(d)). Of the total bank borrowings, RMB2,584,000
(2018: RMB2,892,000) (note 35(c)(vii)) is guaranteed by
Mr. Liu.
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RITIEE AR #5,805,000C(=Z—
J\E A R#6,413,0007T) A A 5T &
BEEHE - WAREE Z KA ERE LT
MIEFEREmMAE A ARY19,932,000
T (ZZE—/)\F : AR¥19,455,0007T)
TEH AR (M 5E14(d) - IRITEEEEA
R #2,584,000. (= —NF: AR
#2,892,0007T (Bt 5% 35(c)(vii)) FA 8 %
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 29.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

EEMBRRARAZMEDB

(a) HAFHMRERAZBIHHIA

financial position represents: &
2019 2018
—E—-NE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARKET T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 4,258 4,174

Provision for the year FEEE
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - FPEPEMEH

(note 7) (Mt 3E7) 1,236 1,108
Income tax paid during the year FRNEMNER (1,492) (1,024)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 4,002 4,258

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC with
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or a
place of business in the PRC, will be subject to
withholding income tax at the rate up to 10% on
various types of passive income such as dividends
derived from sources in the PRC. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong, a preferential rate of
5% is applied. On 22 February 2008, the State
Administration of Taxation approved Caishui (2008)
No. 1, pursuant to which dividend distributions
out of retained earnings of foreign investment
enterprises prior to 31 December 2007 will be
exempted from withholding income tax.

(b) RALERELEHEBEERE
—EE)\F—A—HE  RIE
PREMCEMEHRE  WIEEF
BIPpK SRR B & Bk fE AP
BIpK sk B2 EMBEES
U A7 3E B B R 7 AR B A 57 sk
REEEMBBEACIEERD
¥ AmRSEwERA (flR
BYEZEE)ESEI0%ZH
KEMTEIT - LR BB M
Ry z&EE FIRAZER
FEES% -  BRMIBBLRERZ
EENFE-_A-T-BHRETT
(2008)F15% - B - INE B E
WH—EELF+—A=+—H
A2 IRBAFIEL R B DK
BEREZHBIAMER -
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29. ZEMBRARNZHAEH

29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

(Continued)

As all of the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises
in the PRC are directly and wholly owned by Hong
Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a rate of 5% is
applicable to the calculation of this withholding
tax. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of the retained profits of RMB22,488,000 (2018:
RMB14,196,000) as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 42 of the Income Tax Act
of Republic of China, the net dividend or net surplus
earning received by a profit-seeking enterprise
organised as a company from its investment in
another domestic profit-seeking enterprise shall not
be included in its taxable income. Such exemption
is not applicable for investment in foreign profit-
seeking enterprise, which is subject to income tax
at the rate of 17%.

As one of the Group’s subsidiaries, being a foreign
profit-seeking enterprise, is directly and wholly
owned by a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan,
a rate of 17% is applicable to the calculation
of the income tax. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB17,540,000 (2018: RMB17,540,000) as
the Company controls the dividend policy of this
subsidiary and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.
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(%)

(b)

ARBEREEHEERE
(&)

ENAEERFE B INE
¥R E B LA B
RREEZEHRAE  FTEHRE
MM 2 BB ERSY% - AAXR
RREFIZEHNB AR Z K E
B - WEHEZ SR A TKA
BERAT R AR DR - I AR
RAETBRERDIRRSB & F
RATINZEEREARE
22,488,000 JL(ZZE—N\F : A
R #14,196,0007T) 1F 1+ B & -

YRR L LRS- Ry
EL B ARARREE
SES TR T e L
CESES Y TN
LRHBRFFE  BATAR
BB - B RIS T E
RESNAEFI D EHBRE - &
% 45 9 P15 B 2 17% -

HRAEEEF—FHHEAF
BINEREF T YH—HEE
BEFMALHEB AR E#E
TEHE FTEAMSHENER
REE17%  BRADFHEHZ
WEBARZREHKE  WEH#
B2 S m M A KRA e R A Bk
D A TR 0 2 N A Y
KD IRREBEFFETZH
BRI A A R#17,540,0007T
(ZE—N\F : AR¥17,540,000
TO)EH B -
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29. HEMBRARPZAESB

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

(@)

(Continued)

In Taiwan, under Article 4 of Standards of
Withholding Rates for Various Incomes issued by
Ministry of Finance of Republic of China, the net
dividends or profit distributed to a profit seeking
enterprise having its head office outside the
territory of the Republic of China from investment
in an enterprise within the territory of the Republic
of China shall be withheld at a rate of 20% of the
amount distributed.

As one of the Group’s subsidiary operates within
the territory of the Republic of China having its
head office outside the territory of the Republic of
China, a rate of 20% is applicable to the calculation
of this withholding tax. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 as the subsidiary has no retained profit
that can be distributed.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB22,275,000 (2018: RMB26,438,000)
available for offset against future profits. Other than
tax losses amounting to RMB13,283,000 (2018:
RMB17,446,000) that would be expiring from 5
years to 10 years pursuant to the relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan, the
remainder at the end of the reporting period can be
carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

(%)

(b)

(o)

ARBERAELEBBREE
(#&)
B RIEPER B MBS

BHOSEMGINHAREES
A LB ERENFERE
iﬁ?hﬂ']iﬂﬁ%l&iﬁﬁ"q:‘ﬁ
REIE AN kX ESR,
SaFFRE - HAEMD /)—Ji =
BHI20% fF TR -

R A KB H P — KB AR
EHRERBRANZXEEARS
BERNFERBEIN  FFEE
Eﬁﬂﬁmi%ﬁﬁﬁm%
HREBE-T-AFR=
NE+= ﬂ—+ Ei@f B
J& 1~ 7] 48 A 0 K B9 4R B O
Ao B R RER B M |RK T
BT RE LA -

AREBEAELEHIBEE

RZZE—-hF+=ZA=+—8"
AEEZRBATEBBEAR
122,275,000t (=& — )\ F :
A R #26,438,0007T) A] A LA 5
SHAROR A o BRIBIZAE - M
mEaEMMAENER KR TR
REEI0F B M IBEEE A
[R#513,283,000L (ZZ—N\&F -

A R #17,446,0007T) 4h + A %R
EEIR 2 TR 20 A R B 45

B oo iR R MOE M 2 IR A
TR - WO R L B TR B 18 T e
REERAEE
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30. PROVISIONS

30. B

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Provision for future costs of RUBEHRREZ
delivering funeral services IR B A 1
At 1 January mn—H—8 2,975 2,900
Exchange adjustment ME 5, o B 69 75
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 3,044 2,975

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral services
deeds by adding a margin to the estimated cost of
delivering funeral services in future, after taking into
account of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting fee payable
to the sub-contractor for each funeral service deed
performed, the current market conditions and the price
of deeds. Management reassesses these estimates at the
end of each reporting period to estimate if the receipts in
advance for funeral service deeds can cover the estimated
future costs of delivering funeral services and determine
the need of making a provision in the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL 31. lx&
No. of shares Amount
Bz & H &8
RMB'000
AREFT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEB T 2EBR
At 1 January 2018, 31 December RZE—-NF—H—8"
2018, 1 January 2019 and —E-N\&F+=A
31 December 2019 =+—B ZE-hF
—A—Bk-_ZT—NHF
+=-—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares, issued and EETRYELER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2018, 31 December RZE—-NF—H—A8"
2018, 1 January 2019 and —ZE-NE+=A
31 December 2019 =+—B ZE-h%F
—A—BkZ=ZF—NF
+=-—A=+—H 742,500,000 69,218

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

ERBREAEANEREDTIRE IR 2K
BRARRARBIBRRAS LHER
BRETRR - IEEBEILAR
AZBTEEMSHEBRSER -
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32. RESERVES

(a)

—hWFE+TZA=+—RHLLHFEE

32. k&
The reconciliation between the opening and (@) FAEEHGZeRZZEHBD FY
closing balances of each component of the B R4 ﬁ%Z%ﬂE%B’\ZEQT/E
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the REHK - ARFREBELS
consolidated statement of changes in equity. ZEVRERZBHFBHT
Details of the changes in the Company’s UNNE
individual components of reserves between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share  translation compensation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
AR 13 B 2 B
I & ERfiE  2WERE RiBHE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®FT ARBTR ARETR ARET:
As at 1 January 2018 RZF-\&—-f—A 220,633 (20,040) 7,345 (182,632) 25,306
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (5,122) (5,122)
Exchange differences on BEMBBRREEZ
translation of financial ERER
statements - 3,953 - - 3,953
Total comprehensive loss AERR2HERES
for the year - 3,953 - (5,122) (1,169)
Lapse of share options granted B 5 (! B % 1 5% - - (318) 318 -
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\#F
+-A=1+-H 220,633 (16,087) 7,027 (187,436) 24,137
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE—-A—A 220,633 (16,087) 7,027 (187,436) 24,137
Profit for the year KER R - - - 1,600 1,600
Exchange differences on BEMBBRREEZ
translation of financial EFZR
statements - 2,429 - - 2,429
Total comprehensive income AER2ENGEE
for the year - 2,429 - 1,600 4,029
As at 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE
+-A=z+-H 220,633 (13,658) 7,027 (185,836) 28,166
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the Company’s share
premium account are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from the business
combination under common control in
relation to the acquisition of Bau Shan during
the group reorganisation in 2007. The merger
reserve of the Group represents the difference
between aggregate net asset value of Bau
Shan acquired and the consideration paid for
the acquisition of Bau Shan pursuant to the
group reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

According to the applicable laws and
regulations in Taiwan, the Group’s Taiwan
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of
their net profits after taxation, as determined
under the relevant accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to companies
established in Taiwan, to a non-distributable
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
the registered capital of the respective
enterprises. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before the distribution of a dividend
to owners but after offset the previous years’
losses, if any.

T-NFt-A=t+—BILEE

32. B (&)
(b) #EMERAR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

ﬂgﬁhﬁf?
ﬁﬁﬁxﬁéﬁﬂ% ZIN
NAlZBDEERTFES
DK TR ﬁ%%@
MR EBBHEARARD
BEE ﬁF1EEEE%

¥BARPEBEIME
fB&IE o

EHEE
AEHEFEHBEIN_ZTEE+F
BT EEHAE U

BELARMARZEHET
ZEBAHMELE - AR
B A REB R E
BllzBEEFEAFRR
EEEEAFRKEELE
HTREZZHE-

A E R
BIEEENEREZRIR
Bl AREBEZEEHB A
RIARBRREAENK L
ZRAFIZAEBEHREIR
B E  BRHKRTE
“F Z210% 2 7~ A 7K
He HEHBEEHRER
ﬁ%ﬁ%Zﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ
o LA IED R
/,\BA m#EAADIKRE
Al BREEBEFES
BOAE)BIEL -

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER

191



192

32. RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)
(iv) Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group are required
to appropriate at least 10% of their profit
after tax, as determined under the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to companies established in the
PRC, to a non-distributable reserve fund until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the respective enterprises. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividends to owners. The
non-distributable reserve fund can be used
to offset the previous years' losses, if any,
expand the existing operations or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less
than 25% of its registered capital. The non-
distributable reserve fund is non-distributable
other than upon liquidation.

According to the Vietnam Enterprise Law,
Vietnam subsidiaries in the Group can set
their reserve fund according to the respective
Charter. Under the Charter of the Vietnam
subsidiaries, they are required to transfer
5% to 15% of profit after tax to set up the
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 10%
of the registered capital of the respective
enterprises.
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32. B (4E)

(b) REMERMAEZGE)

(iv)

EEEGEE
BEFBRBERAERE K&
EzHEMNBEARAZH
RFEEARABEKL A
RlzBBEEsTRA KB
HTET 2B RN &
D10% B 2 0] 5 R 6 18
T HEREuMHESEZE
% 2aAMER0% A
IF - MZFEBSBERYE
IR B A 52k IR B R
7o NADIRFEES A
RIEEEFREE(NE) -
BRIAB X REBIE
MB AR ZBEBINEAR - M
AR RBEEITE &
BIASEREFMELRZ
25% ° BRIBERAN - A
KEBEETEDIR -

RIEBEMEARE  AEE
ZHMEMB AR RES
ERNRBERRHFE
& o RIEME M B QA
WARIERE  BREAEER
5% £15% 2 B %t 1% & 7
BURHBS EZEER
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32. B (&)

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of

reserves

(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for freehold
land and buildings held for own use in note
2(e) and is not distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(v).

(vii) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to eligible participants of
the Group recognised in accordance with
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(n).

(b) REBEHEERMZEGE)

()

(vi)

(vii)

WEEL
ARBERIIMEEM R
- WAR R M EE2(e) P
BB K A 1 S i1
BREBTRAZEBE
BREETAIDIK

B
ERFREEMERRE
FRBEEBHBRRME
EZERER - &FHETD
RIEME2V ST 28
AR -

1

ARt i 20 2 B
A AR 4% BT 3 2(n) Bt LA BR 19
EMNREMN G HE
FIERZRTAREAE
{2 EE 7 BRI R
TTEBBESE QT EA
B o
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

(o)

Capital Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
owners and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to owners, return capital to owners, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with other companies in the industry,
the Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio which is total liabilities divided by total
assets. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

32. B (4E)

(9

EXrEHE
AEEERERNZBRSER
AEERBFELLE  LEHMA
AN RO R K B AL S
B ESRNE L HFER
BARBBIAR D EREA -

RERIHABERGEE A%
BEeRERABEAXNZEER
T REEARNTHABA %
THROIEEEENRDE
I8 o

MEMBERR—H  A£EH
NEEBBELERERERN
RAE-BEEAERERIZBEE
BRLUBREERE - AEBER
BEEAGBLEHEFNREEK
FoRZFB-NEFERZFT-NF
+ZA=+—HZEEEBEL
e

2019 2018

—FE-hE —E-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T T

Total liabilities FEN=R 175,508 133,744
Total assets mEE 293,157 236,553
Gearing ratio EEABGBLE 59.87% 56.54%

There were no changes in the Group's approach to
capital management compared with previous years.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 33. iRfERE9Z2HBEIT A

CATEGORIES
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTR ARETTT
Financial assets BBEE
Financial assets designated at FVTPL EBERERAFEFAER
L BEE 38,336 33,320
Loans and receivables (including cash B 5t JE W 1B (B E
and cash equivalents) ReRBEEEM) 127,942 122,182
Financial liabilities MBasE
Amortised cost 9 R AR 35,495 29,994

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk arising from financial instruments. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risk are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

(i) In respect of trade receivables from funeral
services, the credit risk is relatively low as
the receivable for each individual customer
is not significant and the Group generally
offer credit period of 45 days (note 23(c))
to customers. The Group does not obtain
collateral in respect of its financial assets.

34. MBEBEERMBIAZ

AFAE

RAREZHEIABEZARE
EREER  RBASERRTSE
% o T ST LA S5 B T B LR R
5 7 OB X I P SRR 2 B 7
EIR B R ¢

(@) FERMR
EERREXZHITHERE
BREEMEHANEE LR
BREAZER ANEBDRMR
—EERAGERZHITIRS
REGTE R EM R BUR (053
) ERBERZOER Y
BEKER -

) HEEREZEKRES
BRAME - AR EREE
FIRBEFEZ KB TE
A BAEE-—RRARTS
EH458 (M 3E23(0) 215
B MEERBRAAER
K o NEE N EBE I
BEEESEAES -
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HMEEREERMEIAEZ

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

In respect of other receivables, the Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor.
At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had certain concentrations of credit
risk as 18% (2018: 12%) of the total loans
and receivables (excluding cash and cash
equivalents) is due from a funeral parlour.

In order to minimise risk, the management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Ongoing credit evaluation
is performed on the financial condition of
customers. These evaluations focus on the
debtor’s current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
debtor as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtor operates.
The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.

The majority of the Group’s investments
are financial assets designated at FVTPL
which include mutual funds and unit trusts
established in Taiwan. Given the high credit
standing of investment counterparties,
management does not expect any investment
counterparties to fail to meet their
obligations.
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34 MBEMERRMBIRLZ

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
good credit rating.

(v)  The Group does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 23.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to parent company’s board
approval. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on current
rates at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group is required to pay.

AFEEHE)
() EERMR(E)
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HMEEREERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AFEE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

198

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESRERE(E)
The maturity analysis for the bank borrowings is WITEENINEA ST IIETE
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates. EMEEEHHRH -
2019
—F-1%
More than  More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within  less than  less than  More than undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
Bl-5 RERE BHRIER
BEX  R-£R BORWE BOREE BBELE ReRELH REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FF 7 B S B
Trade payables, accruals and other ZHMER 2R - EAHER
payables Hin A 14,635 3,025 - - - 17,660 17,660
Amount due to a director ER-2E22HE 789 - - - - 789 789
Amount due to ultimate holding BN HERELR 2 HE
company 8,664 - - - - 8,664 8,664
Bank borrowings RiTEE - 1,207 1,297 3,801 2,485 8,930 8,389
Lease liabilities HE&RE - 6,071 6,000 18,000 14,500 44,571 34,860
24,088 10,393 7,297 21,891 16,945 80,614 70,362
2018
“E-N\f
More than ~ More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within less than less than ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BB-F BBRF ANRHR
REX  R-%A BIREE EIRLF HBBELF ReREHE FHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETX
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEST4 BiF B &
Trade payables, accruals and other E HEMFIE « B HER
payables Hitn BN FIE 115,122 2,994 - - - 118,116 118,116
Amount due to a director EN—2EZHE 723 - - - - 723 723
Amount due to ultimate ENSHRERARZHE
holding company 4,334 - - - - 4,334 4,334
Bank borrowings BAEE - 1,267 1,268 3,802 3,656 9,993 9,304
120,179 4,261 1,268 3,802 2,967 132,477 132,477
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34 MBEMERRMBIRLZ

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(@)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ from those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

AFEE)

(b)

RBESER(E)

f45% B 8.9 B0 95 45 A R
2 FIE TR - E B
A BRETRIANAY S
ERURED -

Interest rate risk (0 FEREB
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate AEFHBEAXBEBREEBEEBEZ
risk in relation to borrowings at variable rates. The RemEMNERR - NEEIW
Group did not use derivative financial instruments EmERTEMBIAENERE
to hedge its debt obligations. BEEL -
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly rEBZRERENER B E
concentrates on fluctuation of market interest rate EERRAEEEREEZT
arise from the Group’s borrowings. B R EKE o
Bank balances are carried at low interest rates and RITHEBBZEREFTE Bt
the interest income thereon is not significant. EXNFERALAERX -
(i)  The following table details the interest rate (i) TEREFAEELREH
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end AEEEMENER
of the reporting period.
2019 2018
—E-AE ZE-N\F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
RMB'000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
ARBTRT BERHE% ARBTT  BREAE%)
Variable rate borrowings ¥ Bt &
Bank borrowings RITEE 8,389 | 1.62%-2.29% 9304 | 162%-2.29%

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
The Executive Directors performed sensitivity
analysis with estimation of a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points.

(i) SEE S
WTEELEE LA T
FE10018 25 B 2 5 8t i 17
BB E B4 -

\
G

\
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HMEEREERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates for variable-rate borrowings,
with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group's
loss after tax and accumulated losses by
approximately RMB70,000 (2018: RMB78,000).
Other components of consolidated equity
would not change in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analyses above have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 100 basis points (2018: 100
basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2018.

Currency risk

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Executive
Directors monitor the Group’s foreign currency
exposures and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposures should the need arises.

()

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through bank deposit denominated
in a foreign currency that is a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currency giving rise
to this risk is US$, RMB and HK$. The Group's
policy is to ensure that its net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot values when
necessary to address short-term imbalances.
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34 MBEMERRMBIRLZ

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued)
The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
RMB, translated using the spot rate at the
year end date.

AFEER)
(d) HE¥EE R
() FFEHZERER (H)

TR FF VA& B 7 B
RANHBEB N ER
AN BT E 2 EMER
EEREE ﬁﬁFEZf’ﬁz
Rk - L2EHME
@%ﬁiﬁ%/\ﬁﬁgﬂﬂ_’\ : ﬁ
TR F 48 2 BNEIE X

g o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

P #2250 BE L B (WA A R 5 5l 7R)

2019 2018
—E-0E —E-N\F

us$ RMB HK$ us$ RMB HK$

£t AR® #%m =1 ARE BT

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Fr Fr FrR T T Fr

Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEZEY 636 114,999 1,102 76 1,982

Trade and other payables B Z &k H i EMFIE - - (2,412 - - (2,254)
Net exposure arising from  HREERER
recognised assets and FESZER

liabilities FE 636 1 12,587 1,102 76 (272)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZET—NF+_A=+—HIFE
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HMEEREERMEIAEZ

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after taxation (and accumulated losses) that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the RMB and the US$ would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in

2 FEGER)
(d) EWE K (E)
(ii) 8B E ST

TRINBAERE KRG AR
SEEEAFEZEER
ZAHHIRECE - £R
RETH AR B
TEZERT  AEEZ
BEEE(RRER)
REELZBEES - 5t
timsE EBRARER
Ep=0): 3 3RS LR
R AEMER ZEME
BEEHMIIEATE -

value of the US$ against other currencies.

2019 2018
—B-nE —E-N\F

Increase/ Decrease/ Decrease/ Increase/ Decrease/ Decrease/
(decrease) (increase)  (increase) in (decrease) (increase) (increase) in
in foreign in loss after accumulated in foreign in loss after  accumulated
exchange rates taxation losses exchange rates taxation losses
EBx REEHE RitBR Ex KEGESR 5y i
E#/(TH) ®L/(8m &S /Em EA/(TH) ®BS/Em #md/0Em
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBFT AREFT
us$ eV 1.3% 7 7 6.6% - -
(1.3%) (7) (7) (6.6%) - -
RMB AEE 1.3% - - 6.6% 7 7
(1.3%) - - (6.6%) (7) 7
HK$ BT 1.9% 199 199 5.3% 84 84
(1.9%) (199) (199) (5.3%) (84) (84)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Financial Statements

vAr 1 =
B 7% 3 2= BT =T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

34 MBEMERRMBIRLZ
AFEE)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure these
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2018.

(e) Equity price
The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from financial assets designated at FVTPL.

The Group’s mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which principal assets consist
of local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds
and equity securities listed in Taiwan and other
foreign stock markets.

(d)

(e)

B (&)

(i) BEE D (&)
EREVN 2O ERER
REEBEERBNREE
HEAREHRBITZE
EHMABARE)EEE
ERTEREELER &
aiRNTE - EHEVA

ETHREIWNE  ER
R HNE T = E B 2 E A
REFTEAEEFTEZ
ZEUBTE  mMZEY
T AE{E A& B 3R & B
REFEINER R o Z DM
HHE-DF—-N\FMAZME
[{ & 21T -

ERER
AEBRE T BEEREHE
SR EIEE AR ATEIAR
HKIHMBEE -

NEBE T EEHES BB
TREENRY EFXFZEER
FEREEREMINEFSFTS
Z*t@&&l\ﬁ%fiﬁﬁ%\%%‘%
N HE 55 78 55
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HMEEREERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Equity price (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the financial assets designated
at FVTPL had been 10% (2018: 10%) lower/
higher, loss for the year and accumulated loss
would increase/decrease by RMB3,669,000 (2018:
RMB3,585,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets designated
at FVTPL.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the
Executive Directors and the audit committee. A
valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at
each interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the Executive Directors.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with
the Executive Directors and the audit committee is
held quarterly, to coincide with the reporting dates.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. fEEREERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

()

(9)

Fair value measurements

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into

R-ZB-AE+=A=+-HEH

AFEER)
(H DFEINE

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2018 categorised into
WZZ-N\E+ZA=1+—8f

AFEABRHES ATEHENER
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2019 Level 1 2018 Level 1
RZF-NE RZZE-N\E
+ZHA=+-H +ZA=+-H
HAFE $-B HATE E—E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARBFTT ARETTT
Asset BE
Financial assets designated at FVTPL 1§ B ATFEFA
BacUBEAE 38,336 38,336 33,320 33,320

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, there were no transfer between instrument
in Level 1 and Level 2 or transfers into or out of
Level 3.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
Levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

(9)

REBEEZZ—NFR_Z—N\F
T A=t+—BLEFE - F—E
HE_ETA Bl meEin.
MEEBF-EEANEL -

AEEZHEARBEE S
BESKRRATEERZH
# .

WHAFEIEZHHEITA
ZAF¥E

AN BB AT BR 2 B RS
TEZEEBEBREEAR-Z—H
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ZAFELEERKDH o

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER

205



Notes to the Financial Statements

B % i 5% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEREIZS
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material related REBEAYUANTEZBRELIRS
party transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@ FEEBAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBFEEEABEMEBE
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s S FARBE S (F M ES
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the FrgE) RETaE=HEEBGH
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as WM TEOPTIRER) 2 RIBANT ¢
follows:

2019 2018
—E—-NnE —ZET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR T T
Short-term employee benefits EHEERF 4,096 3,971
Post-employment benefits B 81 A 13 45
4,109 4,016
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”. BB ATEIR K] -

(b) Remuneration for close family members of (b) FEEBAEAF zME
key management personnel
Remuneration for close family members of key AEBEBFZEREAB TR
management personnel of the Group is as follows: ST

2019 2018

—F-hE ZT-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR AR¥ET T

Short-term employee benefits = HE & T 200 104
Post-employment benefits B 5548 A - -
200 104
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

Other related parties transactions

()

(ii)

(i)

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered
into the Trademark Licence Agreement (the
“Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Tien-
Tsai (“Mr. Liu"”). Pursuant to the Trademark
Agreement, Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the
Group on an exclusive basis a licence to use
a number of trademarks and service marks in
connection with the Group’s funeral services
business at a consideration of HK$1,000 per
year.

On 15 March 2013, a renewal deed of
trust (the “Niao Song Deed”) was entered
into between Bau Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia
("Ms. Li"), spouse of Mr. Liu, in relation to
the land property situated in Taiwan at No.
943 in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township,
Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the “Niao Song
Property”). Under the Niao Song Deed, Bau
Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be
registered under the name of and held on
trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of
ten years commencing on 15 March 2013.
Ms. Li has agreed that she shall act in the
interest of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao
Song Property during the term of the Niao
Song Deed.

On 25 March 2016, a deed of trust (the
“Neimen Deed”) was entered into between
BLL and Mr. Liu in relation to a land property
situated in Taiwan at No.0300-00001 in
Section Laizikeng, Neimen District, Kaohsiung
County, Taiwan (the “Neimen Property”).
Under the Neimen Deed, BLL agreed that the
Neimen Property, which is owned by BLL,
shall be registered under the name of and
held on trust by Mr. Liu for BLL. Mr. Liu has
agreed that he shall act in the interest of BLL
in relation to the Neimen Property.

(o)

\

—~

i)

(ii)

(iif)

IHMEER 2R S

PARTY 35 FEFEFIRXS(E)

RZE—=—F—H—81"
A E E2RE T
(TR E DT LR
B (AERHED - R
BEEme e BIEERE
BREETASENUFER
HAEEBEREED
B 2ETHEERERRBIE
i RERTF1,000%8
7TE, o

RZE—=%=HATHh
B BlLUEFEELXL
(L] #EEZR
BIRUREESHEHZS
BB AR BR 94340 5% 2 £
(TSRS
—EHEEZE(SR
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MYEBANF R L2 EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z
35. MATERIAL

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other

related parties transactions

(Continued)

(iv)

Mr. Liu signed a tenancy agreement agreeing
the Group to lawfully use the property
situated at unit 1404 on Level 14, Zhongxing
Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City,
the PRC (the “Leased Property”) as the staff
dormitory at a monthly rent of RMB4,000
starting from 1 January 2017 and the
monthly rent is determined annually.

A new property licensing arrangement was
signed between Chongqging Xizhou and Mr.
Liu with the same terms and for the same
purpose, which valid from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2019.

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing
the licensee, Chongging Xibao, a subsidiary
of the Company, to lawfully use the property
situated at Unit 1404 on Level 14, Zhongxing
Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City,
the PRC (the “Licensed Property”) as the
registered office without the payment of rent
or licence fee. The signed confirmation from
Mr. Liu authorizing Chongging Xibao to use
the Licensed Property as its registered office
does not limit Mr. Liu’s personal use, rental
and mortgage of the Licensed Property. There
was no revenue or profit contributed by the
Licensed Property during the year as there had
been no occupancy of the Licenced Property
during the year.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019

(9

—hE+=—A=+-BILEE
PARTY 35 EHEFRXS(E)

HHMBEER 2R 5 (&)

(iv)

REEEFITHEwRZH
ﬁ$%@7m£@%u
AR B E B T A CE B SR
R ELEE14181404F 2 1)
*X(HEWMEDIERET
BE BHZZE—tF—H
—HE  FAEEAAR
4,000 MBAES
REFEFE -

EEHRAEELESF
R T—EI MM ES
R E R EB
WHER X8 A=
T-NF—AF—BEE_
E-AF+-_A=+—H
JJ: °

BEEERTERE -
EﬁT%%&AEE%
E(RRAlzMBRF)A
BAEFRAURNTPEREE
™ A1 B8 A AT R4
1404 2 W% ((FFA] 1)
¥DEREMMBER - T
AXEMBES T
o R EFTHHER
i'%%iﬁ%aﬁ%#
AMEEAEMHAE
18 37 8 38 R 2 50 4 5% 7T
AMEERER HER
ERALE - ARAFER
EAERAZTIWE - WET
AMERARFERESK
W 2% 20 A o



35. MATERIAL

Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ R I

E_ET-NF+RA=+—RHIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &\

PARTY 35 FEFEFIRXS(E)

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other

related parties transactions

(Continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

Guarantee for an amount of RMB34,841,000
(equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2018:
RMB34,394,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000))
(note 28) is given by Mr. Liu to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

On 1 April 2016, BLL was granted by Mr.
Liu Ting-Hsuan, close family member of Mr.
Liu, on an exclusive basis a licence to use a
number of trademarks in connection with the
elderly care and related consultancy services
of BLL at a consideration of HK$1,000 per
year.

Guarantee for the Group’s bank loan of
RMB2,584,000 (2018: RMB2,892,000) (note
28) is given by Mr. Liu during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Funeral related consultancy services were
provided by the Group to a company which
Mr. Liu is a member of the key management
personnel, and the income from the service
amounted to RMB Nil (2018: RMB526,706) for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

(vii)

(viii)

27 £ 5t AR #434,841,000
7t (F8 & 75,000,000 T)
(ZZE—NF: AR
34,394,000t (8 & ®
5,000,000 7T) )(Fff 51 28)
ZEEREER  EAE
EZFT-NEFEER=ZF—N
F+-_A=Z+—HILFE
BYIAEEBZRBITRMEZ
A o

RZE—XRFWEA—A8 -
DEHF LA EENED
BRI T ZME LB R
AIHELA(E FHEE N IREE
MR ARG X% E A
ZHETHEE REREF
1,000 7T °

HEz—_ZT—-h&F+=-A=
+—BIEFE - fhEH
A R #2,584,000T (=&
—\F : AR 2,892,000
JC) (B 5E28) 2 A &£ B R
TERREER -

BIEEEBREBTIRAR
SERHET ML LE
BEBEEAEBNRAR
HE_ZT—-hh&F+=ZRA=
+T—BIEFE - ZRBA
BBANEARBEZTL(Z
=—)\F: AR¥526,706
TT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z
35. MATERIAL

*

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other

related parties transactions

(Continued)

(ix)

On 31 January 2019, Zhongke Guangju Cell
Therapy (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* (“Zhongke
Guangju”), a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and is indirectly held
as to 30% equity interest by Mr. XU and
his associates through a controlled company,
and Zhongke Zhengi entered into an agency
agreement (the “Agency Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Agency Agreement, Zhongke
Guangju has agreed to engage Zhongke
Zhengi as a tier 1 agent to represent its sales
and/or services of stem cells and immunocytes
in the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau.

Zhongke Guangju, as service provider, will
in addition to providing stem cells and
immunocytes products and/or services, be
responsible for complimentary advisory and
promotional materials. Zhongke Zhenq;i,
as agent, will be responsible for market
development, market promotion and
providing market feedback to Zhongke
Guangju. The prices of the products and/or
services provided by Zhongke Guangju were
arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between both parties and are consistent with
the prices provided by Zhongke Guangju
to existing agents. Zhongke Guangju may
determine at its own discretion the sale prices
of the relevant products and/or services based
on market conditions.

During the Year, Zhongke Zhengi has received
an agency fee of RMB1,591,000.

for reference only
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EE =

PARTY 35 FEFEFIRXS(E)

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

—NFEFTZA=+—HLLHFEE

Amounts due from/(to) other related d) EW  (EMEMEBEHS
parties MIE
Particular of amounts due from/(to) other related FEUT (FE) B fth B8 i 5 3k 1B
parties, which are included in trade and other (GTAES N HMEKZIESE
receivables or in trade and other payables are SREMEMTIE) NS E
disclosed as follows: m
2019 2018
—E-nE —E-N\E
RMB’000 RMB'000
Relationship 2R ARETR ARBFT
Ms. Chang Hui- RZBZ+  Key management FZE
Lan personnel - 130
Mr. Liu Ting- BIfEE L Close family TEEEARRR
Hsuan member of key
management
personnel 107 1
Maximum amount outstanding during the year is FAGRBAEBEESENFBEN
as follows: D
2019 2018
ZE—-h=E —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARET T
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan REBZT 113 1,500
Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan BlEsF k& 175 100
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and CHEAEER  BEEUREAER
repayable on demand. EEEE -
Amount due to a director (e) EN—RBREE2Z2NE
Particular of amount due to a director is disclosed BN —2EERENFBERES
as follows: OIS
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTR ARET T
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai 2N A 789 723

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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35. MATERIAL

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(f)

Amount due to an ultimate holding
company

Particular of amount due to an ultimate holding
company is disclosed as follows:

()

PARTY 35 FEREAFIRS(E)

B -MBRERATZH
5

o — B 2 RS B
HERBMT

2019 2018
—EB-hE —ZT-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®ETFT
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological BAERIEEDRE
Technology Company Limited AR AA 8,664 4,344

The amount is unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

36. OPERATING LEASES

(a)

TEAEER BEUNEAR

36. BEHE

The Group as lessee (@) AEBEEREHEA

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum RZE—NFE+-_A=1+—H "
lease payments under non-cancellable operating BETAIHELEREE - ER
leases are payable as follows: RAREEEERNHAENT :

RMB’000

ARBFT

Within 1 year —F R 8,627

After 1 year but within 5 years —FEEEFERN 32,594

After 5 years AEFE% 19,650

60,871

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases. From 1 January 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as
lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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37.

38.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

(b) The Group as lessor
At 31 December 2019, the Group had contracted
with tenants in respect of part of its office and
investment property for the following future

36. EEHE (&)

(b) AEEELZHAAKN
R-F-h&E+=-A=+—8"
AEBREBIBAERKRE
WMEMBEPATHZ KK RKIE

minimum lease payments: HENRBOAT:
2019 2018
—E-NE —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE TR ARKET T
Within 1 year —F R 221 379
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEEEFA 442 233
663 612

Operating lease receivables

represent

rentals

EREEHERAIRAEE

receivable by the Group for certain of its office
premises and investment property. Leases are
negotiated for terms of 1 to 2 years (2018: 1 to 2
years). None of the lease includes contingent rentals.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2019
not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

REETHASRIEEME
RN EE  FHHEERTA
122F (ZE—)\F 1825F) -
TEBOBFERABE -

37. EXHEE

RBBHREARBB IR _-F—NF
T-A=+—HRKRBEITZEARKE

W
2019 2018
—E-rE T N%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Capital expenditure contracted but BROEREREBZ

not provided for: BARX:
- Property, plant and equipment - % BMERRE - 23
- Investment in a joint venture -R—HEERELEREA - 6,500
- 6,523

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings of the
Group were secured by land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB19,932,000 (2018:
RMB19,455,000) (note 14(f), 28).

38. RIEE

R-ZZE—-hE+_A=+—80" K
EERTEERREIREAARE
19,932,000t (ZE — N\ F: AR
19,455,0007T) 2 £ b & 1 F 1F K 3
(Fff 5E14(f) ~ 28) °

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER

213



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ 2R I 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

39. SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, which are
private companies or, if established/incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same
characteristic as a Hong Kong private company, as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

39. B AE

Sino-Life Group Limited

Name of subsidiary

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid-up share or
registered capital

@ RIEBE-AFR-ZT-N\F+=
B=+—R  ARAZHBAT
(R AR RS (i 7 & B 3R 5
Rz sE A L) BB EE B L
ARRIRBAERI 2 B 2 15
LENE

Attributable Principal activities/place of

equity interest

operation

gL EERTRARRG
WEASEH RIREREH gERER FE 15 R TEER/BELY
2019 2019 2018
Z¥-NE Z¥-0F —T0\F
Directly held
EERE
Bau Shan Taiwan Ordinary 60% 100%  Provision of funeral services, sale
29 December 1998 NTD70,452,000 of funeral services deeds and
investment holding/Taiwan
Bl = Ef REBERY  HERERE
“AANEFZAZTAR  FAET0,452,0007 INRREER Ak
Full Spread (China) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
5 October 2007
LB (PB)ERAR BB 1B REBR/BH
“EZ+ETAERE
Allied Smart Development Limited**  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
1 April 2010
BRHERARAF BiE 1T RERRKR/BHE
—Z-Z£MA-A
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong HK$1  78.75% 78.75%  Provision of funeral services and
9 August 2010 sale of funeral services deeds/
Hong Kong
B () BRAF BiE 1T RUEERBREERERSE
—Z-Z£\ANE 2N/8%
Dayrise Enterprises Limited** BVI Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 Us$1
ARGEBRAR RERXES ER REER/RERLZES
“E-ZERATER B
Jing Run Limited** BVI Ordinary 55% 55%  Inactive/BVI
12 February 2010 US$1,000,000
REBRAF EERLES £l TER/ABRRES
“Z-ZF-AfzH 1,000,000 7T
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive/Hong Kong
Limited** 17 April 2012
BEEEERAT E# BT TEB/BA
ZZ-Z5MAtEA
Ban Shan Consulting Limited** Samoa Ordinary 60% 100%  Inactive/Taiwan
14 November 2013 Us$1
EED £l TER/AE
ZZ-=Ft+-A1+mA E

Annual Report 2019



39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

39. ME 2B (&)

(Continued) (a) (%)
Place and date Issued and fully paid-
of incorporation/ up share or registered Attributable Principal activities/place of
Name of subsidiary establishment capital equity interest operation
BRRL,/ ERARMERY
HEAS&HE RIBERBH BEMEF & 45 B 1 TEEH/BERY
2019 2019 2018
—B-hE Z¥-hE —T\F
Indirectly held
HMEss
Chongging Xibao* The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and
19 March 2007 Us$8,000,000 investment holding/The PRC
BEEHE" HE BaliE-w RUBERBRREER/#E
“ZZLE=ATNA 8,000,000% 7T
Chongging Xizhou** The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services/The
25 October 2006 RMB300,000 PRC
EEHE" & CRER RERERY,/ P E
ZEZRETAZTRA A K #300,0007
Sino-Life Eternities Limited** BVI Ordinary  78.75% 78.75%  Investment holding/BVI
15 April 2010 US$10,000 )
HEFEBERDA KERLES gl REER/RBERLES
“E-ZFMA+ARA 10,000% 7T
Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited**  Hong Kong HK$1  78.75% 78.75%  Not yet commenced business/
20 April 2010 Hong Kong
FEHEGRBARAA B BT WAEE/BE
“E-TFMAZTH
Jinhao Enterprises Limited** BVI Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
N 13 September 2010 US$1
LELEERAT KEAXES t8 REER/HRELES
ZZ-TFAAT=AH (E
Sino-Departures Limited** Hong Kong HK$5 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
5 December 2011 Hong Kong
PERTERRAA BB SETT HREE/BE
—Z-—%£+-ARH
Bao Son Life** Vietnam Paid up capital 80% 80% Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 US$200,000 ) )
Bl k) HRRE RERKR/BE
“E--FRAZTH 200,000% 7T
HLV Duc Hoa** (note (b)) Vietnam Paid up capital - - Sale of burial plots and provision
22 June 2012 VND39,750,000,000 of cemetery maintenance
services/Vietnam
HLV Duc Hoa** (i & (b)) M BRRA HERWRRERZRBERE/
ZZ-ZHERAZTZH HEE39,750,000,0007 ]
BLL** Taiwan Ordinary 60% 100%  Provision of elderly care and
12 October 2015 NTD15,000,000 related consultancy services/
Taiwan
REM** =y . i3l RUEZREBEARE /A8
“E2-RFtA+ZA #1 A %15,000,0007C
Chongging Shouen Elderly Care The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/The
Services Limited** 27 September 2016 RMB1,000,000 PRC
EERBRERBAERAA i o EfHER UESGEES VA
ZE-REAAZTER A& %1,000,0007T
Chongging Yongxinshuo Enterprises The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/The
Management Consultancy 17 January 2016 RMB1,000,000 PRC
Limited**
EEXMPACXEREABRAF > FHE A E R NRREES/ HE
E-RE-ATtH AR ¥1,000,0007C
FRIZEAENRF(BR)BERDA*  The PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Research and testing
29 November 2018 RMB10,000,\000 development/The PRC
il O amER FENARHE/
ZE-\E+-AZthE  AEH10,000,0007
* A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise * INEIEE

*x A limited liability company

= FREMFERQT

TEEGREERAA

—E-NEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

—hWFE+TZA=+—RHLLHFEE

39. MIEB 2B (&)

The Group does not hold any ownership interests (b)y AEEIWMEEFEEEHLY Duc
in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based Hoaz fEfAIFTE Mz - A -
on the terms of the contract under which HLV IR IR A S BR LA A L R Il HLY
Duc Hoa was established and controlled by the Duc HoaZ #Z &R ZIGEK + A&
Group, the Group receives substantially all of the W ER 85 2 F0 R Y £ B HLY
variable returns related to the involvement in HLV Duc Hoa% %2 BB & F
Duc Hoa's operations and net assets and has the BE URBRHITEHZE
ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most B3Rk A& A5 2 2 HLV Duc Hoa
significantly affect those returns. E ¥
The following tables list out the information of © TRIIIXREEZWELR (%
the Group’s subsidiaries which has material non- BEAREERES)NER - T
controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised NERIVBERBERKE
financial information presented below represents TARMAGEEHEAT 258 -
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.
2019 2018
—B-NE ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT
Bau Shan
and its
subsidiary,
BLL and Bao Son Individually Bao Son
Bao Shan Life and its  immaterial Life and its
Consulting  subsidiary, subsidiaries subsidiary,
Limited HLV Duc Hoa with NCI Total HLV Duc Hoa
EWR
EMBAT
TEHR
Bao Shan HIAHR FEEKEES ETES
Consulting HMEBAT ZERNFEX HitE DA
Limited HLV Duc Hoa MEAT 45 HLV Duc Hoa
NCI percentage FEREGZASL 40% 20% - 20%
Current assets MEEE 174,835 17,893 10,026 202,754 13,464
Non-current assets ERBEE 30,923 63 - 30,986 5,292
Current liabilities RBAE (213,498) (50,242) (2,200 (265,940) (49,597)
Non-current liabilities ERBAR (7,092) (199) - (7,291) (197)
Net liabilities BEFE (14,832) (32,485) 7,826 (39,491) (31,038)
Carrying amount of NC FERESEAE (5,933) (6,497) 4,050 (8,380) (6,207)
Revenue Y 25 2,257 421 - 2,678 335
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEEA/(BE) (1,888) (1,065) (2,003) (1,180) (842)
Total comprehensive Profit/(Loss) 2@ Al /(B1E) &8 (398) (151) (83) (164) (3,094)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to NCI  JE¥ERRiEZSFE(E 2
wA/ (B8) (755) (213) (902) (360) (168)
Total comprehensive loss FERERERGL
attributable to NCI FEEEESE (159) (30) (37) (92) (618)
Net cash (outflows)inflows from @2 F&HH & (EH),/
operating activities MAF R 4,063 (221) - 3,842 7,286
Net cash outflows from investing & & EEH &KL FE
activities - - - - (5,292)
Net cash outflows from financing BEEHRLHLFHE
activities (1,112) - - (1,112) -

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019



41.

Notes to the Financial Statements

175 ¥ R I

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE
40. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A 40. gm%&ﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ

SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Group disposed of 40% of its
interest into Bau Shan, reducing its continuing interest
to 60%. The proceeds on disposal of RMB14,038,000
were received in cash. An amount of RMB5,882,000
(being the proportionate share of the carrying amount
of the net liabilities of Bau Shan) has been transferred to
non-controlling interests. The difference of RMB8,156,000
between the increase in the non-controlling interests and
the consideration received has been credited to retained
earnings.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was approved and
adopted. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme
are summarised as follows:

(@) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants who have contributed or may
contribute to the Group as incentive or rewards for
their contributions to the Group.

(b) The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which the Group holds an equity interest, including
any executive directors and any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of such subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; and (i) any consultants,
advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture partners
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

(c) The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the
particular option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of that particular option;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the offer
date of the particular option.

41.

RAEAFE AEEBHEERELH
40% 18 BAHEHBEEZEE60% °
HEBEIR & ARKI14,038,0007T °
—E oA ARKS5,882,0005T (BMY
BILFEAEREAENLLINEERS
SEVERR AR o FET AR A 5 A9 35 Hn
BUWARE Z =58 A R%S8,156,000
TLEFARBEAF -

UREESHEROAERZ
X5

BREARBDBRA-_ZZAFNRZ
TOEMEREERZESR  CHER
R RERT 8 (TRERUERTE)) - BB
PRt &I/ = RARKBA T

(a) BEEGFEZBENERART
() 5 7% 5= @ 2 4 o ok A] BE 1
BERMAERSEERIBR
B FRRFHAKEFLE
BRI Bk 2 By -

(b) AEBR2EERE()ARANR,
S EAAKMIE AR AEEF
BERAEENENERB(RE
ERDNEAEENETES -
BEARE  EEAKE QR
HEMEEERBNEAANITE
EREMIERTES (BREBL
FERITES)  R(i)AREI RS
ok H A {a] Y B 2 B &9 E 7] 7% 56
AER KRB -2BAZE

BEBLE

() BRESSHETEERENTTE
BTN TNI&ESE (IR
FEBRENZEORR(LAS
BERB)BRMDNBR TS HERE
R EBREBXAAKHE:
(WEZEZBEBBRENENA
B AEERBRONERAA
BHBEXR LBRTOFHRT
B RGOS EBRER
MBMMEE -
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41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 41. LREZEEREBEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue (“General Scheme Limit").

The total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000
representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the year end date.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to any
participants in any twelve-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of the
grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in
writing and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participants concerned for a period of 30
days from the date upon which it is made provided
that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the 10th anniversary of the adoption date
of the Share Option Scheme or the termination
of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to have
been accepted by the eligible participant concerned
in respect of all shares which are offered to such
participant when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the eligible
participant, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$10
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company, within such time as may
be specified in the offer.
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(d)

(e)

()

R R AR At 8 AT ] b R
P #E 5t 81 T R ) 2 BB
BETERAIERITHORND A
BARTBHBEARRTZEITR
D #910% ([—MREHBIREE D) -

BEBRETETTRITOR
1 48 8 /&74,250,000/% - 12 &
RARBIRFEHEBBEEITRG
#110% o

BRIEEADT RN E S TR
RER+ @B BEANEITE
ETEM2EENERED %
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41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. URBR#EZEERBR O BEEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(9)

(h)

For the options granted in 2010, they are
exercisable starting half year from the grant date.
The exercisable period should be determined by the
board of directors upon grant of the share option
but in any event should not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are
exercisable starting one year from the grant date.
The exercisable period should be determined by the
board of directors upon grant of the share option
but in any event should not exceed 5 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part
in the circumstances by giving notice in writing to
the Company stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of shares in respect of
which it is so exercised. Each such notice must be
accompanied by a non-refundable remittance for
the full amount of the subscription price for shares
in respect of which the notice is given.

X5 (&)

(9)

(h)

RRZE—ZFRE 2 ERE
s &ﬁF&ﬁE%i#¥
FRAWRITE - A TITFEEME
EZHESERNELBREZ
BRET HERNATEER
BB B B HA B ET 104 -

Wﬁ T FRHZERE
CEERR AR —
ié%%ﬁ@oT%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
EZREEENRHEREZ
BT WERNATSBRA
RHBREBSHEASE -

EFEANARAARAZELER
BARNBRATE2EKEHITE
TEAfE - R AAT R ERE
TR BT AT 0 BB IR P 08
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URESHROGAERZ
X5

41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 41.
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

==
o

~—~~

(i) The terms and conditions of the options granted (i) OEREHBEREZIGRMGEHED
are as follows: ™
Number of
shares issuable
under options Contractual life of
granted Life of period options
HRHZBRE
ARITRHBE FREH BRESHEN
Options granted in 2010:
RIZ-SERH BRE:
Options granted to directors:
RresziBie:
-on 11 February 2010 6,420,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-R-E-Z2F-At-A “Z-ZF\A+t-BE-ZT-FF_A+-H 109
Options granted to employees:
RTES 2 HERE:
-on 11 February 2010 11,680,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-TFE_A+-H —Z-TENR+-RAE-Z-TE-A+—H 105
Options granted to consultants:
RYEBERZBRE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZE-ZFE_A+—H “Z-ZF\A+—-HEZZZZF-At+—H 10F
Total share options 60,000,000
Bheas

Options granted in 2012:
RIZ-——ERHZBRE:
Options granted to directors:

ByaE®zBRE:

- on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-RZZ-ZF-A+RXH ZZ-ZF-A+ABEZT—t§—AtEA 54

Options granted to employees:

BTEEZBHRE:

- on 16 January 2012 14,920,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-RZE-ZF-A+RA —Z-ZF-A+ABEZE—t§—ATHA 5%

Total share options 16,920,000
BREey

The method of settlement for the options granted
are by equity. The closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before 11 February 2010
and 16 January 2012, the dates on which the
options were granted, were HK$1.16 and HK$0.24
respectively.
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41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. LIREEEROABERZ

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) X5 (48E)
(j)  The particulars of outstanding options at the end (j) RMEmEBRZ ERITEERE
of the reporting period as follows: SR UNE
2019 2018
—B-1E —T-N\E
Number of Number of
Weighted shares issuable Weighted ~ shares issuable
average  under options average under options
exercise price granted exercise price granted
MEFYH BRHZERE MEFH FRLBHRE
TEE TETROHBE TEE TEITRHHA
Outstanding at the beginning & #) i K17 £ HK$1.18 48,232,000 HK$1.18 49,928,000
of the year 118 T 1183 T
Lapsed during the year FRELH HK$1.18 - HK$1.18 (1,696,000)
118 T 1188 T
Outstanding at the end ERHRTR HK$1.18 48,232,000 HK$1.18 48,232,000
of the year 1187 T 118% T
Exercisable at the end FRUTIR HK$1.18 48,232,000 HK$1.18 48,232,000
of the year 118 T 118% T

TEETEEERLAR —E-AFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE

41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 41.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(j)  (Continued)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

URESHROGAERZ
X5 (&)

(4)y (&)

R H R 2 R B R R
7165 B8 P E R A T

Number of shares

issuable under Exercise
31 December 2019 options granted Vesting period Exercisable period price
BRI 2 B
“E-AE+-RA=+-H TRTRHYE BEH s fTiE®
Options granted to employees:
BTEEZBRE:
- On 11 February 2010 6,332,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-TFZA+-H “Z-ZF-A+-AE-Z-SENAtA ZZ-ZENA+-HE-Z-ZF-At+-H 118 T
Options granted to consultants:
ETFBEBRE:
- On 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-Z4-A+-H “Z-ZF-A+-AE-Z-ZENAtA ZE-ZENA+-HE-Z-ZF-At+-H 1185 T
Total share options outstanding 48,232,000
MATRERELH
Number of shares
issuable under Exercise
31 December 2018 options granted Vesting period Exercisable period price
2354 P4: 144
—§-\f+-R=+-H TETRHYE BEY s fiiE®
Options granted to employees:
FTEEZBRE:
- on 11 February 2010 6,332,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-TF-A+-H “Z-ZF-A+-AE-Z-ZENAtA ZEF-ZENA+-HE-Z-ZF-At+-H 1185 T
Options granted to consultants:
ETERzBRE:
- on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
SRIE-EE-A+-H “Z-TF-A+-AE-T-FF/\AtE ZZ-TENA+-HEZZ-TE-AT-H 118E T

Total share options outstanding

HWATTRERELH

48,232,000

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2019



(i

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 g 2% BT R T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-_FT - NF+-_HA=+T—HIEFE

41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. URBR#EZEERBR O BEEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2019 had exercise price of HK$1.18 (2018: HK$1.18)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 0.1 years (2018: 1.1 years).

The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire
ten years from the date of grant. As at 31
December 2019, 29,072,000 (2018: 29,072,000) of
48,232,000 options were exercisable in the same
year of the date of grant with 50% each of the
options granted exercisable at six months and at
the end of the year from the date of grant and
19,160,000 (2018: 19,160,000) of 48,232,000
options are exercisable over five years from the date
of grant, with 20% each of the options granted
exercisable at six months, and first calendar date of
following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire 5
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2019 and 2018, all options granted on 16 January
2012 were expired and no option was outstanding.

X5 (&)

9)

(&)

RZE—NFF+ZA=+—HMH
KRITEZEREZITEERII8
BI(ZE—N\F 1188 L) -
MEFHRBREOFRB0AF
ZE—)\F11F) e

WER-—_ZE—ZTF_A+—HE
HrEREER AR+
EgEm  RN_ZE—NE+=-A
=+ — 8 - 48,232,000 & A%
#h 7 29,072,00015 (=& — )\
F :29,072,00013) A] A &% ) A
B2 BT - R EAEEE
ANE AR R FIEAETHE50%
2 B IR - 48,232,000
7 B8 A% #E 2 2.19,160,00015 (=
= — )\ £ :19,160,0001) A] %
HREBHEFAFERITE 8
BEBHE NEA KRR
MEEEEHST#20% .2
B ERE -

R-B——F—A+RNAREN
BRESRHDAMESAFR
Bl RZT-NERZF-N
F+-A=+—H RZT—=
F-ATARBREHMEERE
B JE I B R R R A A
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41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 41. UL ERhrBEH 2
X5(E)

k) BREZAFERRER

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and

assumptions

(i) Granted to director and employees
The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based
on the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model.

(i)

7N £5 8 DA o B s T 2
BZRB2 A TFESEZE
EBEREZATEFE -
ERBRE G AFE
IR EEE NG
E--BREZEHFHRS
AEAZ-HBAZH -

2012
—E——F

Fair value of share options RETERMEREZATE HK$0.04
at measurement date 0.04% 7T

Share price 1% & HK$0.24

0.24/8 7T

Exercise price TR (E HK$0.60

0.607# 7T

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted — ¥& Hf 57 18 (JA — 78 =0 HA 4% 50.23%
average volatility used in the modelling B AR B 80
under Binomial Option Pricing Model) TR 1R)

Option life (expressed as weighted average [ % #E 4F Hi (JA — 18 =X Hi 4% 5 years
life used in the modelling under the TE B A8 2 B A A a4 54
Binomial Option Pricing Model) 15 E)

Expected dividends TEHA R B -

Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange & [ Fl| = 0.85%

Fund Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.
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41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. URBR#EZEERBR O BEEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

value of share options and

assumptions (Continued)

(i)

Granted to consultants

The fair value for share options granted is
measured using the market-based approach,
by reference to the discounted cash flows
to estimate the fair value of the professional
fees that should have been paid. The value
was developed by discounting future cash
flows from the services to be provided by
the consultants, taking into account the
uniqueness of the services provided by the
consultants, the historical monthly payments
to similar services provided by the consultants
and the service period, along with other out
of pocket expenses.

Up to 31 December 2019 and 2018,
41,900,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme are granted by the Company
to the consultants of the Group which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for an
aggregate of 41,900,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company
with an exercise price of HK$1.18 per share
during the exercisable period from 11 August
2010 to 11 February 2020.

X5 (4])
k) BREZ2DFERRBR

(&

(i)

)

KT
LB Z R ETY
ERMSERESE A
R2ZEHR[R[EREAE
AEXNZEXERZA
FE - BENK2EER
FREE RIS 2 B 1L - B
AT R LURE 2 E L
AN R BRI K
HipERFS  AITRIR
B mERRE ‘RS
ARBERESH -

HE-_Z—NhLEk=_%
—NFE+=—_A=+—8"
KR AEE R B R
SAAERERXE
41,900,00017 B8 A% 4 © 7%
LERERTEFBEAR
BE-ZT—TFN\A+—H
BE_FT-_FTF_H+—
BIEfTEEE &7 E
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHZ-_T - NF+_A=T—HILtFE
42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

43.

42, AR RE

2019 2018
—E-RE =N\
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETFT ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHERARHIKE 39 13,966 72,048
Intangible assets mEEE 2 2
13,968 72,050
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H b B W BR 3R 110,182 49,641
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEY 14,659 269
124,841 49,910
CURRENT LIABILITIES REB&aE
Other payables H b JETER K 41,425 | | 28,605
(41,425) (28,605)
NET ASSETS FEE 97,384 93,355
EQUITY B
Share capital & 7 31 69,218 69,218
Reserves 1 32 28,166 24,137
TOTAL EQUITY ESEE 97,384 93,355

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

(i)

Consolidation of an entity in which
the Group does not hold any equity
interests

The Group does not hold any ownership
interests in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However,
based on the terms of the contract under
which HLV Duc Hoa was established and
controlled by the Group, the Group receives
substantially all of the variable returns
related to involvement in HLV Duc Hoa's
operations and net assets and has the ability
to direct HLV Duc Hoa’'s activities that most
significantly affect those returns. The directors
of the Company considered that the Group
has maintained de facto control in HLV Duc
Hoa and the Group continues to report it as
a subsidiary.
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43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. &t H BT R &5t (8&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical accounting judgements in

applying the Group’s accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) Revenue recognition for sale of burial
plots under instalment plans
The Group enters into contracts with its
customers in Vietnam for sales of burial
plots under which customers are allowed to
settle the contract amount by interest-free
instalments.

The Group recognises revenue from the sale
of burial plots when risks and rewards of
ownership of burial plots transferred, i.e. the
contract is signed by the customers, the burial
plots are delivered, and collectability of the
contract sum is reasonably assured. Before
a significant amount of the contract sum
has been collected and the burial plots are
delivered, the Group does not recognise it as
revenue. At this stage, the Group records all
payments received as “receipts in advance”.
When significant amount of the contract sum
has been collected and the burial plots are
delivered, the Group records the full contract
sum as revenue and any unsettled contract
sum is recognised as receivables.

The directors exercise significant judgement
in evaluation whether revenue recognition
criteria are met. In their evaluation, the
possibility of terminating such transactions
due to non-payment by customers, are taken
into account after considering the local
industry practice. The directors concluded
that when 20% of the total contract sums
in relation to sales of burial plots is received
and the burial plots were delivered, the
collectability of the remaining contract sum
is reasonably assured, sales is recognised to
profit or loss.

() ERAEEESHHRZEX
2 (&)

(i)

& K E &7 R 7
AR EE N m
AEBEBEEPHAE
MWIHERIMAK - RIES
% BRPAARE D BN
RAEAGEEAREHE -

REMWEERZRERRE
BEBRAIEFEREA
Rl EE XN RATAE
EER M EZEERERH)
& AEEHSERKE
B HE 2 W - RRE
BREEZ MY HER
RNNEH A AEEA
SRS o UM -
REE G PTA W B B
AR BATTAWGRIA] - fi
WRARERE 2 KEED 8
BREMERN  AKHE
ERERSERHCES
Wz MABREEAR
TR SRS EER
I8 o
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AT AW ERIRE -
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43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. it H e R G (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in () ERAAEESTHERZERXR
applying the Group’s accounting policies 2 5T H B (&)

(Continued)

(i) Revenue recognition for sale of (i) HERKEZET R 5T
burial plots under instalment plans EItHEEM W (B
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, REBEEZZE—NLF+=A
the amounts of revenue recognised from the =+t—RLFE -EXAR8
sale of burial plots amounted to RMB421,000 EMEE s ERE S
(2018: RMB242,000). ABANREA21,0000 (==
—\F: A R %242,000
JT) °
As at 31 December 2019, the contract liabilities RZE—NF+-_A=+
in relation to sale of burial plots before sales —B BEEEMEER
are recognised as revenue amounted to HERMCANABERR
RMB2,423,000 (2018: RMB2,161,000). AU = A R #2,423,000

T(ZE—NF AR
2,161,0007T) °

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) MHEFTEHABAEEZZETEZRR
The following are the key assumptions concerning UWTEIERARzZETEER
the future, and other key sources of estimation BURRBERRIPRENR
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, SRS T HMBFREZE
that have a significant risk of causing a material ERBEREEZREEKNES
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and BIMGFTHAMAER c B
liabilities within the next financial year. LR ©
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43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. &t H BT R &5t (8&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
prepaid lease payments, intangible
assets, interest in associates, goodwill,
deposits and prepayments)

The Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Provision of ECL for trade and other
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECL for the trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on past experience as
groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, trade receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.

(b) EEFTHABERZEBZRR

(&)

(i)

(i)

R T EE Y 1B (B
EWE  BERRE
EHEEE BEITH
ENE - BEEE I
BERNAZEzm &
£ BT RENFE)
AEBRN &R ERRFMGE
BN BEEREFH
TRIRETR o fHIER
BEREES T AW E P
R A BAREEETR
BAR - BESRGEE
BuzGEmEBRHEA
Wem & 58 (B1E 2 F B R
HER AR B EE AEET
ZEEE)E - B E R
B> A FEBEEKRANTS
BEBUEEARTRSH
AR ZEZRORNZHE
RHPAEBEIE - A
BEmERLEEEZE
EXRAFH - sTEERE
B BEEELEMGTE
EXREELEM 2 RH
REBER  LEESE
MR EUAEZER S
mZBIE -

EZEWFIBEZERE
EEFRER

REEE AR EERETE
BIRYEFIR 2 BREE
BEiR - BEXTIREHA
BRUBEEANTRIE
BAZDHENBEDIT -
RmEEDREASEDN
BEENEX AEEEA
BREERKEBEEEAREDN
VERK A NE S EG
MATIEMEE R - R EE
WEAH - BEMEBRE
MEREEHFGE LEE
BRIEMEER 28 - it
Sy MEBEREHAZE
EREZEZEKFIAS
BEFHEREEER
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43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. it H e R G (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HFAFRPAPEREZETERR
(Continued) (4&)
(iii) Net realisable value of inventories (i) FEREMBZER KL

230

and development and formation costs B K (Y A 2 B F (8

of burial plots

Net realisable value of inventories is the FEMRERFERNA
estimated selling price in the ordinary course BEBBERNMGFTERE
of business, less estimated cost of completion IR TE A 2 1 5T A AN K AE

and estimated cost to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes
in customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

I EMETA AR - &M
SAOERERTRLEE

AEMEEMMNBIL
B EURATFPET®R
“&m%ﬂ?ﬁ’%}%@m

TERBMELNITEIM
u”jfﬁij(@m o BIBER
EWMERREFTEZS
EE

The Group writes down development and Kglﬁ%%ﬁ?")ﬁ&ﬁf@
formation costs of graves to net realisable YRR R I ER (R
value based on assessment of the realisability EP*ETFE?EJ’W%A%&%
of the development and formation costs of B A AR RABIRIRITIR 2
burial plots which takes into account costs HEFE) BIEHRE
to completion based on management’s B R R BT AR E HLA]

experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. If there is an
increase in cost to completion or a decrease

BRI - 5RO A
- SEEFERL T
B FESTY®  gB

in net sales value, the net realisable value will B2 B B % P AL AR ANl
decrease which may result in writing down 5W§ET%E%EE°§@ o RE
development and formation costs of burial R ESRENEEETA

plots to net realisable value. Write-downs
are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value
of development and formation costs of burial
plots is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. &t H BT R &5t (8&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Depreciation and amortisation

The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and
amortisation charge for the year.

This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of assets
of similar nature and functions and taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation and amortisation expenses
for future periods are adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject
to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current tax and deferred tax
provisions in the financial period in which
such determination is made.

Provision on funeral services deeds
The Group determines the pricing of the
funeral services deeds by adding a margin
to the estimated cost of delivering funeral
services in future, after taking into account
of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.

(b) HEFTHBERZEZRIR
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43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. it H e R G (48)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key

sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Provision on funeral services deeds
(Continued)

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for each
funeral service deed performed, the current
market conditions and the price of deeds from
sub-contractors. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period to estimate if the receipts in advance
for funeral service deeds can cover the
estimated future costs of delivering funeral
services and determine the need of making
a provision in the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair value measurements and
valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
directors of the Company have to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements. In
estimating the fair value of an asset, the
Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available and appropriate valuation
technique. Where market-observable data
are not available, the Group may adopt
unobservable inputs based on their best
estimate. Management may also engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. Management work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The Group uses established the
appropriate valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of
certain assets. Note 14 and 16 provide
detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of
various assets.
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44. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2019

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to
apply these changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Leases*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform?®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 June 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z
44. POSSIBLE

45.

IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2019 (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as at 1 January
2019. Under the transition methods, comparative
information is not restated.

In addition, certain comparative figures have been
reclassified to be consistent with the current period
presentation.
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19") has impact on the global business
environment. Pending the development and spread of
COVID-19 subsequent to the date of this report, further
changes in economic conditions for the Group arising
thereof may have impact on the financial results of the
Group, the extent of which could not be estimated as at
the date of this report. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the situation of the COVID-19 and react
actively to its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.
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Five Years Financial Summary
hFETBHFERRE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out as follows:

FEERBETAYREE Y 246 45
RAENBERIMT

Results E
For the year ended 31 December
BEE+-A=+—-HILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZB-hE —T-)N\F —E2—+tF TR F —ZET—HF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTI ARBTI AREFTT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5)) (E5)
Revenue I &= 66,610 62,667 60,709 57,342 61,633
Gross profit EF 32,042 27,889 30,598 22,193 30,487
Loss for the year FEER (4,164) (8,523) (20,794) (34,626) (9,765)
Loss attributable to owners ARAGHEAE A
of the Company JE1L 48 (3,804) (8,352) (19,334) (31,520) (9,402)
Basic loss per share FREXEE
(RMB cents) (AR 5) (0.51) (1.12) (2.60) (4.25) (1.27)
Assets and liabilities EERERE
As at 31 December
R+=-ZHA=+-—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“EB-RE —T-)N\F ZT—+F ZT-RF ZT-1F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARETI ARETRI ARETIT ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 76,569 43,072 48,004 52,691 59,400
Current assets mBEE 216,588 193,481 184,327 199,879 211,691
Current liabilities mEBBE (137,010) (125,510) (111,022) (109,875) (99,950)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (38,498) (8,234) (9,220) (10,077) (7,058)
Net assets EEFE 117,649 102,809 112,089 132,618 164,083
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